
If you are not able to attend the meeting, please contact Greg Robinson (510-2332) or 
Sinka Babinec (355-1310). We must have at least one of the three representatives of each 
unit of government present at the meeting to attain a quorum. Thank you. 

West Michigan Airport Authority 
Meeting Agenda   

January 11, 2016 * 11:30am – 1:00pm 
Howard Miller Library & Community Center, 14 S. Church Street (Zeeland) 

1. Public Comments. 

2. Consideration of the December 14, 2015 Meeting Minutes. (Action 
Required) 

3. Election of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer for 
2017.  (Action Required) 

4. 2017 Sub-Committee appointments.  (Action Required) 

5. FBO Report. 

6. Approval of Final EC Aviation Lease Assignment Documents.  (Action 
Required) 

7. Airport Business Center/Apron/Sitework Projects. 

A. Accept donations.  (Action Required) 

B. Construction progress 

C. Review of project budget and change orders. 

D. Technology/communications/security. 

8. Communications Committee Update. 

9. Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Preparation Process. 

A. Status of fiscal year 2016 action plan. 

10. Monthly Budget and Investment Report.  (Accept as Information)  

11. Next meeting:  11:30 a.m., February 8, 2016 at Park Township Offices. 

12. Other Business. 

13. Adjourn. 

Mission Statement:  To provide the public with state-of-the-art global air access to 
strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life 



West Michigan Airport Authority 
Proposed Meeting Minutes 

December 7, 2015 
             
The West Michigan Airport Authority Board met at Westshore Aviation, located at West 
Michigan Regional Airport. 
 
Present: Authority Members Klunder, Klynstra, Hoogland, Hoffswell, 

Whiteman, Martin, Matthysse and Sylte; HYAC Members Harder, 
Stumbo and Urbytes; Ex-Officio Members Disselkoen and Storey 

 
Absent:  Toscano 
 
Others Present: Bruce Wickman, Westshore Aviation; Scott Heerema and Kevin 

Nash with Gentex Corporation & E.C. Aviation, and   Bob Nolan 
with Warner Norcross & Judd; FBO Ludema, Communications 
Assistant Scholten, Airport Authority Manager Robinson and 
Executive Assistant Babinec 

 
Chairperson Klunder called the meeting to order at 11:35 a.m. and thanked Westshore 
Aviation for hosting the meeting. 
 
15.12.01  Public Comments 
 
There were no public comments expressed at this meeting. 
 
15.12.02  Consideration of the November 9, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Minutes 
 
It was moved by Klynstra and supported by Whiteman to approve the November 9, 
2015 meeting minutes as presented.  This motion was unanimously adopted. 
 
 
15.12.03  Special Presentation 
 
Chairperson Klunder on behalf of the West Michigan Airport Authority Board presented 
Board Member Chris Martin with a plaque of appreciation from the Board for his 
dedicated work with the Authority.  Mr. Martin was acknowledged for the value he has 
brought to the Board and the Communications Committee over his many years of 
service.   
 
15.12.04  FBO Report. 
 
FBO Ludema presented the monthly Fixed Base Operator (FBO) report describing fuel 
sales and various airport operations.  This report was accepted as information. 
 



2 

 

 
15.12.05  Private Fueling Facility Permit Application Submitted by E.C. 

Aviation  
 
Airport Manager Robinson advised the Board that Wingspan is assigning its two land 
leases at the airport to E.C. Aviation, a subsidiary of Gentex.  There is a private fueling 
facility on this leased land for which Wingspan has a fueling permit that would not 
terminate until October 2020.  Because of the particular information required for a 
fueling permit under the Airport Fueling Rules & Regulations, E.C. Aviation has 
requested a new permit for this facility. This permit involves two, 12,000 gallon fuel 
tanks that are below ground and no changes or improvements are planned to these 
tanks at this time. The Fueling Rules & Regulations require certain information to be 
submitted with the application.  All of the required information except for the insurance 
certificates has been submitted.  The permit is for 10 years.  In addition, Wingspan 
currently has between 8,000 and 10,000 gallons of fuel remaining in these tanks.  
Wingspan has asked that it be able to use this fuel for its aircraft despite the permit 
being held by E.C. Aviation. 
 
It was moved by Hoogland and supported by Sylte to approve a fueling permit for E.C. 
Aviation for a 10 year period, subject to the following conditions:  1.  That E.C. Aviation 
provide proof of environmental and liability insurance as required by Sections 3C and 
3E of the Rules & Regulations; 2.  That E.C. Aviation provide evidence of ability to pay 
for curing any violations of the Regulations or for damages; 3. That E.C. Aviation 
provide a Spill Prevention Countermeasures and Control Plan or evidence that such a 
plan is not required for this facility; and 4. That Wingspan be permitted to use its 
remaining fuel in these tanks.  This motion was unanimously adopted. 
 
 
15.12.06  Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2015 Audit 
 
Rehman Robson Audit Manager Krystal Benson presented the fiscal year 2015 audit 
and financial statements to the Authority. Ms. Benson stated that the Authority had a 
clean, qualified audit opinion. A hard copy of the audit and financial records were 
distributed to Authority members and reviewed in detail.  The audit notes one area 
requiring improvement and that is about closing the books on a project administered by 
the Michigan Department of Transportation.  Properly accounting for the closing of 
these projects can be difficult due to the length of time it takes the State to complete its 
financial work.  This Significant Audit Adjustment has already been resolved.  
Chairperson Klunder thanked the City of Holland’s Finance Office for their work on this 
audit and for the great job keeping the Authority’s finances in order. 
 



3 

 

It was moved by Hoogland and supported by Sylte to approve the fiscal year 2015 audit 
and financial statements as presented by Rehman Robson. This motion was 
unanimously adopted. 
 
15.12.07  Accept Donations to Airport Business Center Project 
 
Mr. Robinson advised that the Airport Authority has been receiving pledges and 
donations for the new Airport Business Center project.  The project is under 
construction and these donations will enable the inclusion of project items that were 
previously deleted from the contractor bid in order to construct a project within budget.  
The Authority is extremely grateful for these contributions and for those who desire to 
be part of this community project.  Donations continue to be received weekly and 
another donations report is anticipated to be submitted to the Board in January 2016.  
Chairperson Klunder thanked the Building and Development and Communications 
Committees for their work on this project. 
 

1. It was moved by Hoogland and supported by Martin to accept these generous 
donations as presented and that an expression of gratitude be forwarded to the 
donors; and further,  

2. It was moved by Sylte and supported by Matthysse to authorize Chairperson 
Klunder to write change orders to upgrade the building with snowmelt and 
pleotint glass; and that additional project items to be added should first be 
approved by the Building and Development Committee according to the priority 
list, as funds become available.   

 
These motions were unanimously adopted. 

 
15.12.08 Progress Report on Airport Business Center and Apron 

Project 
 
Mr. Robinson reviewed the budget and provided a status of the construction.  The 
parking lot base, new apron base, the foundation for the building, the walls and the roof 
are now installed so that interior work can take place throughout the coming months.  
 
The report was accepted as information. 
 
15.12.09  Communications Committee Update 
 

Ms. Scholten gave a verbal update on the status of the Communications Committee’s 
recent activities.  The Airport website now has 1,905 likes.   This report was accepted 
as information. 

 



4 

 

15.12.10  Monthly Budget and Investment Report. 
 
It was moved by Hoffswell and supported by Martin to accept the monthly budget and 
investment report as presented.  This motion was unanimously adopted. 
 
15.12.11  Other Business 
 
Board Member Matthysse suggested that the Board should considered promotional 
materials to attract new customers and users to the new airport terminal building. 
  
15.12.11  Next Meeting:  January 11, 2016, 11:30 a.m., at Howard Miller & 

Community Center, Zeeland 
 
15.11.12  Adjourn 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Russ Sylte 
Authority Secretary 
  



West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 510-2332         

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 

The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art  
global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

January 11, 2016 Items 3 and 4 

To: West Michigan Airport Authority Board. 
From: Greg Robinson, Authority Manager. 
Subject: Election of Officers for 2016. 

The Airport Authority by-laws require annual election of the Board Chairperson, 
Vice-Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer.  The 2015 holders of these positions are: 

Chairperson  Tim Klunder, Zeeland 
Vice-Chairperson Mike Toscano, Park Township 
Secretary Russ Sylte, Park Township 
Treasurer Tim Vagle, City of Holland Finance Director 

The process for electing Officers is as follows: 

1. The Chairperson opens the floor for nominations for one position at a time.
2. Individual Board members may make a nomination simply by saying “I

nominate ____________ for the position of _____________.  A second is not
needed for a nomination.

3. Once all nominations are received, the Chairperson closes the nominations for
the position.

4. Then a Board member may make a motion to elect any one of the nominees
for the particular position.  This motion needs to be seconded.  If the motion
is seconded and receives at least 5 votes, this nominee is elected to the
position.  The remaining nominees, if any, are not voted on.

5. If none of the nominees receives 5 votes, then the process starts anew.

This process is followed for each position.  The Treasurer position has been filled by 
the City of Holland Finance Director Tim Vagle since his office is responsible for 
overseeing the finances of the Authority. 



West Michigan Airport Authority Organizational Structure
January 2016

West Michigan Airport Authority
*  Park Township
*  City of Zeeland
*  City of Holland

Allegan County Ex-Officio
Ottawa County Ex-Officio

Management Contract 
(with City of Holland)

Communications Committee
Current Members

Kevin Klynstra
Mike Toscano

Jim Storey
Ron Ludema

Karen Scholten

Building & Development Committee
Current Members

Jim Storey
Les Hoogland
Cal Matthysse

Bruce Wickmann
Don Disselkoen
Mike Toscano

Rick Veenhoven
Ron Ludema

Greg Robinson

Authority Manager
(Part-Time)

FBO Airport Manager

Operations Committee
Current Members

Tim Klunder
Russ Sylte

Ron Ludema
Greg Robinson



                                                                                                                                                                 

270 South River Avenue 
Holland, MI 49423 
P 616.355-1310 
F 616.546.7056 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
West Michigan Airport Authority 

 
2016 Meeting Schedule 

 
The West Michigan Airport Authority meets on the 2nd Monday of each month at 11:30 a.m. at various 
locations in the City of Holland, Park Township, and City of Zeeland. For more information, please 
contact the Holland City Manager’s Office at (616) 355-1310. 

 

January 11 Howard Miller Library & Community Center, 14 S. Church Street (Zeeland)  

February 8 Park Township Offices, 52 - 152nd Avenue 

March 14 Westshore Aviation, 1585 S. Washington (Holland) 

April 11 Howard Miller Library & Community Center, 14 S. Church Street (Zeeland) 

May 9 Park Township Offices, 52 - 152nd Avenue 

June 13 Westshore Aviation, 1585 S. Washington (Holland) 

July 11 Howard Miller Library & Community Center, 14 S. Church Street (Zeeland) 

August 8 Park Township Offices, 52 - 152nd Avenue 

September 12 Westshore Aviation, 1585 S. Washington (Holland) 

October 10 Airport Business Center, 60 Geurink Boulevard 

November 14 Airport Business Center, 60 Geurink Boulevard 

December 12 Airport Business Center, 60 Geurink Boulevard 

  



WMAA MONTHLY FBO REPORT 

Total Fuel Gallons Current One Fiscal Year F/Y to Date
Delivered Month Year ago To Date Compared

Dec-15 Dec. 2014 10/1/15-9/30/16 2015
48,284 51,593 161,231 -32,538

Transplant Flights

Wings Of Mercy Flights

Freight Flights From/To Holland 19

FREIGHT WEIGHT 35,849 #

NUMBER OF PARTS IF KNOWN 87 skids+4 boxes

Item 5.



CuxNIINGHAM
DALMANpc

Andrew J. Mulder
Joel G. Bouwens
Kenneth B. Breese
Jeffrey K. Helder
Ronold J. Vonder Veen
Dovid M. Zessin

Rondoll S. Schipper
Suson E. Vroegop
Gregory J. McCoy
P Hoons Mulder
Vincent L. Duckworth

Kenneth M. Horjus
Nicholos R. Dekker
Jessico Arends
Poul F. Krous
Alexondre M. Zucco

ATTORNEYS AT LAW January 5,2016 Of Counsel:
Gordon H. Cunninghom
Ronold L. Dolmon
Jomes A. Bidol

V/est Michigan Airport Authority
ATTN: Greg Robinson, Manager
270 River Avenue
Holland, Ml 49423

RE: Hangar Sale/Purchase at West Michigan Regional Airport

Dear Greg:

As counsel for the West Michigan Airport Authority ("Authority"), I have reviewed
various documents in connection with the transaction between E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. and
Wingspan, L.L.C. relating to the sale of the Wingspan hangar and associated assets located at
120 Geurink Boulevard (PP No. 03-02-08-300-908) located at the Airport. This transaction
would also involve the amendment of various land leases with the Authority and the issuance of
a fueling permit for the fueling farm located on the parcel at 120 Geurink Boulevard. Based
upon my review, I have reviewed and recommend the following:

L Hangar Sale/Assignment of Leases.

Counsel for E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. has submitted to me the purchase documentation
between E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. and Wingspan,L.L.C. As you know, the hangar is
located on leased land which is owned by the City of Holland and is subject to a Master
Lease Agreement between the City and the Authority. The specific lease was entered into
between the City of Holland and Prince Corporation dated October 23, 1986. Section 22
of the land lease provides that the land lease can be assigned without approval of the
Lessor where a seller is undertaking a sale of its "assets located on the demised
premises." Based upon my review of the purchase documentation, E.C. Aviation
Services,Inc. is purchasing all of the real property interest of Wingspan, as Lessee,
including improvements, personal propertylequipment related to the demised premises.
Consequently, it is not necessary for the Authority to approve the assignment under
Section 22.

32,l Settlers Rood, PO Box 1767, Hollond, Michigon 49422-1767
E-moil ¡nfo@hollond-low.com . Voice 616-392-1821 . Fox ól6-392-4769 or 616-396-7106

Item 6.



West Michigan Airport Authority
ATTN: Greg Robinson, Manager
January 5,2016
Pape 2

II. Amendment to Land Leases.

The Authority desired to provide uniformity to the leases which will be assigned
involving the purchase transaction and existing leases of the Authority which were
entered into between Gentex Corporation and subsequently assigned to E.C. Aviation
Services, Inc. Attached to this report is a copy of the Amendment to AirportlLand
Leases which would provide uniformity in the rental amounts, the rental adjustment
provisions, the permissible sub-leasing rights, and other terms and conditions described
in the document. A general summary of the Amendment of the Land Leases is as follows

A. The rental amount would be established at $.1735 per square foot on the area
subject to the lease.

B. The rental amount under each lease would be subject to CPI adjustments in
December of each year after the effective date and continuing during the lease
term.

C. The tenant would be permitted to sublease the hangars as long as the sublease
complies with the underlying lease with the Authority, including the permitted
uses provision.

III. Sub-Leases by E.C. Aviation Services, Inc

Counsel for E.C. Aviation Services has provided our office with the sub-leases in
connection with the sale. Based upon my review of the sub-leases, the leased purposes
meet the requirements of the lease between the Authority and E.C. Aviation Services,
Inc.

IV. Fueling Permit

E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. has submitted a request for a fueling permit in connection
with its purchase of the Wingspan hangar and the existing fueling farm which was
located on the V/ingspan leased premises. We have examined the filed application, the
comprehensive general liability certificate, the environmental insurance certificate, and
the corporate guaranty of Gentex relating to liabilities which are not covered by
insurance, provided by E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. Based upon our review of these
documents, it is our office's opinion that the fueling permit should be approved by the
Authority.



V/est Michigan Airport Authority
ATTN: Greg Robinson, Manager
January 5,2016
Pase 3

V. Documents for Approval

Based upon the report indicated above, we recommend to the Authority approval of the
following documents which are attached to this Report:

l. Amendment to Airport Land Leases;
2. Non-Disturbance Agreement;
3. Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Fueling Permit;
4. Resolution Authorizing Chairperson Tim R. Klunder to sign documentation on behalf

of the Authority.

If you have questions regarding our review of this matter, please feel free to contact me at your
convenience. Thank you.

V

J

AIM|lc
Enclosures



AMENDMENT TO AIRPORT / LAND LEASES
(West Michigan Regional Airport)

THIS AMENDMENT TO AIRPORT / LAND LEASES (the "Amendment") is
made as of the 16th day of December, 2015 (the "Effective Date"), by and between V/EST
MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a Michigan Community Airport Authority formed in
accordance with Act 206 of the Public Acts of 1957, as amended, MCL 259.62I, hereinafter
either "WMAA" or the "Lessor," and E.c. AVIATION SERVICES, INC., a Michigan
corporation, with an offrce located at 600 N. Centennial, Zeeland, MI 49464, hereinafter called
"ECAS", as lessee under the Airport lLand Leases herein described.

Statement of Facts

A. Lessor: Lessor holds an interest in the properties described herein (collectively
the "Properties") pursuant to the terms of a ground lease dated March 26,2012 between the City
of Holland (the holder of the fee title to the Properties) and TWMAA, as the ground lessee (the
"Holland / Authority Master Lease"). The Holland / Authority Master Lease grants WMAA
the right to enter into land leases for the operation of the V/est Michigan Regional Airport and to
receive revenues derived from those land leases. For clarity and consistency pu{poses relative to
the Land Leases described herein, the term "Lessor" is used for WMAA in this Amendment;
however it is acknowledged that WMAA is technically a sublessor of the Properties.

B. Hangar 1/ Parcel A: ECAS is the successor-in-interest lessee for Parcel A from
the following predecessor lessees:

(1) Prince Corporation (as "Original Lessee") under that certain Land Lease dated
October 23,1986 (the "Original Parcel A Lease");

(2) 'Wingspan, LLC ("Wingspan") under that certain Assignment of Leases dated
September 19,1996, by Original Lessee to assign the Original Parcel A Lease to Wingspan;

(3a) Gentex Corporation ("Gentex"), under that certain Assignment and Assumption
Agreement, dated December 28,2012, for V/ingspan's assignment of the Original Parcel A
Lease to Gentex; and,

(3b) Gentex's Amended and Restated Ground Lease for Parcel A with the Lessor,
dated December 28,2012 (the "Amended and Restated Parcel A Lease", attached hereto as
Exhibit A), which Amended and Restated Parcel A Lease ECAS assumed under that certain
Lease Assignment and Assumption Agreement between Gentex (assignor) and ECAS
(assignee) dated December 28, 2012;
Pursuant to the foregoing transactions, ECAS leases from Lessor the following premises:

Parcel A: PP# 03-02-08-300-904, consisting of 94,807.7 square feet, or 2.18 acres,
described as:

Apart of the N l/2 of the SV/ 1/4, Sec. 8, T4N Rl5W, City of Holland, Allegan Co.,
Mich., described as commencing atthe V/ ll4 cor., said sec. 8 thence S 0lo-52'-00" E
along the V/ line said sec. 8, 711.97 feet, thence N 88o-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N
78o-59'-03" E, 23.90 feet, thence S I l'-00'-57u 8,80.00 fee to the point of beginning;
thence continuing S 1lo-00'-57" E 269.34 feet, thence N 78o-59'-03" E 352.00 feet,
thence N ll'-00'-57" W 269.34 feet, thence S 78o-59'-03" W 352,00 feet to the point
of beginning.



(the "Parcel A / Hangar 1 Lease")

C. Hangar 2 I Parcel B: ECAS is the successor-in-interest lessee for Parcel B from
the following predecessor lessees:

(1) Original Lessee under that certain Land Lease dated October 23, 1986 (the
"Original Parcel B/C Lease"l). ;

(2) V/ingspan under that certain Assignment of Leases dated September 19, l996,by
Original Lessee to assign the Original Parcel B/C Lease to V/ingspan, and which Wingspan
then assigned the Original Parcel B/C Lease to ECAS under that certain Lease Assignment
and Assumption Agreement, dated December 16,2015;
Pursuant to the foregoing transactions, ECAS leases from Lessor the following premises:
Parcel B: PP# 03-02-08-300-908, consisting of 94,269 square feet, or 2.16 acres, described
AS:

A part of the N l/2 of the SV/ l/4, sec. 8, T4N Rl5W,City of Holland, Allegan Co., Mich.,
described as commencing at the W ll4 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 0lo-52'-00" E along the W
line said sec. 8, 71L97 feet, thence N 88o-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N 78o-59'-03" E,
375.90 feet, thence S l1o-00'-57" E, 80.00 feet to the point of beginning, thence continuing
S 11o-00'-57" 8,269.34 feet, thence N 78o-59'-03" E 350.00 feet, thence N 11"-00'-57" W
269.34 feet, thence S 78o-59'-03" W 350.00 feet to the point of beginning.

(the "Parcel B / Hangar 2 Lease", attached hereto as Exhibit B).

D. Hangar 3 / Parcel C: ECAS is the successor-in-interest lessee for Parcel C from
the following predecessor lessees:

(1) Original Lessee under that certain Land Lease dated February 7, 1989 (the "1989
Parcel C Lease");

(2) 'Wingspan 
under that certain Assignment of Leases dated September 19, 1996,by

Original Lessee to assign the 1989 Parcel C Lease to Wingspan, and which Wingspan then
assigned the 1989 Parcel C Lease to ECAS under that certain Lease Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, dated December I 6, 201 5 ;

Pursuant to the foregoing transactions, ECAS leases from Lessor the following premises:
Parcel C: PP# 03-02-08-300-028, consisting of 74,468 square feet, or 1.71 acres, described
AS:

A part of the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4, sec. 8, T4N Rl5W, City of Holland, Allegan Co.,
Mich., described as commencing at the V/ Il4 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 01o-52'-00" E
along the W line said sec. 8, 711.97 feet, thence N 88o-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N
78o-59'-03 " E, 725.9I feet, thence S I I o-00'-57" E, 80.00 feet to the point of beginning,
thence continuing S 11'-00'-57" 8,372.34 feet, thence N 78o-59'-03" E 200.00 feet,
thence N I lo-00'-57" W 372.34 feet, thence S 78o-59'-03" V/ 200.00 feet to the point of
beginning.

(the "Parcel C / Hangar 3 Lease", attached hereto as Exhibit C).

Lessor and Lessee desire to have uniformity in: the rental amounts, the rental
adjustment provisions, the permissible subleasing rights, and other terms and conditions
described herein. Accordingly, Lessor and Lessee agree to amend each of the Parcel A lHangar

I For clarity purposes, it is noted that a subsequent Parcel C lease was executed (described in Recital D).

a



1 Lease, Parcel B I Hangar 2 Lease and Parcel C I Hangar 3 Lease (collectively the "Land
Leases") to set forth such uniform terms and conditions as described below.

Amendments

IN CONSIDERATION of the aforementioned facts, the covenants contained
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows:

l. Parcel A / Hangar 1 Lease: As of the Effective Date, the Parcel A I Hangar I
Lease is amended as follows:

a. Rental: Section 5 of the Parcel A I Hangar 1 Lease is amended in part,
specifically to modify the annual rent charged on a per square foot basis and the annual
rental adjustment provisions :

i. As of the Effective Date, the annual rental payment shall be $.1735
per square foot, The parties acknowledge that Parcel A is 94,807.7 square feet.

ii. Annual Rent Adjustment calculation: The annual rent shall be
adjusted each year as of the anniversary of the Effective Date of this Amendment
in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") applying the
August CPI commencing December, 2015 and the December CPI of each and
every year thereafter. The annual rent shall be adjusted to an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying the annual rent in effect for the immediately
preceding l2-month period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the August
CPI for the year to be adjusted, and the denominator of which is the CPI for
August of the prior 12th month period. If the CPI declines or does not increase
during the adjustment period, the annual rent shall remain the same as the prior
years rent.

For the purpose of this Lease, the cPI means the Index for "All ltems,"
for Urban V/age Earners and Clerical Workers Commodity Groups for the Detroit
area as determined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of
Statistics. Should the United States Government revise its price index at any time,
the parties will follow such suggestions as the govemment may issue for making
an arithmetical changeover from one index to another. Should the price index be
wholly discontinued, then its successor or the most nearly comparable successor
index thereto shall be used. The foregoing adjustment process is hereinafter the
"Annual Rent Adjustment Calculation".
b. Subleasing: Section 6 of the Parcel A lHangar 1 Lease is amended in full,

and replaced with the following:
i. Lessee shall operate an underground fuel storage site, subject to

compliance with the Federal Aviation Administration's fueling rules and
regulations and the V/MAA's Fueling Rules and Regulations (as set forth at the
attached and incorporated Exhibit D to this Amendment). Lessor acknowledges
that Lessee has been granted a WMAA Fuel Permit, as required for such
operation of the fuel storage site.

ii. In addition, Lessee may sublet, subject to the consent of Lessor, all
or any portion of the Demised Premises at any time and from time to time to any

a-J-



other entity so long as the subtenant complies with the provisions of this Lease (to
the extent that they apply to the subtenant). Lessee acknowledges that it will
notifr any subtenant of the terms, conditions, and agreement of this Lease and
shall incorporate by reference all requirements of this Lease in any agreement
executed between Lessee and any subtenant. Lessee shall ensure that none of its
subtenants uses the Demised Premises in a manner which would constitute a
violation of any of the provisions of this Lease or any other lease or contract to
which the Lessor is a party of the field rules and regulations of the Lessor.

2. Parcel B / Hangar 2 Lease: As of the Effective Date, the Parcel B I Hangar 2
Lease is amended as follows:

a. Rental: Section 4 of the Parcel B I Hangar 2 Lease is amended in part,
specifically to modify the annual rent charged on a per square foot basis and the annual
rental adj ustment provisions :

i. As of the Effective Date, the annual rental payment shall be $.1735
per square foot. The parties acknowledge that Parcel B is 94,269 square feet.

ii. Annual Rent Adjustment Calculation: The annual rent shall be
adjusted each year as of the anniversary of the Effective Date of this Amendment
in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") applying the
August CPI commencing December, 2015 and the December CPI of each and
every year thereafter. The annual rent shall be adjusted to an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying the annual rent in effect for the immediately
preceding l2-month period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the August
CPI for the year to be adjusted, and the denominator of which is the CPI for
August of the prior l2th month period. If the CPI declines or does not increase
during the adjustment period, the annual rent shall remain the same as the prior
years rent.

For the pu{pose of this Lease, the CPI means the Index for "All Items,"
for Urban V/age Earners and Clerical Workers Commodity Groups for the Detroit
area as determined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of
Statistics. Should the United States Government revise its price index at any time,
the parties will follow such suggestions as the government may issue for making
an arithmetical changeover from one index to another, Should the price index be
wholly discontinued, then its successor or the most nearly comparable successor
index thereto shall be used. The foregoing adjustment process is hereinafter the
"Annual Rent Adjustment Calculation".
All other terms of Section 4 appropriate to calculating the rental charges going
forward are unchanged.
b. Subleasing. Section 5 of the Parcel B lHangar 2Lease is amended in fi.lll,

and replaced with the following:
i. Lessee may sublet, subject to the consent of Lessor, all or any

portion of the Demised Premises at any time and from time to time to any other
entity so long as the subtenant complies with the provisions of this Lease (to the
extent that they apply to the subtenant). Lessee acknowledges that it will notify
any subtenant of the terms, conditions, and agreement of this Lease and shall
incorporate by reference all requirements of this Lease in any agreement executed

-4-



between Lessee and any subtenant. Lessee shall ensure that none of its subtenants
uses the Demised Premises in a manner which would constitute a violation of any
of the provisions of this Lease or any other lease or contract to which the Lessor is
aparty of the field rules and regulations of the Lessor.

ii. Lessee shall sublease hangar space within the Demised Premises to
the following subtenants, and Lessor hereby acknowledges and consents to such
sublease agreements:

l V/ingspan, LLC, under a Hangar Sublease Agreement
dated December 16, 2015.

3. Parcel C I Hangar 3 Lease: As of the Effective Date, the Parcel C I Hangar 3
Lease is amended as follows:

a. Rental: Section 4 of the Parcel C I Hangar 3 Lease is amended in part,
specifically to modify the annual rent charged on a per square foot basis and the annual
rental adjustment provisions :

i. As of the Effective Date, the annual rental payment shall be $.1735
per square foot. The parties acknowledge that Parcel B is 74,468 square feet. All
other terms of Section 4 appropriate to calculating the rental charges going
forward are unchanged.

ii. Annual Rent Adjustment Calculation: The annual rent shall be
adjusted each year as of the anniversary of the Effective Date of this Amendment
in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") applying the
August CPI commencing December, 2015 and the December CPI of each and
every year thereafter. The annual rent shall be adjusted to an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying the annual rent in effect for the immediately
preceding l2-month period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the August
CPI for the year to be adjusted, and the denominator of which is the CPI for
August of the prior l2th month period. If the CPI declines or does not increase
during the adjustment period, the annual rent shall remain the same as the prior
years rent.

For the purpose of this Lease, the CPI means the Index for "All ltems,"
for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Vy'orkers Commodity Groups for the Detroit
area as determined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of
Statistics. Should the United States Government revise its price index at any time,
the parties will follow such suggestions as the govemment may issue for making
an arithmetical changeover from one index to another. Should the price index be
wholly discontinued, then its successor or the most nearly comparable successor
index thereto shall be used. The foregoing adjustment process is hereinafter the
"Annual Rent Adjustment Calculation".

b, Subleasins. Section 5 of the Parcel C lHangar 3 Lease is amended in full
and replaced with the following:

i. Lessee may sublet, subject to the consent of Lessor, all or any
portion of the Demised Premises at any time and from time to time to any other
entity so long as the subtenant complies with the provisions of this Lease (to the
extent that they apply to the subtenant). Lessee acknowledges that it will notify

5



any subtenant of the terms, conditions, and agreement of this Lease and shall
incorporate by reference all requirements of this Lease in any agreement executed
between Lessee and any subtenant. Lessee shall ensure that none of its subtenants
uses the Demised Premises in a manner which would constitute a violation of any
of the provisions of this Lease or any other lease or contract to which the Lessor is
aparty of the field rules and regulations of the Lessor.

ii. Lessee shall sublease hangar space within the Demised Premises to
the following subtenants, and Lessor hereby acknowledges and consents to such
sublease agreements:
c. Wingspan, LLC, under a Hangar Sublease Agreement dated December 16,

2015.

4. Counterparts / Affirmation. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed on original document, but all of which will constitute a single
document. Except as specifically amended herein, the remaining terms of the Land Leases shall
remain unmodified, binding upon Lessor and ECAS and in full force and effect,

Balance of pøge inlenlionally blank, signalure pagefollows

-6-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Amendment by
their duly authorized officers as of the day and year first written above.

LESSOR: LESSEE:

'lVest Michigan Airport Authority E.C. Aviation Services, fnc.
a Michigan corporation

By: By:
Name: Tim R. Klunder
Title: Chairperson

Kevin Nash
Title: Treasurer and Director

[Signature Page to Airport / Land LeasesJ

I

-7-



EXHIBIT A

Amended and Restated Parcel A Lease



AMENDED AND RESTATED GROUND LEASE

This Amended and Restatcd Ground Lease (the ll,ease") is made as of this Zg8 day of

ùcun&& 2012, between WES'[ MTCHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORI'Iy, a Michigan

Commnnity Airport Authority formed in accordance with Act206 of the Public Acts of 1957, as

amended, MCL 259.621 ("Lessor"), and GENTEX CORPORATION, a Miðhigan corporation

("Lessee"), with reference to the following:

Backgound

A. Lessor is successor-in-interest to the City of llollarrd (as lessor), and Lessee is

successor-in-interest to Prince Corporation (as lessee) under a land lease dated October 23,1986

(the "Original Lease") for certajn premises at the West Michigan Regional Airport (the

"Property").

B. Lessor holds an interest in the Property described in this Lease, pur.suant to the

teflns of a ground lease dated March 26,2012 (the "Master I.,ease") between the City of Ilolland

(thc holdcr of feo title to the Property) and Lessor as the ground lessee. The Master Lease grants

Lessor the right to enter into land leases fo¡ the operation of the 
'West Michigan Regional Airport

and to receive rcvenues derived from those land leases.

C. Les.sor and Lessee desire that Lessor approve thc Assignrnent of the Original

Lcasc subjcct to thc tcrms and conditions of this Amended and Restated füound Lease.

Agreeme¡!

I-r consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties agrcc as follows:

t. Assienment -of Orieinal Lc3gq. Pursuant to pardgr¿ph 22 of the Original Lease,

Lessor consents and approves the zu.signment of låc Original l,ease from Prince Corporation, or



its subscquent successor in interest (which may include Wingspaa, LLC and ÞlDp Management),

to Lessee a:rd the terms and conditions of this Amended and Restatecl Grou¡rd Lease shall amend,

restate and supersecle the terms and conditions of the original Lease.

2. Premises l,eased. The Lessor hereby leases to the l,essee thc following

described premises, being a part of the West Michigan Regional Airport (the "Airport"), locatecl

in the County of Allegal, Søte of Michigal, which is lcgally dcscribed on the attachecl Exhibit A

(thc 'lDemised Prcmises"). 'fhe Lessor warralts that it is the holder of ths leasehold rights as

ground lessee under thc Master Lease and that,it possesscs the legal authority to lcase the

Demised Pre¡nises in the manner provided herein. I-essee agrees that its interest in the Demisecl

Premises shall be subordinate at all timcs to the Master Lease.

3. I'erm. The Lcs.see shall havc and hold the Demised Premises for a term

beginning on the date Lc.ssce closes <¡n tÏe assignment of the lessee's interest in the original lease

from llDP Management to Lessee (currently anticipated to be in December 2012 or January

2013) (the "Commencement I)ate") and expiring on the 23td, day of Octobcr, 2036, inclusive

(unless the term shall be sooner terminatcd as hereinafter provided, pursuant to Section 17), upon

thc terms, covenants a¡rd conditions hereinafter contained,

The Lessee shall have thc privilege of using, for the term of this Lease and any

extensions thereof, in cornmon with others ¿urd the public, the public flying field of the Aiqpof,

subject to the chargcs, ¡ulcs a¡d regulations governing such field issuerl by the Federal a¡rd State

Aeronautical Agencies and by the Lessor, it bcing expressly undersroocl that this privilege covcrs

the cnlire pcriod of the Lease and extensions thereof as hereinafter sct forth.

5 530292.7, 121 4t 12 - 2: I 5pm

2



4- Option to Renew. lhe term ofthis Lease may be extended for one (l) additional

tcrm of fi.fty (50) years undor the following torms:

A. Noticc of the exercise of this option must be given by Lcssce to Lessor not

lcss than 180 days prior to the expiration of the initial term;

B. Lessee shall not be permitted. to renew this Lease it at the time of

exercise, Lessee shall be in default of any term, condition, or agreemcnt sct forth in this

Lease beyond any applicable Òure period;

C. The renewal of tlis [,ease shall be subjcct to negotiations between Lessor

ancl Lcssee regarding the rental to be paid by Lessee to Lessor during the renewal term

(however, in no event shall the rent to be paid during the renewal term bc less than the

amountpaid at the end of the initial ærm);

D. Lessee shall have removed, replaced or restored the hangar facilities and

buildings incidentally related thereto located on the Demised Premises (however, this

condition may be waived by Lessor, in Lessor's sole judgmenl, if Lessee has constructed

a new hangar facility on the Demised Premises prior to Lessee's exercise of this option to

renew); and such other terms, conditions, and agreements necessitaled by the extension of

the Lease term.

5. Rental. For the initial period beginning on the Commencement Date, and ending

on October 23, 2013, the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as annual rental for the Demised

Premises the sum of Fourteen 'lhousand Nine Hundred Scventy Nine and 51/100 Dollars

($14,979.51), prorated on a daily basis for any partial year, with the first such annu¿l rental

-3-
5530292.7, l2l4/12 - 2:l5pm



payment to be made on the Commencement Date and zubsequent a¡nual rentzrl payments to be

made on October 23 in each successive year of the initial period.

It is understood and agrccd that the above-stated an¡rual rental payrnent is based upon a

total rentable area of 94,807 sqrnre feet at the rate of $.158 per square foot.

The annual rent shall be adjusted each year as of October23,2013,and as of each and

cv<,ry October 23 thercaftcr in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price lndex ("CPI")

applying the August CPI commencing August" 2U3 and the August CPI of each and every year

thereafter. 'Ihc annual rent shall be adjusted to an amount equal to the product obtained by

multiplying the an¡rual rcnt in effect for the immediately preceding l2-month period by a

fraction, the numerator of which is the August CPI for the year to be adjusted, a¡d the

denorninator of which is the CPI f'or August of the prior 12th month period'

Iìor the purpose of this Lease, thc CPI means the Index for "All Ttems," fbr Urba¡r Wage

Eamers and Clerical Workers Commodþ Groups for the f)elroit area as determined by the

United States T)epartmenr of Labor, Burs¿u of Slatistics. Should the United States Government

revise its price index at any time, the pafies will follow such suggestions as the government may

issue for making a¡ a¡ithmetical changeover from one index to another. Should the price indcx

bc wholly discontinued, then its successor or thc most nearly comparable successor index the¡eto

shall bo used.

6. Sublease. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that Lessee intends to sublease a

portion of thc Dcmised Premises to 'Wingspan, LLC for operation of an underground fuel storage

site, subject to compliance with the Ferleral Aviation Administration's fueling rules and

regulations and the WMAA lrueling Rules and Regulations which are attached as Flxhibit B.

5530297-.7,1?J4/12 -2:15pm 
_4_



Lessee acknowledges that the WMA¡\ Irueling Rr¡les and Regulations prohibit læssee from

fueling its aircraft and other vehicles as long as the underground fuel storage sitc is subleased to

rWingspa:r" LLC. In addition, Lessee may sublet, subject to the consent of the Lessor, all or any

portion of tle Demised Premiscs at any time and from to time to any other entity so long as the

subtenant complies with the provisíons of this Leasc (to thc cxtent they apply to the subtenant).

lressee achrowlcdges that it will notify any subtcnalt of the terms, conditions, and agreements of

thi.s Lease and shall incorporate by refèrence all requirements of thís Lease in any agreement

cxccul,cd bctwccn Less<,.e and any subtenant. Lessec shall ensurc that nonc of its subtenants uses

the Demised Premises in a manner which would constitute a violation of any of thc provisions of

this t,ease or any other lease or contract to which the Lessor is a party or thc ficld rules and

rcgulations of thc [,c.ssor.

7. Purposcs for Which Dclqiscd Prcniscs to be IIsed- The Dcmiscd Prcmises are

to bc used by the Lessee for the following purposes only:

A. As the site for an airplane hangar or hangars. Thc Lcssee shall havc thc

right to sgblcasc any part of the hangar placed on the f)cmiscd Premises. However, the

Lessee shall ensure ütat none of its subtenants uses the Demised Premises in a ma¡ner

which would constitute a violation of any of the provisions of this Lease or any other

lcase or gonÍraot to which the Lessor is a parry (and Lcssor represents that Lessor is not

awarc of any other lcase or cont¡aot that would interfere with the use of the Demised

Premises for hangar purposes, in a manner consistent with prior hangar activities of

Prince Corporation and its successors) or the field rules zrnd regulations of the Lessor.

s 53 0292.7, l2l4 t 12 - 2 :1 5pm
5



B. Maintenance and scrvicing for only those aircraft owned by the Lessee

and stored in the Lessee's hangar-

C. The storage of fuels onthe Demised Premiscs as long as Lessec has fuel

storage facilities approved by Lessor. In no event shall this paragaph be construed to

allow the retail o¡ wholesale sale of fuels or aviation petroleum produots.

D. Any other uses for which the Lessor gives iæ w¡itten approval in its sole

tliscretion.

8. Prohibited Uses of thc l)cmiscd Premises. The Dcmised Premises shall not be

used by thc Lcssec for any of the foliowing purposes.

A. Pa.ssenger service and commeroial operations.

B. Salc ofaircraft and accessories.

Engaging in the business of aviation insl¡uction.

Maintenance and servicing of aircraft, except as permit[ed pursuant to

E. The sales of aviation fi:els or petroleum products

I. 'lìe-down of aircrafl which may hinder or obstruct in any manner

whatsoever the safc lancling, taxiing or take-off of aircraft from public landing a¡ea of the

West Michigan Regional Aþort, which may interfere with the proper use of the fìeld by

olhcrs, or which may be objectionable to the Lessor . Further violations, after notice ancl

C.

D.

Scction 7(B).

5530292.7, 12/4/12 - 2:I 5pm

6



expiration of the cure period described in Section 17 of this Lease, shall be considered a

breaoh of thc oonditions ofthis Iæase by the Lessee, al thc election of the Lessor.

G. Any form of fixed based operation.

9. Conduct of Opcrations on l)errised Premises. In its use of the Dernised

Premises the Lessee will honor llre followi¡rg requiremenls ancl regulations:

A. lJre Lessee shall not consent to any unlawful use of the Demised

Premises, nor permit any such unlawful use thereof.

B. 'fhe Lessee further agrees thal all Fedenil, State and local laws v¡ill be

observed, including the rules and regulations of the Federal and State Aeronautical

authorities and thc local goveming authority.

C. The operatio¡r-s of the Lesscc, its employees, invitees and those doing

business \'/ith it shall be conducted in an orderly and proper manner and so as not to

annoy, clistub or be offensive to others at the 'West Michigan Regional Ai¡port. The

Lessor shaìl have the right to complain to thc Lessee as to the demeanor and conduct of

the Lessee's employees, invitees and those doing business with it, w-hereupon the Lessee

will take all steps necessa.ry to remove the cause of the complaint.

D. All rules ancl regulations of the St¿te Ffue Ma¡shall shall be complied with

by the Lessee in the conduct of its operations on the Dernised Premises.

5 530292.7, l2/4/ 12 - 2:l 5pm

-7-



E. The Lessee agrees to pay all taxes, asscssments, liccnse fees or other

chargcs levic<l or asscsse<l on the builclings, structures or tbeir contents during Lhc term of

this Lcase or any renewal thereof.

F. The Lessee shall pay for water, gas, se\À¡er charges and electical current,

telephone service and other utilities utilizcd or consumed on the Dernised Prcmises.

G. The Lessee agrecs at all times to keep the l)emised Premises in a neat,

clean and orderly condition, free of weeds, rubbish or any unsightly accurnulations of any

natue whatsoever.

H. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has enterecl into a Fixed Base Operator

Agrccmcnt ("Ägreement") forthe operation of the airport. Pursuant to the terms of the

Agreement, the Fixed Base Operator ("Operator") is required to provide snowplowing

on the Airport, and is authoriiæd to charge third ptuties for such scrviccs pursuant to the

terms of the Agreement. Lessee agrees to pay all chargcs, fees, and costs incurre<l by the

Opcrator rclating to thc snowplowing for ¿reas leásed to Lessee pursu.ant to this Lease-

10. tsuildine. The Lessee may, at its own expcnsc, with the prior written consent of

[he L,essor, make alterations, additions and improvements to the l)emised Premises, including the

dcmolition of all existing struotures on the Demised Premises and the construction of one or

more new buildings on the Demised Premises. Lessor shall grant its written consent to all

aiter¿tions, adilitions, demolitions and improvements to the Dcmised Premises w-hich meet the

standards set forth in the Airport Building Standards promulgated by Lessor ("lluilding

Stantlzuils"). All such alterations, buildings, hangars or improvements shall be and remain the

personal property ofthe Lcsscc throughout the term of this Agreement, or ¿my extension thereof.

553029?.7,12/4/12 - 2:15pm 
_g_



The Lessee shall have the privilege of removing any o¡ all of the buildings, alterations,

additions, þangars or improvements placed on the Demised Premises, at any time prior to the

expiration of this Lease, or any cxtension thereof, provided that on such removal the Lessee shall

¡estore the Demised Premises to a gradcd and level condition and neat appearance. No building,

hangar, or olher improvcments may be ¡emoved by thc Lessee u¡til all rents due have been paid

to date. If thc I,essee does not intend to remove the aforesaid alterations, additions, hangars,

buildings or improvements prior to the end of the term of this l,ea-se, it shall give written notioe

of this fact to the lessor at least sixty (60) days prior to such termination, in which case thc

Lessor may, atits discretion, order the Lessee to rcmove any or all such alterations, additions,

hangars, buildings, or improvernents. Failure on the part of tlc Lessee to comply with such

ordcr to removc shall entitle the Lessor to cause to have ariy or all said alterations, additions,

hangars, buildings, or improvements rcmoved, and the cost of such ¡emoval shall become the

obligation and the responsibility of the Lessec, or at the discretion of thc Lcssor, tho alterations,

aclditions, hangars, buildings, or improvemenls may bc allowed to remai¡ in place and shall

thcreupon becomc the property of the Lessor; howevet, notwithst¿nding the foregoing, if Lessee

constructs a ncw hzurgar on thc Demised Premises in accordance with thc lluilding stz[rdards

d,ring the initial term of this l,ease, then T,essor shall not have the right to require Lessee to

remove thal h.angar structurc at the end of the initial term (October 23,2036) zs long ¿rs the

hangar st¡uct*.e is maintained in accordance with the building stand¿rd.s of the Lessor ¿urd thc

terms and conditions of this Leasc. However, the l,essor sha]l havc the rig]rt to require the Lessee

to remove the hangar sfucture if the tenn of this Lcasc is extended pursuant to paragraph 4 until

2086. IJpon surrcnclering the f)emjsecl Premises, thc Lcssee shall sunender possession to the

T,essor fiee ¿rnd clezu of zury cncumbrances, excepting those placed thereon by the l-,essor.

5530292.7, l2/,1/12 - 2:I5pm
-9-



11. {cccss Roads. Taxiwavs. and_. Ramp Areas. Lessor and Lessee hereby

acknowlcclgc that a portion of the Demised Premises may not includc Lessee's access road to the

main scrvicc road and Lessee's taxiways and rarnp areas. Lessee hereby agrees tltat it shall be

responsible for all maintenance, upkeql, and repair of ils acccss roads, taxiways, and ramp areas

for all portions located outside the Demised Premises, to the extent those areas are in close

proximity to the Demised hemises and a¡e necessaly for the rcasonable use of the Demissd

Premises by Lessec. All maintenance, upkccp, ald repair shall be in accordance with any

federal, statc, or local rcquirements. In the event Lessee should fail to comply with thc provisíons

of this paragraph, Lesso¡ may cnter on the access roads, taxiways, and ramp arcas to perform

neæssary maintenance, upkeep, and rcpair and assess Lessee the cost therefor.

12- Comnliance with lLules and Rcculations. The Lessee shall construct all

buildings and all improvements on thc Dcmised Premises in accordance with all applicable statc

ancl city or<linances, and regulations adopted for the operation of Wcst Michigan Regional

Airport, including regulations of the Michigan Fire Marshal an<l any othcr applicable state,

county, and local laws, ordiuances, and regulations-

At any time during the term of the [,ease, thc Demised Premiscs, buildings, and

improvements located thereon, shall be subjoot to the, inspectior¡, upon reasonable prior written

notice, and approval of the Michigan Statc Fire Marshal and the Lcssor, and any other

representalivcs of interested State, count¡/, or local governmcnts as specified above.

'lhe Lessee agtees, during the term of the Leasc, to comply with all laws, local, State, and

Federal, including all building codes, pertaining to sanitation, health, policc and fi¡e protection

relating to Lessee's activities on thc Dcmised Premises. In the event it is necessar¡r for Lessee to

ss30292.7- l2l4/t2 - 2:l5pm
-10-



connect to water and sewer facilitie.s or connections for elcctrical or gas service, or for the cost of

extending said utilities, the Lessee shall be responsible for the cost of the con¡ection and utility

installations.

'Ihe Lessee shall be responsible for the cost of connections to existing fàcilities, including

storm and sanitary sewers, electrical lines, water and gas, and for the cost of extending the

utilities from their prcsent ternrination point outside the l)emised I'rernises to ¿uly building or

buildings upon the Demised Premises.

L3. fnsurance. Insurance for loss by fire and extended coveragc shall be kept and

maintained on all buildings and improvements located on the Dcmised Premises by the Lessee in

such amount as Lessee determines to be appropriate, and with such insurance compalìy or

companies as are approved by the Michigan Insurance Bu¡eau In the evcnt of loss by fire, hail,

or windstorm, the proceeds from such insurance shall be used by the Lessee tó repair or replace

zuch loss, or the Lessee shall demolish the building and improvements so damaged and restore

the Demised P¡emises to a graded level ¿rrd neat ap¡rearance.

Further, the Lessee shall procure, keep and maintain during the tenn of this Lease, and

any renev/al thereof, insu¡ance policics providing public liability and property damage insurance

of not less than $5,000,000.00 each occurrence/$5,000,000 aggregate for properfy damage and of

not less than $5,000,000.00 each occurrence/$5,000,000.00 aggregafe for comprehensive general

liability. The policies shall cover losses caused by the acls and omissions of the Lessee, its

agents emd ernployees, or by the operation ol vehicles or other equipmenl owned or operated by

the Lessee, its agents or employees. The Certificate of Insurance of Lessee shall name the

Lessor as an additiona.l insurcd l'or required coverage for public liability, and a Certilicate of

5 s3 0292.7, t?- / 4 1 t 2 - 2._t Spm

-l l-



Insruance shall be filed with the Lessor upon the commencement <lf this Lease. The Certificate

of Insurance shall waive subrogation agaínst Lessor. As to all insu¡¿urce requirement under this

clausc, thc Lessee shall give the Lessor suflicient evidence in *riting that each and every such

coverago has been issued by an insurance company <;r companies ¿rs are approved by the

Michigem Insurance Bureau. The Lessee agrees to defend and hold the Lessor ha¡r¡less from any

claim, suit, or processes of any nature, including attorney fees and c<lsts, whatsoever arising out

of this l-ease. The agreement to defend and hold harmless shall be in elïect even though the

Lessee has obtained the various insurance policies hereinabove stated. During the term of this

Agreement, thc amounts and lcvcls of insurance may be increascd by Lessor based u¡lon revised

ilsurance requircments ¿mcl spccifications which shail apply to all entities zubjcct to a gtound

lease at the Airport.

14. Compliance with Feder4l ¿\grccments. l'his Lease shall bc subordinate to the

provisions of amy existing or future agreernent betwecn the Lcssor and the United St¿tcs relative

to the operation or maintena¡ce of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be

required as a condition precetlent to thc expenditure <¡f Federal funds for thc developrnent of the

Airpor! provided, however, that any right, title, and interest of the Lessee in the Demised

premises (including any improvements made by Lessee to the Dcmised Premises) shall not be

taken without just compensation úerefor being fìrst made.

A. This Lease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future

agreement bcfween thc Le.ssor ¿md the tlnitcd States, relative to the operation or

maintenanoc 9f the airport, tllc cxccution of which has bcen or fiuty bc required as a

condition precedent to the expcnditurc of Þ'ederal fi¡nds fÌ¡r the devclopment of the

airport.

5530292.7, t2/4/12 - 2:l5pm 
_n_



B- The Lessor reserves the right to fu¡ther develop or improve the landing

area of the ai¡port as it sees fit regardlcss of the desires or vicws of the Lesscc, so long as

the changes do not interfere with access to the Dernised Premises from the landing area

of the airport as determined by Lessor.

C. 'lhe Lessor resewes thc rigbt to take any action it considers necessary to

proteot thc aerial approaches of thc ,,\irport against obstruof:iotr, together with the right to

prevent the Lessee from erecting or permitting to bc crectcd any building or other

struclure on the Airport whioh, in the reasonable opinion of the Lessor, would limit the

usefulness of the Äirport or constitutes a haza¡d to aircraft.

15. Rieht'of-Wav for Inqress and Egress. Parkjng. tr'encins.

A. The Lessee, its agents, licensees, invitees, sub-tenants and employees to

Lessee shall havc the non-exclusive use of any roads or service drives on West Michìgan

Regional r\þort for purposes of ingress and egress to the Dcmised P¡emises.

B. The Lessee shall provide parking facilities upon the Demised Premises

with the Lessee being responsible for all maintcnance, all snow removal, and repair

relating to such parking iàoilities.

C. In case it shåll become necessary to conskuct any lènoes fo¡ the prote<;tion

of the public using thc West Miohigan Ilegional Airport as a public facility, or the

construction is dcqncd necessary by the Lessor to preservc substantial uniformity of

appearanoe of alt buildings at Wcst Michigan Regional Ai¡port, or to provide privacy to

thc Lcssee at the Demised P¡emises, or if Irederal authorities require the oonstruclion

5 53(D92 -7, 12/ 4/ 12 - 2:1 5pm
-1 3-



thereol, such fence shall be erected at the Lesscc's cxpense, and only after approval and

consent is had from thc Lessor as to location and type of fcncing. Any fbncing shall be

consistent with the Aþort Building Standards. Upon thc giying of notice by the Lessor

to thc Lessec, in writing, rcqucsting that fencing be erected on the Demised Premises or

surrounding any portion thereod the Lessee shall erect such fencing as soon as possiblc

and maintain the same in good repair and condition at all timcs in accordance with the

request made by the Lessor. If thc Lcssor, pursuant to the terms of this clause, requests

the Lessee to conskuct fencing and subsequent thcrcto requests the same of a tenanl or

lessee of land contiguous to the Demised Premiscs, thc Lessor agreos to order such lattcr

tcnant or lcsscc to reimburse thc Lcsscc hcrein ll2 of the cost of such portion of fencing

creotcd by thc Lcssec which is utilized by such latter tcnant or lessee in complying with

thc request of thc Lessor.

16- Sisns. Thc Lcssee shall have the right to erect a building identification sign,

consistent with the Building Standards, upon the exterior of the buildings on the Demised

premises or in the front yard arca thereof. No other signs or advertising matter shall be painted,

posted or displayed ufÐn any portion of thc Dcmised Premises, including upon the buildings arrd

struch)res placed thcrcon, without the written consent of thc Lessor, which consent shall not be

unrcasonabl y withhcl d.

16.l Mortgage bv Lessce. The Lessee may place a mortgage upon any ancl all

builclings locatcd on the Demised Premises or Lessee's leasehotd intercst rrnder 1lús Lease for the

purposcs of securing a loa¡ or loans, and the Lessee shall notify thc Lessor in writing of thc

name ancl ¿ultlrcss of'the mortgagee prior to the placement thereof . Any mortgage plaoed on the

Dcmiscd Premises shall be subordinate to the interest of the Lessor a¡d Lessor, in its sole

5530292.7, 12/4/1?- -2:15pm 
,ru_



discretion, may require the I¿nder to execute ancl cleliver a subordination agreement to the

interest of Lessor. Any notice of dcfault in the tcrms of the Lease served upon the Lessee by the

Lessor.shall also be served upon the mortgagee, and the mortgagee shall have a like opportunity

to curc such clefect as the I,cssec may havc.

17. Latg Rental Payments. If, during thc term of this Lease, the Lessec shall be late

in making renlal payments as provided herein, the Lessee shall pay, and the Lessor shall receive,

a seryice charge of onc and one half percent (1.5%) per month of the late rental payment until the

amount i.s paid. lhis shall be in adclition to any other rights reserved to the Lessor or existing in

the Lessor by virtuc of the laws of the Statc of Michig*.

18. Dcfault anrl Termination. The Lessor and the Lessee agree that this l,ease shall

tcrminate at the cxpiration of the term herein specified. F-urther, upon the brcach by the Lessee

of aly of the terms a¡rd conditions herein, thc Lessor shall give writlen notice to the Lessee ancl a

period of thirfy (30) days liom the date of thc noticc to cure such breach. If the breach constitutes

all emergency condition zrs clctsffnined by Lcssor, tJle period to cure shall bc livc (5) business

days liom thc date of the notice to crue. if tlle breach is no1 cruocl by the Iæssce within thirfy

clays of the date such notice is rcceivcd by thc Lcsscc (or if the breach cannot be cured within the

üirfy (30) day period, if I,esssc does not coûrmence curing the default within the thirty (30) day

period a¡cl thercafter diligently prosecute it to completion), this Lcase may be tleemed forf.eited

by the Lessec and cancelled by the lÆssor, upon thc receipt by the Lessee of a¡ aclclitional notice

in writing of such cærcellation from thc Lessor. Lcssee shall pay rcasonable costs a¡d attomcy

fecs incr¡red by Lessor in conncction with thc termination, cancellation, and lorlciturc of the

I-ease.

ss30292.7 , 12/4112 -2:l5pm
-ß-



19- Notice of Terminafion - Lespo{. In addition to the provisions of this Agrcement

relating to tennination as are set f-orth in paragraph 18 hereof, the Leisor may tcrminate and

calcel this l,ease if it is unable to opemte West Michigan Regional Airport, and is required to

reimburse the United States of Americ4 the St¿te of Michigan, or such other fèderal or state

entities or agencies for monies ¡eceiveil or accepted for the acquisition of West Michigan

Regional Airport. Notice of termination shall be sent at least 180 days prior to thc cffective date

of the canccllation to Lessce. Upon expiration of the noti-fication, the rental amount paid during

the final year of the Leasc shall be proratecl a¡rd the balance reimbursed to the Lessee. T,essor

shall incur no further liabilíty to Lessec, and this Agreement shall be null ¿rnd void. Upon

termination pursuart to this P*gptU the Lessor grzmts to Lessee the right to purchase the

Demised Prcmises, including a non-cxclusive right of ingress and egrcss to the Demised

Prcmiscs at the fai¡ ma¡ket value as dctermined by Lessor and Lessee. The purchase by Lessee

from Lessor shall be perrnitted only if all of the f-ollowing conditions are met:

A. Lessee shall not be in defaùlt (beyond any applicablc cure period)

pru:sualt to any of ûre terms, conditions, and agreements of this Lease;

B. The right to purchase is determincd to be valid and pcrmitted ptusuant to

the rules and regulations of the F'ederal Aviation Adminisfration ("I?AA"), Michigan Aeronautics

Commission ("MAC"), or any olhcr federal, state, or local agency empowered to administer and

regulate West Michigan Regional Airport;

C- Notice must bc given by f,essee to Lessor at least 90 days before the

termination of thc lease term;

5 53 0292.7, 1A4 I n - 2:l Spnt

-16-



D. The purchase by Lessee f¡om Lessor must, in all respects, comply with the

rules and regulations of the FAA, MAC, or any other fèderal, state, or local agency empowered

to administer and regulate'West Michigan Regional Ai¡port.

20. Time of the Esscnce. It is firrfter understood and agreed that time is of the

essence of this Lease.

21. Eminent Domain. lf all of ary portion of the Demised Prsrnises sh¿rll be taken

by any gover.nmental authority under po\¡/cr of eminent domain:

A. All damages awarded a.s compensation ftrr the taking or diminution in

value to the buildings or improvcmcnts on the Demised Premises constructed by the

.[,csscc shall belong to and be the propcrly of the Lessee and any mortgagcc thcrcof. The

Lessee assumes frrll responsibility for taking whatever action it deems necessary to

protect its interests in any proceeding f'or thc condcmnation of any part of his leasehold

estate herein.

B. If only a part of the Demiscd Premises shail be so taken or condemned, the

L,essee shall at its expense prooccd to make a complete architectural unit ol the remainder

of the buildings on the Demised Premises; zuril, there shall bc an abatcment of the rental

thereafter to be paid hcreunder, corresponding with the propofion which the value of the

portion of the Demised Premises so taken may bear to the value of the entire Demised

Premises at the time of such taking.

C. [f more than fifty percent (50%) of thc Dcmised hemises shall be so

takcn, the Lessce may at its option terminate this Lease and all obligations hereu¡rder.

5530292-7, lA4/n - 2:l5pm
-17-



22- Ouief Eniovment. The Lessor covenants that the Lessee, upon paying the

aforementioned rentals and performing all the covenants on its p,art to be perl''ormed hereunder,

shall and may peacefully and quietty have, hold, and enjoy the Dernised hemises for the term

hereof

23. Assignment of Lessee fnterest. Lessee shall not assign or hansfer this .Lease,

including the buildings or improvernents thereon (except in conjunction wilh the sale of all of the

Lessee's assets located on the Demised Premises), withoul the written consent of the Lessor,

which sh¿rll not be unreasonably withhcld.

24. Memorandum t¡f Lcasc- The Lessor anil the Lessee shall execute a

mcrnora¡rdum of this Lease forpurposcs of public record. Thc Lessee shall bear all costs wilh

respect to prcparing and reconling the memorandum.

25. Successors and Assigns. The covcnants, conditions, and agtccmcnts ma<Ie ¿urd

enterecl into by lhe pzrties are binding upon the successors and assigns of the Lessor an<l upon

thc succcssors ¿urd assigns of the Lessee.

26. Arbitrafion. All claims or disputes arising out of or relating to this Lease shall

be settlcd by arbitration in accordance with the commcrcial arbitration rules of the Ämerican

Arbit¡ation Sociely then applying. Noticc of dcmand for arbit¡ation shall be filed in writing wilh

the o¿her party to the agrccmcnt and with the Amcrica¡ Arbitration Association. and shall be

macle within a reasonable tirne ¿rfter the claim or dispute has arisen. 'Ihe award rendercd by thc

arbitrators shall bc final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law

in any coufi having jurisdiction thereon.

5 530292 -7, 12/ 4/ 12 - ?-: I 5pm

-1 8-



Except as written by consent of the person or entity sough to be joined, no arbitration

arising out of or relating to the Lease shall includg by consolidation, joinder, or in any other

marner, any pcrson or entity not a party to the Lease, unless it is shown at the time the demand

for arbit¡ation is filed that:

A. Such pcrson or entity is substantially involved in a common question of

fact or law;

B. The presence of such peÌson or entity is required if complete relicf is to be

accorded in the arbitation; and

C. 'I'he interest or responsibility of such person or cntity in the matter is not

inslbstantial.

'lhe agrecrncnt of ftre pafics to a¡bitr¿te claims ald disputes shall be specifically

enforceable under the prevailing arbitration law. Pending final decision of the arbitrator or

a¡bitators, the parties shall proceed diligcntly with the performance of their obligations undcr

this Lease.

27. Entirc Agreqment. 'l1i.s Lease constitutes the cntire rmderstanding bctween the

parties, and superscdes all prior independent agreemenls between the parties covering the subject

matter lhereof, including the Origina^l l,ease. Any change or modification hereof must be in

writing, signed by both parties.

28. Severabilitv. If a provision hereof shaJt be finally dcclared void or illegal by any

couí or administrative agency having juisdiction, ttre entire Lease shall not be void, but the

55302Y2J, 12/41 12 - 2:1 5pm
-1 9-



rernaining provisions shall continue in ellect as nearly.as pobsible in accordance with.thè original

intent of.the parties-

2g.. Notice- Any notice given by one p:arty to the other in connection with this Lease

sh¿rll be in writing and shall be hand-delivered o¡ sent by registered mail, retum receipt

requested, with postage prepaid, or sent by national ovemight cou¡ier service, to:

West Michigaa Airport Authority

ATIN: City Manage¡'s Officc

270 S. River Ayenue

Holland, MI 49423

Gentex Corporation

ATTN: Sr. Viee President

600 North Centennial Street

Zeelartd,Ml 49464

With a copy to:

Gentex Corporation

ATTN: Gene¡al Counsel

600 North Centennial Street

'Leela¡ld,MI 49464.

Notice shall be deemed to have been given upon delivery if hand-deiivered; two (2)

busincss days following mailing, if sent by certified mail; and on the next business day, if sent by

national overnight cowier-

5 530?-9?.7, t2/ 4 / 12 - 2: l 5pm

-20-



30. Headinqs. The headings used on this Lease are intended for convcnience of

reference only, and do not define or limit the scope or meaning of any provision of this Lease.

31. ÇoJeming,Law. This Lease is to bc consfued and govemed in acc<¡rdance with

the laws of the State of Michigan.

32. Lessee Contingencies. Lessee's obligations unclcr this Lease are contingent upon

satisfaction of the following contingencies:

A. Lessee's receipt of a non-dishubancc agreement f¡om the City of l{olland,

confirming ttrat so long as Lessee complies with the provisions of this f,ease, the City of Holland

wjll not clisturb Lessee's rigtrts under this Lease; and

B. Lcssce's closing of its acquisition of the interest as lessee of Wingspan

and/or EDP Mzrnagernent under the Original Lease.

If either contingency is not satisfied by January 3I,2013, Lessee may terminate

this Lease by written notice to Lessor sent prior to that date.

IN V/ITNESS WHEREOF, the Lossor ancl the Lessee have signed this Lcase the day and

year first abovc written.

LESSOII:

WbST MICHI(ìAN AIRPORT AU'I-IIORITY(-
By,

l'itle

fu ¿ 2¿''<

5530292.7, l2/4l12 - 2: I5pm

-21-

¿



I,ESSEE:

By:

TION

ó

5 530292 -7, 12/4/ 12 -. 2: I 5pm



EXIIIBIT A

Legal Description of Demised premises

A part of the North 1/2 of the southwest r/4 of section g, Town 4 North, lìange
15 west, city of Holland, Allegan county, Michigan, described as commenciñg
at the west 714 comer of said section 8, thence south 01 degrees 52 minutes 00
seconds East along the West line of section B, 711-97 feet, tåence North gg
degrees 08 rnínutcs 00 seconds East 697.33 feet, thence North 7g degrees 59
minutes 03 scconds East 23.90 fbet, thence south 1l degrccs 00 minutes 57
scconds East 80.00 feet to the point of beginning, thence continuing South I I
degrees 00 minutes 57 second.s East 269.34 feet, thence North 7g ãcgrees 59
minutes 03 seconds East 352.00 fee! thence North 11 degrees 00 minutes 57
seconds West 269.34 feet, thence South 78 degrees 59 minutes 03 seconds West
352.00 feet to the point of bcginning.

5530292.7 , 12/4/12 - 2:15pm

-L5-



EXTIItsIT B

WMÅA Fueling Rules and Regulations

5 5'ì. 0292.1, 12 / 4 l l ?- -- 2: 1 -5 pnr

-24-



)

FUEI.ING RULES & REGULATIONS
Tulip City AirpoÉ
Holland, Michigan

Adopted by West Michigan Airport Authority
MaY 2009



Fuefing Rules & Regulatíons 2

Tulip City Airport Fueling Rules & Regulations

1. fuel¡c.

A. No person other than a fxed-base operator ("FBO") may sell fuel at the Airport or engage în fueling

operations at the Airport other than fueling (as described in subsection B of thís section), in accordance with

these Fueling Rules and Regulatîons. Fuel co-operatives, defined as multiple independent owrrers of

multiple aircraft sharing Fueling Facilities, as defined below, are not permitted to operate at the Airport. An

FBO may sell fuel to all aircraft operators desiring to purchase fuel în accordance with an FBO agreement

between the FBO and the West Michigan Airport Authority ("AUTHORffY").

B. A person who owns an aircraft which such person operates at the Airport may fuel that aircraft ancl other

vehicles such person owns operating sotely wîthÍn the Airport from Fuelíng Facilities,such person owns and

operates at the Airport; provÌded such person has a valid Fueling Permit from the AUTHORITY and complies

wíth all laws, rules and regulations applying to fueling at the Aírport adopted by the AUTHORITY or any

other govemmental agenof or authority-

2 Fuelinp Permit.

A. Any person engaged in fueling at the Airport in accordance with Section 1- shall hofd a valid Fueling Permit

while engaged in such fueting and comply with these Fueling Rules and Regulations. A Fueling Permit shall

expire ten (10) years after ihe date ît was îssued, provided that the holder of an expired Fueling Perrnit may

continue fuelîng in reliance upon the expired Fuefing Permit for up to one hundred eighty (180)days after its

expiration date if such holder has filed an application for a new Fueling Permit with the AUTHORITY in

accordance with these Fueling Rules and Regulations'

B. Fueling Facilities shall ínclude but not be limited to fìxed-locatÌon fuel storage tanks for fuel (whether for

aircraft or other vehicles operated within the Airport), pipes, pumps, and fuel-transport vehÎcles. Fixed-

location fuel tahks, pipes and pumps shall be located above-ground in a location approved as part of the

approval or modit]cation of a Fueling Permit; whiôh location shall have been leased from the AUTHORITY for

such purpose on terms and at a rental r¿te established from tíme to time by the AUTHORITY, provided that

underground storage tanks in existence before December 1998 may contÍnue to be used prov[deiJ they

meet a pplicable federal regulations.

C, For purposes of these Fueling Rules and Regulations, a person shall be Ceemed to own an aírcraftand/or

Fueling Facilities if it leases the aircraft and/or Fueling Facilities from the títle owner for financing purposes

but has substantial control over and responsibility for the aÍrcr¿ft and/or Fueling Facilities and the títle

owner's interest is substantially that of lender or lessor.

D. All action of the,AUTHORlTy'under these Rules shaff be by the AUTHORITY council unless oth,erwise

indicated or required by applicable law.

Appl¡ætion tor fue[ng per*. Before constructing, installinç or brínging on the Airport any Fueling FacÎlities or

ãnlaging in any fueling a person desiring to engage in fuefing must apply for, in writing, and obtain a Fueling

permit ftom the AUTHORrrY. The written application shall contain, at a minimurn, the following information:

A- For fueling, the name and address of the aircraft owner(s) applying for the permìt; the name and address of

the title owner(s) of the aÍrcraft, if dÍfferent; and whcther the applícant owns or leases the aircraft to be self-

3



Fueling Rules & Regufations 3

fueled;

B. A written authorization for the Federal Aviation Administration and any governmental aviation or
aeronautics commission, administrator, agerrc-4, and department of any state in which the applicant has

operated or l¡ved to release information in their respective fìles relating to the applicant on such forms as is

required by such bodies;

C. Proof of insurance coverage for contamination by an existing policy or Ìnsurance company bîr¡der for
coverage or letter of intent effective not later than the date installatíon of the Fueling Facilitíes is to
commence (or if such insurance ís not available on the market, such other means of financÍal assufance as

would be permitted by 42 USC 6991 to 6991i), whlch insurance or alternative financial assurance ís

acceptable to the AUTHORIry to guarantee adequate funds, in an amount determined by the AUTIJORIIY,

not less than One Millíon Dollars (S1,OO0,0O0) for the proposed Fueling Facílity, will be available to remove
'the contemplated Fueling Facilitíes andfor remediate any reiease or spill of fuel released into the

env¡ronment, which insurance poliry shall provide for a mandatory notice to the AUTHORITY at leat;t th¡rty

(3o) days before cancellation or termination of coverage;

D. Evidence of applicant's financiaJ ability to pay for curing any other violations of these regulations or for

damages or injury result¡ng from any release of contaminat¡on or other violation of these regulations in an

am6unt, excluding the insurance or fìnancial assurance requíred by the preceding subsectÌon, equal to the

totat deductibles or seff-insured retention limíts of the applicant for insurance policies the applícant is

required to carry (including under the preceding subsection if the applicant uses insurance to satlsfu that

requirement) to obtain and keep iu Fueling Permi!

E. proof of liability insurance coverage, by means of an existing policy or insurance company binder for

coverage or letter of inteñt, effective not later than the date installation of the Fueling FacÎlities is to

commence, in an amount acceptabÍe to the AUTHORITY not less than Five Mítlion Dollars (S5,0CÐ,000),

coveríng any Ínjury to any person or to any property, whether ownèd by the AUTHORITY or any other

person, retated to or arising in connection with fuelinç which insurance policy shall provide for a mandatory

notice to the AUTHORITY at least thifi (30) days before cancellation ortermination of coverage;

F. preliminary plans and specifications prepared by an engineer licensed by the Staie of Michigan for all

ímprovements whích the applicant contemplates on the Airport in connectíon with fuelinç which plans and

specificatíons may not be modified or deviated from after submittal to the AUTHORITY without the express

written consent of the AUTHORITY, and manufacturer specifications for all other Fueling FacilitÍes which the

applicant contemptates using on the Airport in connection with fueling, which facilities shall not be altered

or replaced unless the AUTHORITY has expressly consented to such alteratíon or repfacement;

6. A timeline of any improvements to be constructed or installed at the Airport;

H- A copy of any permít or approvat that may be requlred from any governmental body other than the

AuthorîÇ Board under these Fueling Rules and Regulations;

l. A Spilt Prevention Countermeasures and Control ("SPCC") Plan in accordance with the Federal Water
pollution Prevention and Control Act or equívalent state law, complying with applicable regulations and

acceptabfe to the United States Environmental Protection Agenry and/or MÍchigan Department of

Environmental Qualþ;

r lf rhe annlicanl wilt Ínstall anv [morovement capable of being shared by others for which it would desire



Fueling Rules & Regulations 4

possible reimbursement ("Common lmprovement"), an agreement pursuant to Section 11 befow for such
other users to reimburse the costs of such Common lmprovement, a Ietter of credit from a financÌal
institution reasonably acceptable to the AUTHORITY for the full cost of such Common lmprovemeng and
evidence of builder's risk insur¿nce in an amount of One Million Dollars (51,000,000); if the applicant will
share any Common lmprovement inst-¿lled by another person, an acceptance of the reimbursement
agreement wíth regard to such Common lmprovement; provided, however, in no instance shafl different
owners share Fueling Facílîties;

K. Any other information the AUTHORITY may require or request;

L- A fee in an amount established from time to t¡me by the AUTHORITY Air.port Advisory Board to be applied
toward the costs of AUTHORITY staff reviewing the application. The applicant shall be responsîble for all
costs lncurred by the AUTHORITY ín connection with reviewing and acting on the application, íncludirng, but
not limited to legal and engineering consultants.

A holder of a Fueling Permit ("Permit Holde/') shall notify the AUTHORTT'Y of any change in the foregoing
inforrnation and shall provide the AUTHORITY annualfy with a certifìcate of insur¿nce from the Permit Holde¡'s

insurer{s) for all Ìnsurance carried to comply with Subsections C and E, which ceftificate shall meet the

requírements of Subseqtions C and/or E as applicable. Every two years, the AUTHORITY wilf review the levels of
insurance required for Fuelíng Permits. Permit Holders will be obligated to meet reviséd insurance limits, except

a Permit Holderthat has been granted an exception from the limits established in this Section willinstead be

required to increase the approved insurance limit by the percentage increase applied to holders w¡thout such an

exception.

Revi_qw of Application for Fuelíne.Permit. The West Michigan Airport AuthoriÇ wilf review all applications

submitted to the AUTHORITY and recommend approrralor denialof afl completed appliætions within nineÇ (90)

days after the completed application has been submitted, lf an application is incomplete, the Aírport Aclvlsory

Board will inform the applÌcant of the additional information needed. An applícation may be denied for one or

more of the following reasons:

A. The applicant does not meet qualifìcations, standards and requirements established by these Minirnum

Standards;

B. The applÍcant's proposed operations or construction will endanger or pose a threat to the health, salèty or
welfare of people or properfy using or located at or in the vîcinity of the Airport or creates a safety hazard

on the AirporÇ

C. Granting the application will require the expendíture of funds, fabor, or materials of the AUTHORITY or
result in a financial loss to the AUTHORITY;

D. The proposed location of the Fueling Facílities Ìs not appropriate or adequate for security, safety or
e nvironnlental reasons;

E. The proposed facilities and/or [ayout thereof are not consistent with the Airport Layout Plan;

F. The proposed fueling operations will result în a congestion of fueling vehicles ín the fuel t¿nk area or in
other areas of the Airport or incompatibitíty wíth aircraft operations;

G. The proposed fueling operations would unduly interfere with the operations of an FBO;



5.

Fuefing Rules & Regulations 5

H. For self-fueling, the applîcant or other owner of the aircraft has provided f¿lse informatüon or

misrepresented any materia! fact in the application or in supporting documents or has failed to make full

disclosure of inforrnation relevant to the application;

l. The applícant or other owner of the aircraft has a record of vîolating the rules or regulations of this or any

other airpor!, the CivilAir Regulations, or Federal Aviatíon Regulations;

J, The applicant or other owner of the aircraft has defaulted in the performance of any lease or other

agreement with the AUTHO RITY or with a ny other airport owner or authority;

K. ïhe applicant or other owner of the aircraft has failed to provide any of the items required in the application

for Fueting Permit to the satisfaction of the AUTHORII-Y;

L. ïhe applicant or other owner of the aircraft has committed any felony or any other crime or violatred any

local ordinance, rule, or regutation that adversely reflects on Ìts willingness or abÍlity to comply wäth the

qualifìcations, standards, or requirements established by these Mînimum Standards in connection with

fueling;

M. Any other reason the AUTHORITy reasonably determines that the applicánt's proposed fueling or l:ueling

Facilities would be or are contrary to health, safety, or welfzre of the AUTHORITY or people wittrin the

AUTHORITY or in the vicínity of the Airport'

should any of these ¡tems change after a Fueling Permit has been approved, the Permit Holder shall notifu the

AUTHORITY and the AUTHORITY may then revote or condition the Fueling Permit in accordance with ser:tion 9

of these Fueling Rules and Regulations-

Structural Controls.

A. All Fueling Facifities must at all times meet alf requirements imposed by äny Eovernmental agenry having

jurisdistion over Fueling Facilities at the Airport or by any insurer providing insurance coverage to the

Airport or with providing ínsurance with regard to the particular Fueling Facilitíes;

B. Fuet storage tanks shall be above ground in a fixed location, provided that a tank used to store fuel for

vehicles other than aircraft may be a vehícle-mounted tank of not more than 250 gallons, and provided that

underground storage tanks in existence before December 1998 nray continuâ,to be used provided they

meet a pplicable federal regulations;

C. All aboveground storage tanks shafl have sufficient secondary containment to prevent a spill, leak or other

release from reaching ioil or water and comply in all respects with federal and state requirements applicable

to above-ground stoãge tanks- Any vehicle with a vehicle-mounted fuel storage tank shall be operaterd only

,po,.., p.uãd surfaces and shall otherwise be operated in compliance with the requirements of Section 6

below;

D. Vehicles used to transport fuel withÏn thg Airport shall have a maximum capacity of 10,00O gallons of fuel,

shall have a radio capable of monitoring or communicating with the FBo at the AirpoG and shall have safety

locks on sumps;

E. Altfuel tanks shall use a bottom-fil! :ystem;



., J

6.

Fueling Rules & Regulations 6

water runoff;

G. Adequate grounding wires or other approved means of reducing stat¡c ef ectricity acceptable to the Michîgan

State Police Fire Marshal Division or the Michïgan Department of Environmental Quality, whichever has

jurisdicdon at a given time, shall be installed, inspected, and maintaÎned;

H. A properly maintained and charged fire extinguisher appropriate for fuel fires and a supply of dry abr;orbent
'material 

shalt be kept in each fuel transport vehide operated at the Airport;

l. Each Permit holder shatl have sump buckets available in the ramp area and hangar area at all times;

J. Each permit holder shall have and keep safety signage posted in the area of fuel dispensing as required by

government regulations;

K. Within ninety (90) days of completion of any new structure at the Airport, the Permit holder controlling it

shall submit u "rigniRrant materials list'to the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (S-W-P'P'P')

admìnistrator;

O p-ç ration a I Co ntrg-!S.

A. No fuet in Fueling Facilities shall be díspensed into any Fueting Facilities, aircraft or vehicle not owned by the

owner of the Fueling Facilities who hofds a valid Permit for such fueling except by an FBO;

B. Vehicles used to transport fuel from fixed fuel storage tanks to aircraft within the Aìrport ("Fueling'l'rucks")

shall be subject to approval by the AUTlloR¡TY, shall comply with all applicable laws and regulatíons and any

reasonable requirements of the AUTHORIW's insurance carriers or caniers of insurance for the Permit

Holder, and shalf be properly maint¿ined to prevent leaks. During operatíon Fueling Trucks shall comply

with all applíczble laws and regulations and any reasonable requirements of the AUTHORITY's insurance

carríers or carriers of insur¿nce for the Permit Holder, including but not limited as to lighting, and sha[l have

a radio for Airport communications operating. Fuefing Trucks shall only be filled from fixed fuel storage

tanks within the Airport and shall only operate within the Airporf

c. over-the-road fuel transport vehÌcles ("Tankers") may only dispense fuel to fìxed-location fuel storage tanks,

shall not directly dispense to a Fueling Truck or to aircr¿ft, shall not be used to store fuel at the Airport, and

sha¡ only operate within those areas of the A¡rport reasonably necessary for dispensing fuel to fixed location

iuel storage tanks;

D. All Tankers shall have such containment systems as requíred by applicable law or regulation;

E, A Fueling Truck or Tanker approaching or crossing a runway or taxiway shall during such approach or

crossing have a radio for Airport communications operating on the Common Traffic Advisory Frequenry

("crAt"l.

F. AÍl Fueling Facilities shall be secured when not being used to prevent leaþ spillage, and unauthorized use;

G. All Fuefing Facílities shall be routinely inspected at least monthly, with a comprehensive inspectior¡ to be

performed at least every six (6) months, with written inspection reports kept on file for a minimum of three

years and provided to the AUTHORITY upon request of the Chairperson. AII Fueling FacilitÌes shall be

maintained in good and workable order and operated ln a manner that minímizes the r¡sk of accídental or



1

Fueling Rules & Regulations 7

otherwise kept in compliance with all applicable governmental regulation, including conformance with the

SPCC PIan and registration requirements;

H. lf a spill or release of fuel or any other regulated substance to the environment occurs at the Ajrport, the

permit Holder for the Fueling Facilities from which the spitl or release occurred shall immediately stop and

contain the spill or release, clean up the fuel or substance released, and notify the AUTHORIIY of the spill or

release ahd of the steps taken in response. The Permit Holder shall then proceed to remediate any

contaminated soil or water as promptty as reasonably possible. lf a theft of fuel occurs at the Airport, the

permÍt Holder for the Fueling Facilities from which the theft occurred shall notify the AUTHORffY a'nd law

e nforcement officÍals immediately upon discovering the theft;

l. Other than for Fuellng Facilities owned by an FBO, no substances other than fuel for aircraft owned by the

peimit Holder or for other vehicles owned by the perrni! Holder and operated solely within the Airport shall

be stored in Fueting Facilities at the Airþrt and all regulated subsl¿nces shall be stoied only in containers

a pproved for storage of that substa nce;

J. No smoking, flames, or sparks shall be permítted within ten (10) yards of any Fueling Facilities durTng

fueling;

K. All personnel involved in fuel dispensing to fixed storage tanks, fuet transportvehicles or aircraft sha.ll be

properly trained to perform theír tasks while minimizing the risk of harm to people, property and the

environment at the time they commence employment and at least annually thereafter;

L. Oil water separators shall be ínspected each six (6) months to assure they remain ín good working orcjer and

to ¿"t"rrnin" if pumping is appropriate and repaired and/or pumped as appropriate' wíth written Îns¡rection

reports kept on file foi a minimum of three years and provided to the AUTHORITY upon request of the

Chairperson;

M. lf any hazardous or regulated substance is spilled or released into a secondary containment structure, the

permit Hotder shafl immediately act to siop the spill or release, promptly test the substance in the

secondary containment structure for contamînatíon and, if contaminated, dispose of it in accordanr:e with

applicable law;

N. s.w.p-p.p. maps will be revíewed and updated every six (6) months and all employees involved in fueling

shall have training for the 5.w-P-P.P. wÎthin ninety (90) days of employment;

o. All Fueling Facílities and areas shall be maintained so as not to present an unsightly appearance or

unnecessary danger'

Exce ptions from Specific Req.q¡irem ents-

A- An applicant for a Fuelíng permlt may submit a written request for one or more exceptíons from the

provisÌons of these Fueling Rules and Regulations along with the apptication for a Fueling Permit' The

request for an exception shall state the circumstances of the applicant that justify the requested exceptlon'

Following receipt of a request for an exception from a provision of these Fueling Rules and Regulations, the

AUTHORITy Board may request further informatíon from the applicant and may hold a public hearing on the

request to make findings of fact and, based on such findings, adopt a written recommendatíon to the

AUTHORnY that it approve, approve w¡th mcdifications '¿r ccnditions, or re1'ect the requested exception'

Tlra altïHnRtry actirre throueh its members, shall have the powerto approve, approve with modifications



Fueling Rules & Regulations B

or conditions, or reject the reguested exceptíon from these Fueling Rules and Regulatíons. This section does

not authoríze exceptions frorn any other applicable laws, including ordinances of the AUTHORITY'

B. The requested exception may be granted if the AUTHORITY determines the following:

1. That there are exceptional or exÈraordinary circumstances or conditions applying to the

applicant's situâtion that do not apply generally to other Permit Holders and that such

circumstances have not been created by the appllcant or a person or entity with which the

applÎcant is affiliated;

Z. That the requested exception is necessary to enable to the applicant to obtain or reta¡n a

Fueling Permi! provided, that the possibility of reduced cost shall not of itself be deemed

sufficient to rvarrant an exception;

3. That the exceptíon would not be of sign ifìcant detriment to the A¡rport, other users of the

Airport, or other properties in the vicinity and will not mater¡ally irnpair the intent and

purposes of the Fuel¡ng Rules and Regulations or the public heatth, safety and welfare; and

4- That the applicant's circumstances on which the request is based are not of so general or

recurrent a nature as to make reasonably pract¡cable the formulation of a geneml regulation

to address such circumstances'

C. ln determining whether and by what amount to reduce the amount of insumnce required to be carrierJ by

the holder of a Fueling permit to ensure the coverage required reflects the levet of risk, consideration shall

be given to, but not lim¡ted to, the folfowing: the fuel capacity of the tank; the type of Fueling Facilitie:;; the

anticipated number of fueling operations; the type, size, and number of aircraft to be fueled; the tocation of

the fuel tank relative to buildings, taxiways, runways; and any other factors that may affect the risk and

possible magnitude of injury or damage.

Flowase Fee. A flowage fee shall be charged for every gallon of fuel pumped at the Aírport (a) by an FEio ¡nto

any aircraft or into any fuel storage tank not owned by an FBo or (b) by an outside fuel provider into any fuel

storage tank. The purpor" of the flowage fee is to pay for Airport maintenance and services. The AUTHoRffY

shall establ¡sh the amount of the flowage fee from time to time at whatever level it determines appropriate.

The owner of each Fueling Facility shail report to the AuTHoRrry the amount of fuel loaded into its Fueling

Facility when loaded and pay to the AUTHORITY the correspondíng flowage fee'

9. Revocation.

A- The AUTHORITy may revoke a Fueling Perm¡t by written notice to the Permit Holder for any of the following

reasons:

1. An attempted assignrnent of the permit without the prior written consent of the AUTHORITY;

2. Any material change of any information or fact set forth in an application for a Fuefing Permit r,trithout

the príor written consent of the AUTHORITY;

3. The hotder of the Fueling Permit fails to notify the AUTHORITY in writing of any change to any f¡ct set

forth in an apptication ,'or its Fueting Permit, iegardless whether such change is material;

8



FuelingRules & Regulations 9

rules and regulations;

5, The AUTHORITY determÍnes that any condition exists that would have permitted denÍal of the Permit
Holder's applicatîon for a Fueling Permit had such condition existed or been known at the tíme the
permit was granted.

B- lmmediately upon receipt of any such notice of revocation, the Permk Holder shall cease fueling and withín
ten (10) days of the date of any such not¡ce of revocation, the Permit Holdeç or its assign or successor, shall
decommission its Fueling Facilitîes by fully emptying and securing against access all fuel storage tanks
(whether in a fixed location or on a vehicle), draining ail pipes, and locking all purnps.

C. The Permít Holder, or its assþn or successor, shall have thirty (30) days frorn the notice of revoc;ation to
submit an application for a new Fueling Permit. lf the new application is not submítted withln the thirty (30)

days, or if following review, the AUTHORIW denies the new permit, the holder of the revoked permit, or its
assign or successor, shall remove the Fuelíng Facilíties within ninety (90) days of the revocation or denial,
whichever is later, unless a court of competent jurisdÍction enjoins requíring such removal pending a judicial

appeal.

.. 10. Alternative Enfqrceme!! lf the AUrHORITY determines any fueling system or facilities or conditÎon related thereto
víolates these rules and regulations or for any other reason poses an immedíate risk to public health¡ safety, or

welfare, the AUTHORITY may cure the default or conditîon and recover all costs of such cure, plus interesjt at the
fower of the híghest rate permitted by law or twelve percent (12%), from the Permit Holder or person without such

a permít who is responsible for the presence of the violation or threatening condition-

11- fmorovements Pavback Agreements. The first person that installs a fueling system in a shared fuel tank area ("Tank

Farm") wifl Initialfy bear the cost of certain improvements other than Fueling Facilitíes that are capable of being

shared by others engaged in fueling for example as an illustration but not limitation, a driveway from the acljoiníng

public road to the Tank Farm and an access road from the Tank Farm to a paved area within the Airport pr'oviding

access to the hangar area ("Common lmprovements"). The AUTHORITY shall have the authority to allov¡ other
persoirs to use Common lmprovements in return for requiring such persons to enter into a reimbur:;ement

agreement acceptabfe to the RUTHORITY for each such person to reimburse the person that initially bore the capital

costs of a Comrnon lmprovement. The AUTHORITY does not guarantee that any other person will use any Common

lmprovement. The person originatly bearîng the cost to construct a Cornmon lmprovement shall provide the
AUTHORITY with documentation reasonably sat¡sfactory to the AUTHORITY of the capÍtal cost of each such Cc'mmon

lmprovement- Subsequent applícants for a Fueling Permit that relies upon using such a Common lmprovement shall

pay the person(s) who have previously borne all or part of the capital cost of a Common lmprovement (e.g.,

construqtion, replacement) to be shared an amount such that each person using such Capital lmprovement bears a

pro rata share of such costs. (e.g., the second usershall reÍmburse the original userthe capital costs of the Common

lmprovement; the third user shall reimburse both the first and second users so that each will have borne V3 of such

capital costs.) The reimbursement agreement shall also provide a means foi maintenance, repair, and replacement
of shared Common lrnprovements so that each user bears a pro rata share of such costs in the future.

K://Ass¡st2nt Crty Manager/West M¡chigan Airport Autlìority/Misc. Docu¡¡ents/Fueling Rules & Regulations (May 2009)



EXHIBIT B

ParcelB/Hangar2Lease



I

TAND I,EASE

bettreën

CTTY OA EOEI,àND

ancl

PRINCE CORPORATION

THIS IJEASE is entered into this 23rd day of October I Lgg6,
by ancl between rEE crry oF Hor,r,AND, a rnunicipal corporation of ottawa
and Alregan count,Íes, MÍchigan (herelnafter referrecl t,o as nr¡essorn)

and PRTNCE coRPoRATroN, a Michigan corporation, of, windcrest Drive,
Holrandr Michigan (hereinafter referred to as rLesseerr).

I{ITNBSSETE:

For and in consideration of the mutual eovenants hereÍnafter
provided. Èhe Lessor and the Lessee agree as forlows:

r-. prenises Lqased. The Lessor hereby reases t,o the
r,essee the f/olrowing describecr premises, belng a part of the Tulip
City Airportr locaÈed in the County of,AIIegan, State of Michigan,
which is regarry described on the attached Exhibrt e.

said described premÍses sharr hereinafter be referred Èo

as the I'demised premÍsesrr.

The Lessor warrants that it is t,he owner of the demised
premises and that Ít does in fact, possess t,he regal authorÍty Èo

Iease the sa¡ne in the manner provided herein.
2. Term. The Lessee shall /ave anA hold the demised

premises for a term of 50 years beginnlng on the 23rd day of october,
1986 and expÍring on the 23rd day of october , 2036, incrusive (unless
saÍd term shall be soonei terminated ag hereÍnaft.er provided., pursuant
to Paragraph 16 or I7), upon the terms, covenant,s and conditÍons
hereinaf ter contained.

The Lessee sharr have the ¡rrivirege of using, for the term
of this Lease or any extensions thereof, in common with others and

,t
F.
À

'tl.

ù



a :"'

-2-
the public, the public flying fietd known as Tulip city Alrport,

subject to the charges, ruJ.ee and regulations governing such field

issued by the Federal and staÈe Aeronautical Agencfes and by the cj'ty

of Hollancl, it being expressly unêlerstood that thÍs privilege covels

the entire perfod of the lease and extensions thereof as hereinafter

set forth.
3. Ot¡tÍon to Renew. The term of this lease nay be extended

for an additÍonaI term of 50 years under the following terms'

conditions, and agreements:

A. Notice of the exercise of this option must be given

by T,eseee to Lessor not less than 180 days prior to the expiratiori

of the initial termi

B. Lessee shal-l not be pernítted to rei¡ew thís lease if

IJessee shall be Ín ctefault of any term, condition, or agreenent

set forth in thís leasei

C. The renewal of thls lease sha1l be subject to

negotiatlOns between Lessor anil Lessee regarding the rental to

be paid by Lessee to T,essor during Èhe renelrùal term (howeverr in

no event shall the rent to be gaíd during the renewal term be

Iess than the amount paid at the end of the initial term)¡

D. The removal, replacement, or restoration of the hangar

facilities ancl buildings íncÍdentally related thereto locatecl

on the demised premÍses¡ ancl such other termsr condftlons' and

agreements necessitatett by the extension of the lease term.

4, Rental. For the initial five year period beginning on

the 23rd day of october, 1986, and endling on the 23rd day of October,

1991r the l,essee sha1l pay to the T¡essor as rental for the demised

premises the sum of Thirty-Seven Thousand seven Hundred Seven

and 50,/100 Dollars ($ 37,707,50 ),

payable in annual rental paymenÈs of Seven Thousand Five Hundred' Forty-

one and so/J-oo Dollars--(S 71541'50 ) each, the first such annual

rental payments made on the date of lhe executlon of this lease, and

subsequent annual rental payments to be ¡nade on the 23rd day of

''ì/
d,

lí
!
4:..

t1..

f¡.



,. 
\ 

-1--3-

october ln each successÍve year of saial lnlEial five year Period,

at City Hallr Holland, Mfchigan.

Itlsuniteretoodandagreedthattheabove-sEaEedannual

rental payment is base¿l upon a total rental area of

sguare feet at the raÈe of $.08 per sguarê foot'

94,269

Conmencing on Octobet 23t 1991, a base rental rate of

$.10 per square foot multiplled by the aggregate land area of the

ttemised premises sball be acljustett to the amount obtained by díviding

the Ínitlal rental by the consumer PrÍce Inclex for the month of

october, 1986 and multiplyÍng the quotlent thereof by the last

consumer Price Inclex figures published imnealiately preceding october,

199r.

For each five (5) year perioct thereafter, commencing o¡l

october 23, Lgg6, the annual rental- rate paid prior to october 23,

1996 sr¡all be acljustecl to the amount obtained. by ctividing the lnltial

rental by the consumer Price Inclex for the month of october, 1986

and multiplying the guoùient thereof by the last consumer Price Index

Éigures published immecliatelY prececling each successive five (5)

year lease.

For the purpose of thls Leaser the consumers Price Index

means the Inclex for '|AII lte¡nsr for Urban Wage Earners and Clerlca1

workers commodity Groups for the Detroit area as determlned by tbe

UnÍted StateÉ Departnent of Labor, Bureau of Statlstics'

Should the United States covernnent revise its price inclex

at any time, the partfes, bereto wlll follow such suggestionE as the

government may issue for making an arÍthmeticat changeover from one

index to another. Shoultt the price index be wholly dlscontinuecl'

Èhen iÈs Successor or the mo6t nearly comparable suCcessor index

theretor adjusted baek to ,fune, 19?0' sha1l be used.

5. Rioht of Fi st Refusal. Lessor hereby grants to Lessee

the rlght of first refusal Èo lease property legally clescribed on

the aÈÈached Exhibtt B durÍng the term of this lease or any renewal

thereof. The right of fÍrst refusal shall be exerclsed undler the

followÍng ter¡ns, conditÍong, and agreements:



:, . õ. :t: -,,.

-4-
A. Lessee shall noE be permitted to exercise the rÍghts

and dut,Íes pursuant to this paragraph if Lessee shall be in de

fault of any term, condition, or agreement set forth in thie
lease t

B. Upon the offer of a ùhird party to lease any portion of
the premises, described on ExhibÍt B, Lessor shall provide ten
(10) days wrÍtten not,ice to tessee setting forth t,he following:

(1) The identity and aclclress of the prospective Lesseei

(21 The portion of bhe leased premises which t,he third
party intends to lease from T,essor¡

( 3 ) The amount of rent,al, J.ease term, and any monetary

provisions in bhe proposed lease.

C. Lessee shall exerclse the right of firsÈ refusal ln
accordance with the identlcar terms, conditíons, and agreemenÈs

of the prospective Éessee on or before the explration of the
ten clay perfod by wrÍtten notice to Lessor. The failure of
Lessee to notlfy Lesaor of its electlon wltbin the ten day

period sball be conclusivety deemed a rejectÍon and termÍnation
of the right ot first refusal.

D. IJessee shall execute a lease agreement with Lessor not
later than 30 clays after notificatlon pursuant to subparagraph

c hereof. Failure of tessee !o execute a rease agreement, within
the 30 day term shalr be conclusÍvery deemecl a reJectlon and

termÍnatíon of the rÍght of first refusaL

6. Prtrr¡osas for lùhich Demised Premises to be Usetl . The

clemise¿l premises are to be used by tbe Lessee for the following
purposes only:

A. As the slÈe for an airplane hangar or hangars. The

rJessee shall have the right to sub-lease any part of the hangar
ptacecl on the dtemised premises. However, the r,essee shaLt

ensure thaÈ none of lts sub-tenants uses the demised premÍses in
a manner whlch wourd constÍtute a vioration of any of the
provisÍons of this lease or any other lease or contract to which



i' - /"'
-5-

the Lessor is a party or the field ruLes anil regulaùions of the

Lessor.

B. Maintenanee and servicing for only t,hose aircraft owned

by the Lessee andl stored Ín the Lesseers hangar.

C. The storage of fuels on the clemised premises as long

as Lessee has fuel storage facÍlities approvecl by Lessor. In

no event shall this paragraph be construed to allow the retail
or wholesale sale of fuels or aviaÈÍon petroleum products.

D. Any other uses for whlch the Lessor gives Íts written
approval.

7 ProhibiÈecl Uses of Èhe Denisecl Premíses. fhe demised

premises shall noÈ be used by the Lessee for any of the following
purposês:

A. Passenger service and comnercial operations.

8. SaIe of aÍrcraft, and accessories.

C. Engaging in the business of aviatÍon instruction.
D. Maintenânce and servicing of aircraft, except as

pernitted pursuant to paragraph 6(B).

E. The sales of aviation fueLs or geÈroleun products.

F. Tie-down of aircraft which may hinder or obstruct in
any manner whatsoever the safe landing, taxiÍng or take-off of
aircraft, from tbe publlc landing area of the Tulip City Airport,
whlch may interfere wfth the proper use of the field by others,
or which may be objectfonable to the City of Holland acting
through it,s AÍrport Advisory Committee. Further violations,
after due warning, shalI be considered a breash of the condltÍons
of this Lease by the Lessee, at the electíon of the Lessor.

G. Any form of fixed base operation.

8. Coniluct of OperaÈÍons on Demised premÍses. In ite use

of the demised premises the Lessee wtrr honor the forrowing reguire-
nents and regulatlons¡

A. The Lessee shalL noÈ consent to any unlawful use of
t'he demÍsecl prenlses, nor permit any such unlawfur use thereof.

:$
t)a
,¿

#
È
'ir:
'.'l.

p.



-6-

B. The Lessee further agrees tha¿ all Federal' StaÈe ancl

local laws wirl be observed, incrucring the rures ancr regurations

of Èhe Fedleral and State Aeronautical authorfties ancl the local

governing auÈhoritY.

C. The operations of the Lessee¡ its employees' invitees

andl those ctoÍng business wiùh it shall be conöucted in an orderly

and proper manner anit so as not to annoy' dÍsturb or be offensive t

o others at the Tulip City Airport' The Lessor shall have the

rigtrt to cornplain to the tesgee as to the demeanor' conduct and

appearance of the Lesseers employees' invitees anil those doing

business wiÈh it, whereupon the Lessee will take aII steps

necessary to remove the cause of the conplainÈ'

D. All rules and regulations of the State Ffre Marsball

shall be cornplietl with by the T'essee in 'the con¿luct of his

operations on the clomised premises'

E. The f,essee agrees to pay all taxes' assessments' license

feesoroÈberchargesleviedorassessedonthebuildings,
strucÈuresortheircontentsduringghetermofthisLeaseor
any renewal thereof.

F' The LesEee shall pay for waterr 9âsr sewer charges ancl

electrical current, telephone service and ott¡er utillties

utllized or consumed on the de¡nlsed premises'

G. Ehe Lessee agrees at all times to keep the cte¡nised

premisesinaneatrcleanandorderlycondÍtion'freeofweedst
rubbishoranyunslghtlyaccumulationsofanynaturewhalsoever.

H. TJessee acknowledges that Lessor has or wiII enter into

aFixedBaseoperatorAgreement(DAgreenent||)fortheoperation

of Èhe airport. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreenent' the

Fixed Base operator fs reguireél to provide snowplowÍng ên'l

Iandscaping ma.intenance on the afrportt and is auLhorized to

charge thiúd parties for such services pursuanÈ to the terms

of, the Agreement. Lessee agrees to pay a)'l charges' fees' and

costs Incurredt by tbe operator relating to the snowplowing and

,É

.ti

E.:i:':;

)!/.



'!t,

,lr:
ü.

landscaping maintena".. ,rr-]reas reasecr to Lessee pursuant to
this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, tessee shall not
be prohibited, form performing land,scaping and maintenance in
add.ition to the services provitled by the operator pursuant to
the Agreement.

9. Builtlinqs. The lJessee may, at íts own expense, with
the prÍor wr'itten consent of the Lessor, make alteratlons, adlditions
and improvémenÈs Èo the demised prenises, incruding the construction
of a separate buÍld.ing or buildings, hangars, and addttions to
presently plannetl buildings. Atr said alt,eratlons, buildings, hangars

or improvemencs shal1 be ancl re¡nain the personal property of the
Lessee throughout the tern of this Agreement, or any exÈension thereof.

The Lessee shall have the privilege of ie¡noving any or all
of said buildings, alterations, additions, hangars. or inprovements

placed on the demised premisee, at any time prior to the expiration
of thls Éease, or any extension thereof, providing that on such

removal Èhe fJessee shall restore the prenríses to a gradted and level
condlitÍon and of neat appearance. No buildingr, hangarr or other
improvements may be removed by the r,essee until all renls due have

been paid to date. rf the Lessee does not Íntend to re¡nove the

aforesaÍd alterations, aclditions, hangars, buildings icr improvenents

prÍor to the encl of the tern of thís Lease, it shall gÍve written
notice of this fact to the Lessor at least sixty (50) days prior Èo

such t,ernination, in which case the Lessor may at Íts dlscretÍon
order the Lessee to remove any or all such alterations, adldlilions,
hangars, buildings or improvements. Failure on tbe part of the

Lessee t,o compry wlth such order to remove shalr entiÈte the r¡essor

to cause to have any or all said alt,eratÍons, additions, hangaïs,

buÍldlngs or improvements removed, ancl the cos! of such removal- shart

become the obligation and the responsibility of the f,essee, or at the

discretÍon of the Lessor, the alteralions, additfons¡ hangars,

buildings, or improvements may be allowed to remain ln place and

shall t,hereupon become the property of the Lessor. Upon surrendering



ø

,îr.l
t;
tt--

-8-
the demised premises for any reason what,soever¡ the Iressee shall
surrender possession to the rJessor free and clear of any encumbrances

whatsoever, excepting those placed thereon by the Lessor.

10. Access Roade, llaxi and Ramp Areas. Lessor and

Lessee hereby acknowled.ge that a portíon of the premises may not
incrude r,esêeers access road to the nain servlce road and teseee,s
taxÍways ancl ramp areas. Lessee hereby agrees that it shalr be

reisponsible for all maintenance, upkeep, and repair of its access

roads¡ taxiways, and ramp areas for all portions located outside the

leased. premises. Àrr maintenance, upkeepr anil repair shall be in
accordance with any federalr state, or local requirenente. In the
event T,essee should fafl to comply wÍth the provlslons of this
paragraph, Leesor may einter on the accesg roads, taxiways, and ramp

areae to perform necessary mal.ntenance, upkeep, and repalr and asEess

Lessee the cost therefor.
II. Comoliance sith andl Recula tíons. The f,essee

shall construct all buÍldings and all improvements thereto, in
accordance with all applicable state and. clty orillnances, and

regulations adopted for the operation of Tullp City Airport by the

City of Holland, including regulatÍons of t.he Mlchigan Fi¡e Marshal

and any other applicable sÈaÈe, county, anil local laws, ordlnances,

anil regulations.

It' is further understood and agreed that at any tirne durlng

such occupancy or the construction of said buildÍngs or i¡nprovements

tbereof, and also upon their completíonr saíd premisesr buildingE,

and improve¡nenls located thereon, shall be subject to the inspecÈion

and approval of the Michigan Stsate Fire Marshal and the City o.f

Hollancl, and any other representatives of Ínterested State¡ coüDt1l¡

or local governments as specifiecl above.

The tessee agreeE, durlng the occupancy of the demised

premises, Èo comply lrith all laws, J.ocal , State, ancl Fecleral, lncludlng

all butltling codes, pertaining to sanitationr health, police and

flre protection. In the event it is necessary for f,essee Èo connect



#
'9.
tri

þ

-9-
to water and sewer facílities or conneetions for electricar or gas

service, or for the cost of exÈendring said utrrities, t,he Lessee
shall be responsible for the cost of the connection and utility
instaltations.

The r.essee shall be responsible for the cost of connections to
existing facílities, inclucling storm and sanitary sewers, electrical
lines, water and gas, and for the cost of extendlng said utilftles
from their preaent, termination point outside the demised, premises
to any building or buildlngs upon the demísed premlses.

L2. rnsurance. rnsurance for ross by fÍre and extended
coverage shall be kept and maintained on all buildings and inprovements
rocated on the demlsecl by the rreasee in such amount and with such

insurance company or conpanles as are a¡rproveil by the Michlgan
rnsurance Bureau. rn the event of loss by fire, hafl, or windstorm,
the proceeils from such insurance shalt be used by the r,essee to
repair or replace such loss, or the TJessee shall dte¡nolish the building
'or improvernants so ilamaged and restore the premÍses to a graaed revel
andl neat appearance.

' Further, the Ledsee shall procure, keep and maintain durÍng
the term of this rJease, or any renewal tbereof, insurance policies
providing public rlability and property ¿tamage insuranoe of not less
than $100r000.00 for property damage anél of not less than

sr00 '000.00,/$300'000.00 for public riabiriÈy. such policiee sharr
cover losses caused by the act,s and omissions of the Lessee, its
agents anól emploiees, or by the operatlon of vehicles or other
equiprnent owned or operated by the r,essee, lts agents or emproyees.

The certificate of rnsurance of Lesseê shalr name the rJessor as an

additional insured for reguired coverage for publio liability, and

a certificate of rnsurance shall be fÍledl with the r¡essor upon the
comrnencement of this lease. As to arl lnsurance reguÍrement und.er

this crause, lhe lessee shalr give Èhe r,eseor sufficient evidence
Ín wríting Èhat each and every such cgverage has been issued by an

insurance company or companies aa are approveil by the Michigan



#
!)
,r:.
a_

-10-
Insurance Bureau. The Lessee agrees to defenil anil holil the Lessor

harmless frorn any claimr suiù, or processes of any nature, incluiling

attorney fees and costs, whatsoever arising out of this Lease or any

extensÍon thereof. Said agreement to clefend ancl hol-dl harmless shall

be in effect even though the Lessee has obtained the various insurance

policj.es hereinabovê stated.

L3. Conpliqnce tlíth Fg9eral Agreements. This lease shall

be subordlnate to ttre provislons of any exísting or future agreement

between the Lessor and the United States relaÈive to the operation

or malntenance of the Airport,r the exeeutlon of which has been or nay

be reguiredl as a condltion prececlent to ttre expenditure of Federal

funds for the dlevelopment of tbe Airportr Providlecl, however, that

any right, title, andl interest of the Lessee in the demiseil premises

shall not be taken without just co¡npensation therefor being first made.

A. This Lease shall be non-exclusive anil subordlnate to

the provislons of any existing or future agreemenL between Èhe

Lèssor and the United Statee, relative Èo the operatlon or

maíntenance o€ the airport, the execuùlon of wblch has been or

may be required as a condition preceilent to the expendlt'ure of

Fetleral funils for the developnent of tbe alrporÈ.

B. The T,essor reserven the right to further tlevelop or

improve the landling area of the airporÈ as lt sees fit regardless

of the élesires otr views of the Lessee, anô without interfererice

or hindrance.

c. lhe Lessor reserves the right to take any action ít

considers necessary to protect t'he aerial approaches of the

airport, agalnst obstrucÈion' together with the rlght to plevent

Èhe f,êssee from erecting or permltting to be erecteal any builtling

or other stïucture on the airport whÍch, ln the reasonable

opinlon of the Lessor¡ woulél limit the usefulness of the afrport

or constitutes a hazard to aircraft.
14. Riqht of Wav for Inqress and Bcrress. Parkinq. Fencinq.

A. The Lessee, its agents, licenseee, lnvitees, sub-

tenantê and employees t.o IJessee shall have the non-exclusive



.!

,i

t -tt-
use of any roads or service drives on Tulip City Airport for
purposes of ingress and egress to the ilemised premises.

B. The Lessee shall provitle parking facilities upon the

demÍsed, premises with Èhe Tressee being responsible for all
maintenance¡ all snow removal, and repair reìaÈlng to such

parking facllltiee.
C. fn case it shall become necessary to construct any

fences for the protecElon of the public using the Tulip City

Airport as a public facility, or said const,ruction is dleemed

necessary by the T,essor to preserve substantÍal uniformity of

appearance of alI bulldings aÈ'Tulip City airporE, ot to provide

prlvacy t,o the Lessee at the demised, premises, or 1f Federal

authorities required Lhe construction thereof, such fence shall

be erected at the Lesseers expense, and only after approval and

consent ls had from tbe Lessor a6 to locatÍon and tyPe of

fencing. Upon the giving of noÈice by the T,essor t'o the Lessee,

in wrlting' requesting that fencing be erected on the demised

premiaes or surrounding any portion thereofr the Lessee ehall

erect such fencing as soon aE poesible and maintain the same in

gooil repair and conclition at all times ln accordance with the

request nade by the Lessor. If the Lessor, pursuant to the

terms of thls clausêr reguests the Lessee to construct fencin.g

and subseguent thereto requests the sane of a tenant or lessee

of lanil contiguous to the demised premises, the Lessor agrees

to order such latter tenant or lessee to reinburse the Lesseè

herein I/2 of, the coet of such portlon of fencing erecled by

the Lessee whtch is utilizecl by such latÈer tenanÈ or lessee

in complylng wlth said request of the Lesaor.

15. Condlitions Upon IIse. of The PremiseE. The I¡essee shall

have the rlgh! Èo erect a building and/ot occupant identification

dlgn upon the exterior of the builtlings to be constructecl on the

clemiseél premieee or in tt¡e f,ront yar'd area thereof. No other signs

or adverÈislng uraÈter shall be paintecl, postedl or cìisplayeal uPon any



ü;,

â;
¡i
t.

.. -r2-
portion of the dêmised premisesr includling upon the buildings and

structures placed thereonr wlthoUt the written consent of the Lesaort

which consent shall not be unreasonably wtthheld'

TheLeEsorherebyagreesthatthel.esseemayplacea
inortgage upon any and all bulldlngs to be locateil on the demlsedl

premises for the purposes of securing a loan or loans, and that the

Le,ssee (or Mortgagor) shall notify the Lessor in writing of the name

and address of the mortgagee and the terms of the morcaage prÍor to

theplacementthereof.Anynotlceofde€aultlnthetermsofthe
Lease served upon the Lessee by the Lessor sha1l also be served upon

the mortgagee, and saicl mortgagee shall have a like oppcirtunity to

cure such defect as the T,essee may have.

16. laFe--Rgptql Pavnent's' If, during the term of bhi6

Agreementr tbe T,essqe shaLl be late in making rental payments as

provided herein, the Lessee shall pay, and the Lessor shall receiver'

a service charge of one and one half percent (I.5t) per month of the

late rental palrment until said amount is paid' Ehis shall be in

addition to anil shall in no way affect any other rights reserved to

the T,essor or exlsting in the Lessor by virtue of the laws of the

State'of Michigan.

L7. Ternrination, CanceLlatL-gps, ForfeÍtuÉe' The lJessor

ancl the Lessee agree that thts TJease shall terminate at the expiration

of the term herein specified. Further, that uPon the breach by the

T.easee of any of the ¿erms and condltions herein, the tessor shall

give wrítten notice to the T,essee within thirty (30) days from the

date of such breacf¡ to cure such breacb and lf such bréach is not'

curecl by the Lessee wlthin thirty days of the date such notice 1s

received by the Leseeer this T,ease may be deemed forfeited by the

Lessee and cancelled by the Lessorr üPoll the recelpt by the f'essee

of not,lce in writing of such cancellation from tbe T,eEsor. Lessee

shatl pay reasonable costs anil aètorneys fees incurrect by T'essor in

connection with the terminalion, cancellatlon, anil forfeit'ure of the

Lea6e.



i¡:
lk
?¡;

.fr
i€,'

_1 3_

18. Notice of Termination - Lessor. In addltíon to the

provisions of this Agreenent relating i.o termination as are Eet forth

in Paragraph 16 hereof, the Lessor may terminabe and cancel this

lease if it is unable to operate Tulip city Airport and is required

to reimburse the Uníted states of Arnerica, the State of Michigan,

or such other federal or state ent,ltles or agencies for monies

received or accepted for the acguisition of Tulip City Airport.

Notice'of terminatfon shall be qent at least 180 clays prior to the

effective date of the cancellation Èo Lessee. Upon explration of

the notÍfication, the rental amount, paicl during the final year of

Èhe lease shall be prorated anil the balance reimbursed to the Lessee.

Lessor shall íncur no further liabflity to Lessee¡ and this Agreenent

shaI1 be null and voicl.

Upon termination pursuanL to thls earagraph, the Lessor

grants to Lessee the right to purchaee the demised premises, includlng

a non-exclusive right of ingress and egress to the demised premises

at the fair marke! value as deternÍnedl by T,essor and Lesgee. The

purchase by Lessee from Lessor shall be permitted only if aII of the

fotlowing conditions are met:

A. IJessee shall not be in default pur8uant to any of the

terms, conditioßsr and agreements of this T,easei

B. The right to purchase is dleÈermined to be valicl and

permitted purÊuant to the rules and regulations of the Federal

Aviation Administration (FAA), MichÍgan Aeronautics Commission

(MAC)r or any other fedleral, sÈater or local agency empoweËed

to adminlster anit regulate Tulip City Airport¡

C. Notice mus! be given by Lessee to I,essor at least 90

days before the termlnatlon of the lease term;

D. The purchase by Lessee from T,essor mugt, in all respectst

comply with the rules anél regulat,ions of the FAA, MAC' or any

other federal, state, or local agency empowered to admlnister

and regulate TuliP CitY AirPort.



fr.
tu
?t.4

' -14

19. Time of the Essence. It is further understood and

agreed that time is of the essence of this Lease.

20. Emínent Domain. If all of any portion of the demÍsed

premises shall be taken by any governmental authority under power

of emlnent domain:

A. AIl danages awarded as compens,ation for the taking or

dinÍnution in value lo the buildlngs or improvements on the

clemÍsed premlses constructed by the Lessee ehall belong to and

be the properUy of the Lessee and. any nortgagee thereof. The

Lessee assumes full responsfbility for taking whatever action

he deems necessary to protect his int,erests in any proceeding

for the condemnation of any parL of hls leasehoLd estate hereln.

B. If only a part of the demised premises shalt be so taken

or condemned, the Lessee shall at, its expense. proceed to make

a conplete architectural unit of the remainder of the bulldings
on the demised premlses; ani[, there shall be an abatement of

the rent,al thereaft,er to be paid hereunder, corresponding wlth

the proportion whlch t,he value of the portion of the demised

premises so taken may bear to the value of the entire demísed

prenises at the time of such taking.

C. If more than fifty percent (50t) of Èhe demised premiees

shall be so taken, the Lessee may. at lts option terminate thiE

Lease and all obligations hereunder.

2L. Quíet EnjoynenÈ. The I,essor covenants that the l¡essee,

upon þayÍng the afo¡emenÈÍoned rentais and performing aIl the

covenants on íts part to be performedl hereunder, shall anël may

peacefully and quletly have, hold¡ and enJoy t.he demised premises

for the term hereof.

22, ÀssÍqnment of T,esseg Interest. It is agreed.thaÈ, the

Lessee shalt not assign or transfer this Lease, including the buildlngs

or improvements thereon (except in conJunction with the sale gf all
of the tegseere assets located on the demised premises)r withoul the

wrltten consent and approval of the Les6or, which Ehall not be

unreasonably withhelil.



#

r,;

-15_

23. Memorandum of f,ease. The Lessor and the Lessee shall
execute a memoranaum or this Lease for purposes of pubric record.
TheT,essee shall bear all costs wlÈh respect to preparing and record,ing

saÍd memoranilum.

24. Successors antl Asslqns. The covenantsr eonditions,
and agreements maéle anil enÈered int,o by the parties hereto, are
hereby decrared binding upon the successors ancl. assigns of the Lessor

and. upon the heirs, adminlstrators, executors, successora anð,/ot

aésigns of the fJessee.

25. Arbitration. All claims or clisputes arising out of
or relating lo this r,ease shalL be settled by arbitration in accordance

wÍth Èhe qommercial arbitration rules of the Amèrican Arbitration
soclety then apprying. Notice of demand for arbitratíon sharl be

filed in writlng with the other party to the agreement and wlth the

American Arbitratlon AssocÍation, ancl shall be made wíthln a

reasonable Èime afÈer the. craim or díspute has arisen. The award

rendered by tbe arbltrators shall be finat, and judgment nay be

entered upon it in accordance with appllcable law ln any court having
jurisdiction thereon.

Except as written by consent of the person or entfty sought

to be joined, no arbitration arising out of or relating to the Leasë

shal1 include, by consolidation, joioder, or in any other mannetr,

any peraon or entiÈy not a party to the Lease, unless it ís sbown at
the tlme the demand for arbítration is filed that:

A. Such þerson or entity is substantially involved ín a

common guestíon of fact or lawi

B. The presence of such person or entity is requírecl if
eomplete relief is to be accord,ed in the arbitration; and

C. The lnterest or responsibitity of such person or entity
in the matter is not. lneubstant,ial.

The agreenen! of the parÈÍes to arbitrate claims anil

dlsputes shaIl be sþecÍflcaIly enforceable under the prevalling
arbitration law.



ilt
f.

' i -16-

Pencling final dlecislon of the arbltrator or arbitrators,
the parÈies shall proceed dlligentLy with the performance of thelr

obtigations under tbls I,ease.

26. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the

entire underetandfng between the parties, and as of its effectÍve clate

supersedes all prÍor indepentlenè agreements between the partiee

covering the subject matter thereof. Any change or modiflcation

hereof must be ln writing, signed by both parties.

27. Severabil!!¡. If a provision hereof shall be finally

decl-ared voLd or 1llegal by any courÈ or actmlnistrative agency havini

jurlediction, the entlre lease shall not be void, but tbe remaining'

provisions shalt continue in effect as nearly as possibl-e fn accordanca

wíth the orlginat intent of the parties.

28. Notice. Any notice given by one party to the other

in connection wlth this.lease shall be in writlng and shall be sent

by registered mail, return receipt requesled, wlth postage prepaÍd to:

City of Holland
ATTENTION: City I'tanagerrs Of f lce
cíty Hall
HollanClr MI 49423

Prince CorporaÈion
ATTENTION¡ Edgar Prince
WÍndcrest Drive
Holland, MI 49423

Notices shall be deemeil to have been received on tl¡e date

of the recelpt as shown on the return recelpt.

29. Eeadinqs. The headings used on Èhls Leaçe are intended

for convenlence of reference only, and do not deflne or lÍmit the æ
scope or meanÍng of any provision of this lease.

30. GovgrnÍnq f,as. This Lease is to be eonstrueil and

governed in accordance with the laws of the state of Michigan.

IN VIITNESS WIIEREOF, the T,essor and the l¿essee have slgneil

and sealed this Lease the day and year flrsÈ above written.
LESSOR:

CITY OFIN THE PRESENCE OF:

By

D.

am

v

or



w.

tn

i
JL

\ -I7-

I,E9SEE ¡

PRINCE CORPORÀTTON

It CÁlrn,Y.

ce Fred¡lcks

t-Ll/23/86



PAOUÊTTE

t-¡¡to srJRvEYoft
N0. .

16938

'ft
lL
,li
!.

.'à.It, t
t.-

L' L l-r.t

LOCAîIOÌi:

GERTIFIED TO:

vtl,J JJ vt,
(LEASE 

.PROPERIT)

t.J U luV Jt t

PRINCE HA}¡GAR

SURVEYoR'S CERTIFICATE: r hereby cerrtfy thsÈ t heve Éurveyêal the lanil hereon

dellneated. and Èt¡a¡ the raÈlo of closure on the unadJusred ffeld observaÈl.one nas less
thân l/5OOó, and ¡hat all of the requfrenetrts of P.A. 132 1970 have been cooplfed çlth.

TULIP CIIT AIRPORT
HOLLAND, MICUIGAN

CITT OF HOLIÁIiD'
rtoLLAND, MTCBIGA¡| 49423

lll

PAI'L

i

LS. 10938

Iêl¿c loGLl
DAlE

DESCRIHilON: 4&9:: A PART oF rllEN t/2 oF rHE sl{ t/4, sEc' 8' T4N Rl5l¡' 9lry-oF----'coî-u'iõúTpEscRrBED Às coMMENCTNc A1 THE u l/4 coR.r sAID-!!c:8,^THENCE
ALoNc rltE wll¡Ne s¿ro sEc. B¡ 711.97 FEET, TxENcE t{ 88'-08r-00rr Er 697.33.
Bc-59'-03" Er 375.90 reer, rúr$ce s llo-oo'-57" 8f 80.00 FEET T0_1I!!9I¡I-0I
E CONTINUINC'9 11r-9¡r-57ri E, 269.34 FEET, TIIENCE N 78o-59t-03n E 350.00
c-00r-57' v 269.34 rEer, tnnÑcu s 78"-59'-03" rd 350.00 FEET 10 THE 4IÈIg

BEGINNI.NG.

coNlAL\rNG 94,269 S.F.
oR 2.t6 ACRES

w. t/4 coR. sec' g
T4^J, ça¡5\^,,

d e/P

o
\
l.

3

I
ut

(

ì
0
l.
0
I
I
v1

4I
sJ

t¡t

B

ol

0

a

t
vt

t!
ì
j

3

(4

¡0to
o
0
t

Oo

-o

I -o 2
a

Q= t/2" ,RE-Roe w/c^P (cts tôeta)

h

N

tmrT$0R111-BOR1A, INC.
3340 Ranger Boad
Ianstng, l4lehigan 48)06

'I
I

.t

(

I

EXHIBIT À



N0.
16938

PAOUETTE

suRvEtoß

N
o

f\)
8\
o

o

PO. e.

. .a'þ' tí'l' I ,tt' I A'I'L' U.tI ' ò'U ßV L' T

!¿,.
A
'tl

"'.{:i
:¿:,-,

(''
*

LOCATIO}Í:

CERTIFIED TO:

(LEASE IROPERTY)

TT'LIP CI1T AIRPORÎ
UoLLAND, ¡tICHlcAN

CITII OF HOLI.AND
UOLIÁND. MICIIICAII tt9423

PAT'L

PRINCE COR¡ORATION (FUTURE)

I,llndcreet Drlve
Holland, lltchlgan 49423 i

I

I

I
r
:

SURVEY0R'8 CERTIFICATE: t hereby certtfy rtur r h¡ve surveyed the lånd hereon
dellneåted, and ÈhaÈ tbe rstLo of closure on !hê ünsdJustêd fleld obeenallons uae leas
than l/5000, and chat sll of the requLreomts of P.A. 132 1970 have beer couplled r¡lth.

DESCRIPIION: PARCEL "c": A PART o¡ rHE N l/2 or rHE s'¡i t/4r sEc. 8, 14N Rt5H, crlÏ oF
HOLLAND, ALLECA¡{ C0., }ftCH., DESCRTBED AS CoMMENCING A1 lHE T r/4 COR., SAID SEC.8) THENCE

s olc-52'-00r' E, ALONG THE t{ LrNE SÀr.D SEC. 8, 71t.97 FEETI TEE}|CE N 88ô-08r-00r' E, ó97.33
FEEÎ¡ THENCE N 78'-59r-03:t E. 725,9L FEET, THENCE S llc-00r-5;" E, 80.00 FEEI! TO TllE @
.0J._!4.1!{Mj lrrENCE CoNTTNUTNG S 11'-00r-57" E, 269.34 FEET, ÎÉENCE N 78o-59r-03r'E 200.00
FEET, THENCE N 11"-00r-57" l¡ 269.34 FEEI, ITENCE S 78"-59r-03'L' 200.00 FEET¡ T0 T8E3W
OF BEGINNING

coNlArNrNc 53,868 S.F.
0R 1.24 ACRES

w. tl4 co=. Seê. I
'T4 N¡ R l5l^'/

7ø <9

R/ú8o

No

RLS. 16938

o
l'^

f
i
rt
tu
h
ot

o
o

o
q.
I

ur

n

(

69?.33

I lNÇH = /oo FE ÉT

to

59 LO 3

o = t/a" RE-R-ùD vcA.P (Æ.tç |aeæ)

¿-

f

I

I
J

l

n

N
ì

3

l{urrl{oRTlt-DoRTA, rNC.
334O Ran6,ar Road
Ianslng, ttl'ehlgan 4890ó

IEXHIBIT B



04687 4.1 647 60 #1359667 4-l

EXHIBIT C

ParcelC/Hangar3Lease

-9-



? RECEIVED

MAY r 01989LAND LEASE

PRINCE CORP.between

CITY OF HOLLAND

and

PRINCE CONPOBATION

THIS LEASE is enLered ínbo bhÍs 7il a^y of FEBRUARyT 1989, by and

beteteen THE crrY 0F HoLLAND, a ounlcfpar corporaLlon of 0Ltawa and Arlegan

Counties, Mi.ohlgan (hereinafLer referred to as trlessorn) and PRINCE

CORPORATrON, a Mlohigan corporablon, of One prfnce cenüer, Holrand, Michigan

(heretnafter referred to as trLeeeeetr).

WITNESSETH 3

For and 1n oonslderallon of the nubuar. covenants herernafLer

provlded, the Leesor and Lhe Legeee agree es followe:

l. Premlsee Leased. The Leeson hereby reases to the Lessee the

forrowing descrlbed prenfses, belng a part of t,he Tutip clty Alrport, looated

in Lhe county of Allegan, süaLe of Michfgan, whlch 1s regarly deecrtbed on ühe

abtached Exhlbit A.

safd desorlbed prenlseE shdll herelnafLer be referred Lo,as Lhe

rrdemieed premleesrr.

The Lessor HanranLs bhat 1t ls bhe owner of the de¡ofsed prenfees

and that r¿ does ln facL poesess Lhe legal auLhoriLy to rease the eeme fn the

nânner provided hereln.

2. lerm. The Leseee sharl have and hord che demised premrses

for a bern begtnnlnþ on Lhe ?bh day of Febnuary, 1989, and exptrlng on the 2Jrd

day of Octoben, 2036r lnolusive (unless sald term shall be sooner leroinaLed ae

//.
.ij

.a
.'4

-t-



'i' "b

herelnafLer provided, pursuant ùo Paragraph 16 or 17), upon the terns,

covenants and condlLlons herelnafber oonLained.

The Leesee shall. have ihe prlvllege of uslng, fon t,he tern of thls

Lease or any extenslone bhereof, fn cornruon wilh oLhens and lhe publlc, the

publlc flylng fleld know as TuLip Ciby Ainport, subject Èo the oharges, rules

and Pegulations governing such fielcl fsgued by the Fedenal ancl State

Ae¡"onautlcal Agencles and by the City of Holland, it being expressly underetood

bhat thfe privilege covere lhé enLfne period of the lease and extenelons

thereof as herelnafler eet forbh.

3. optfo-n_to LeJew. The Lerm of thle leaee may be exùended for

an a<idiffonal tero of 50 years under the following teros, condltfons, and

agreements :

A. Notice of Lhe ex€nclse of Uhis opLion uust be given by Lessee

to Lessor noL rese than r80 days prion to the expfratlon of the lnl[fat
t,erm ¡

B. LeeÊee sI¡aII not be permiLLed to renell Lhis lease if Lessee

shall be in default of any term, condftlon, or agneenent sei forth fn this

leas e;

C. The rene!,al of bhis lease shall be subJect bo negotiaLions

betv¡een Lessor and Lessee regardlng tha renLar io be pald by Lessee to

Lessor durlng Lhe renewal Lerm (howeven, in no event shall the rent to be

pald dunlng Lhe renelrar tern be le,es Lhan the amount paid at lhe enct of
the tnibiat ùer¡¡ ) i

D. The reuoval, replacenenL, on restonatlon of the hangar

facllltiee and bufrdings incidenbaLly nelabed thene¿o looated on the

demieed preülses; and suoh oLher tenne, condfLfons , ånd âgreeuenüs

neceeeitated by the extension of bhe Lease tern.

4. Rent+I.. Fo¡^ t,he initlal period begÍnnlng on Lhe Zlh day of
Februanyr 1989, and endfng on the 2Jrd day of october, 1991, bhe Lessee shall
pay to the Lessor as renlal for Lhe de¡uised premfsee the sum of F0UBTEEN

THOUSAND FIVE HUNDNED EIGHIY-FIVE AND 5?/IOOTHS DOLLARS ($I4,585.57), PAYAbIC ¡

ln the amounL of THREE THOUSAND EïGHT H0NDRED AND ELEVEN AND gTltoo¿hs DOLrlnSl'

lt
::

'r'



.;,

($31811.97)r fon the perlod to october 23,1989 and payable 1n annual renLal

payments thereafter of FIVE THoUSAND THREE HUNDRED AND EIcHTY-Sil AND 80/f00THS

DOLLARS ($5,386.80) each, Lhe flrsL paymenü Lo be made on the date of the

execuLion of Lhle Iease, and th.e subçequenL annual rental paynents to be nade

on t,he 23rd day of October ln eacÌ¡ sriocesstve year of safd fnlttal peniod, at

Ctly HaII, Holland, Mlchlgan.

It, ts undersbood and agreed bhâL the above-sbaLed annual rental

payment ls based upon a toLal renüal area of T4,¡168 square feet ab bhe raùe

of $.0723 per square foot.

Cornmenctng on october 23,199I, a base rental raLe of $.07e3 pen

square fooÈ mulLiplied by lhe aggregaLe land area of t,he demlsed premlsee shalL

be adJusLed ùo bhe amounL obLained by divfdtng lhe infbfal renLal by lhe

Cor¡sumer Price Index for Lhe monlb of ooLoben, 1986 ând murbtplylna Lhe

quoLfenL thereof by the lasL Consumer Prlce Index figures published immedlalely

precedlng 0oLober, 1991.

For each flve (5) year perlod Lhereafler, oommenolng on oolober 23,.

1996, the annual rental raLe patd pnfor Lo OcÈoben 23, f996 shall be adJuebed

fo the ar¡ounL obtalned by <llvldtng the inlblal renLa1 by Lhe Consuoer price

Index for the ¡lonlh of Ocüober 19B6 and mulbiplying the quotlenL thereof by the

lasl Consuner Pnfee Index figures publlshed immediabely preceding eaoh

sucoessfve five (5) year leaee.

For the purpose of thle Lease, Lhe Coneuners PnÍce Index means the

Index for trAll ftensrrfor (rrban llage Earnere and Clerlcal Workers CommodiLy

Groups for the Detrol! area as determlned by the unlted statee Department of

Labon, Bureau of StaLletfcs.

Shou1d fhe Unlted SLaLes GovernmenL revfee its prlce lndex at any

tlne, lhe parbles hereto wfrr forro}l such suggesLlone ae Lhe govennment nay

lseue for maklng an arlthmetlcal changeoven fron one fndex to another. Should

the prlce lndex, be who1ly dlecontfnued, Lhen lts euccessor on the n¡og! nearly

comparable eucceseor index thenelo, adjusLed baok Lo June, I}TO, shall be used.

5 ConstnucLfon of and Access Road. Leesee shaII

conslruct an alrprane hangar, o¡r an addlt,ion to lts presenÈ hangar, on the

;t
,h
't.
.4,

'4

-3-



demieed prernises on or before flve (5) years fro¡n the dabe hereof. Lessee

shall arso be responslble Lo exlend uhe roadlray access road aL lts expense Lo

tl¡e East end of bhe demieed premlses, Lo be oonetructed ln accordance wit,h the

sLandards of, and aL bhe Lime, nequlred by Leseor.

6, Purooses for l,lhich Demised Premises to be Used. The demfsed

pnenlses are Lo be used by lhe Lessee for the foltowing punposes only:

A. Ae Lhe sile for an airplane hangan on hangans or an addltlon Èo

Lesseere presenL hangar on adJofnlng rand. The Lessee shalr heve the

rlghl to eub-lease any parL of bhe hangar praced on the demtsed preufeee.

However, the Lessee shall ensure Lhat none of lbs eub-tenante uses the

denised prernJ.ses in a manner whlch woulcl consiLule a vlolation of any of

[he provlslons of Lhis lease or any othen leage on coo¡ract to l¡hloh the

Leesor ls a panty or the field rures and regulattons of t,he Lessor.

B. Maintenanoe and servrcrng for only Lhose arroraft owned by lhe

Lessee and sLored fn the Lesseere hangar.

c. The sLorage of fuere on t,he deoised premrees as rong as.Lessee

has fuel- sLonage faclllüfes appnoved by Leseor. rn no event ehaLl this
paragrapb be construed to alrow ùhe reball or wholesaLe sare of fuels or

aviaLion pebroleuû produoLs.

D. Any oLher uees for which the Leeso'gives lts wrltten appnovar.

7, ProhfbiLed Uses of the Demis Premlses. The demlsed

prenÍees eharl noL be used by ¿he Lessee for any of Lhe followfng purpoees:

A. passenger senvice and commercfal operaLlone.

B. SaLe of alncrafL and accesgories.

C. Engagfng ln Lhe buslness.of avlablon instruotlon.
D. Maintenance and servlofng of aircraft, excepL as perüitted

pursuant Lo panagraph 6(B).

E. The sales of aviabfon fueLs or petnoleun pnoducts.

F. Tre-down of arrcrafr whioh may hinden or obsiruct in any manner

whaLsoever Lhe safe randÍng, Laxtlng or take-off of alncraft fron the 
;i

pub)'lc landing area of Lhe Tulrp crLy Arrport, whlch may rnberfere wrth',i

-4-

.9.



z:,'

bhe proper uge of the fleld by others, on whlch roay be obJectlonabJ.e to

bhe Ciby of HoIland act,lng thnough lUs Airpori Advleony Co¡nlttee.

Fu¡Lher violations, afLer due wanning, shall be oonsidered a bneaoh of the

condftlons of thls Lease by Lhe Leesee, aL the eleotlon of the Lessor.

G. Any form of fixed base operatlon.

8. Conduot of Ope.fptions on Deurlsed Prenisee. fn ibs use of thê

denfsed prenlses Lhe Leseee û11I honon the followlng requÍrenents and

regulaL ions :

A. The Lessee shall noL coneent to any unlawful use of the de¡¡ised

prenlees, nor^ permib ar¡y such unlawful uee thereof.

B. the Lessee further agrees Lhat aII Federal, State and local

Iaws !¡iLl be observed, fncludlng Lhe nules and reguJ.ations of the Federal

and SLaLe Aeronautical authoribies and the local governing auùhonlty.

C. The openatlons of the Lessee, lLs employees, lnvlt,ees and thoee

doing buslness wiLh it shall be conducLed ln an onderly and pnopêr ¡¡anner

and so ag noL Lo annoy, dlsLunb or be offenslve ¿o oLherg aL the Tullp

ClLy AÍrport,. The Leesor shall have the rlghb ¿o conplain to bhe Lesgee

as io Lhe demeanon, conduct and eppearance of the Lesseerg erployees,

inviLees and those doing businese with il, whereupon the Lessee wÍrl take

all steps necessary Lo remove the cauee of Lhþ oonplafnt.

D. AIl rules and negulat,ions of the State Fþe Marshall shatt be

conplled wlùh by the Lessee in the conduc! of hfs openat,lons on the

denised prenlses.

E. The Lesgee agpees to pay aII baxes, assessments, Ilcense feee

or oLhen charges levied on assessed on the buildlngs, struct,unes or thelr
cont,enLe durlng the term of this Lease on any renewal thereof.

F. The Lessee shall pay for water, gas, sewe¡â chargee and

electrical ourrenb, telephone servlce and other utilbles utlltzed or

consumed on the demtsed preniges.

G. The Lessee agrees aL ail- tines Lo keep the demised p'enfses in

, a neaL, c1eân and ordenly condibl.on, free of weeds, rubbfsh or eny

unslghtly accumulations of any nature whaLsoever.

.R
.Ã

-6-



i¡

H. Lessee acknowledges Lhab Leseor has on witl enler lnto a Flxed

Base 0peraLor AgreemenL (t,AgreemenLn) for the operaLfon of Lhe alrport.

Pureuant to the terme of the AgreerûenL, Lhe Fixed Base Operâ¿op fs

requlred bo provide snowplowing ãnd landscaplng malnbenance on the

airpor¿, and !.s authorlzed bo charge lhlrd parbles for such servlcee

punsuanL bo the Lenns of Lhe AgreeroenL. Lessee agrees to pay all charges,

lees, and cosLe incunred by.Lhe Operalor relatlng to the snowplowing and

landsoaplng naintenance fon aneae 1éased Lo Lessee pursuanL to thfe Lease.

NobwiLheLanding bhe lonegoing, Lessee shall noL be prohibiLed fro¡¡

performing landscaptng and malntenance ln addltlon ¡o the servlces

provlded by Lhe 0penato'r pursuant Lo the Agfeement.

9. Bulldinee. The Lessee may, aL lts own expense wlth the pnlor

wribten consent of Lhe Leesor, make alteraLions, addiLions and lnproveuenbe to

Lhe de¡lised preruÍeee, lncludlng bhe construcblon of a separaLe bullding or

bulldi'ngs, hangare, and addittons to presenLly pranned bulJ.dlngs. AIr said

alleratÍons, buil{lngs, hangars or lnprovements shall be and remaln the

personar pnoperty of the Lessee bhroughout the teroe of this AgreemenL, or any

exLension thereof.

The Lessee sharl have the priviJ.ege of reoovlng any or all of eald

bulldings, aLùenaLions, addttfclns, hangars or lmprovenents placed on the

denÍsed prenises, aL any Llme prior to the explratton of this Leaee, on any

exLension Lhereof, provlding lhaL on such removaL ihe Lessee Eha1l resLore bhe

pnemlses to a gnaded and level condiLion and of neal appeanance. No butrdlng,

hangar, on oLher lmprovements nay be nemoved by the Lessee until aII ¡'enLs due

have been paid Lo dafe. ff the Leseee does noL ln¿end to renove the aforesald

arterabions, addiLlons , hangans , bulrdÍnge or rmprovemenLs prlor t,o the end of
¿he terû¡ of Lhie Leaeer it shal-L gtve wrttten noLdcê of thle fact to the Lessor

aL leaet elxty (60) days príor to suoh,Lernination, 1n whloh case the Lessor

nay aL Lts dfecrelion order the Leesee to remove any on atl such alter¿Llqns,
addlbfons, hangans, buirdings or inprovements. Farlure on the part of bhe

Lessee to comply wfLh such onden to remove shall enlllle the Lesson to cause to
have any or alr said arbepaLlons, additions, hangare, buirdlngs or lmprovenenlÊ

.l)

-6-



,i
,i.j

removed, and the ooe¿ of such removaL eharr beco¡¡e the obrlgation and the

nesponslbll.ily of the Lessee, or at the dlscrelion of bhe Lesson, the

alLerabtons, addlllons, hangarg, bulrdlngsr,on improvenents uay be allowed to
reúa1n fn prace anct sharl Lhereupon become the property of the Lessor. upon

surrenderlng the dernised premtses for any reâaon, whatsoever, Lhe Leesee shalr
surrender possession bo the Lessor free and clear of any encu¡obrances

whaLsoever, exceptfng lhose placed thereon by ¿he Lessor.

10. Áccess Taxlwavs and amD Areâs , Lessor and Lessee

hereby aoknowledge thab the preûlses lnclude Lesseers access road to the main

senvice road and Lesseers Laxiways and ramp areas. Lessee hereby agrees Lhat
1L sharl be responstbre fon aIr rualnLenance, upkeep, and repalr of rtg access

r"oader taxlways, and ramp areas for al.l portrons locabed on the reased
prenlsee. AIl malntenance, upkeep, and repeir shalL be in accondence wlt,h any

federal, staLe, or Local requirement,s. In Lhe evenb Legsee should fail to
corupry r¿lLh the pnovlsions of this panagraph, Lessor may enter on the aooees

roade, Laxiways, and namp aneas Lo penforn neoessary r¡aintenanoe, upkeep, and

repafr and assesg Lessee the cosb lherefor.

rr. compriance wlLþ Rules and ReguralÍons. The Lessee eharr
coneLruct all bulldfngs and alI improvemenLe LhereLo, in aooordance with all
appricabre sLate and crt,y ondinances, and regulaLlons adopted fon the operation
of rulip clÈy Airponr by Lhe city of Holrand, lncrudrng negurations of the
Michigan Flre Marshalr and any other appricabre sLaLe, oounty and rooar raws,
ordinances and regulatlone.

rt re furthen undersLood and agreed bhab at any trne dunlng such
occupancy or Lhe construotl0n of said bulldings or improvenents thereof, and

also upon thein compleLfon, sald pnemises, bulldlngs, and lnprovenente located
bhereoir, sharr be subJecL Lo the lnspection and apprqy¿r of the Mfohtgan state
Fire Marshall and bhe cit,y of Hol.Iand, and any othen repnesenbaLivei of
lnLenesLed sLaLe, county on rocâl governüenLs as specified above.

the Lesèee agrees, duntng the oocupancy of the denleed premises, lo
conpry wlth arr J.aws, rocal staLe, and Federar, lncludfng arr bufrdfng oodes,
pertalnlng uo sanltabionr healLh, pollce and flne proüection. rn ¿he evenL ii

fr

F;

L'v

-7-



is necessary for Lessee Lo connecL üo waLen and sewet'faoiLitfes or oonneoüions

fon electrical on gas service, on for the cost of extending sai.d utílit,ies, the

Leesee shall. be responelble for the costs of Lhê connecLion and utlllty

lns LaIlat, ions .

The Lessee shall be nesponsible for the cosL of connections bo

exislblog faciliLies, includlng slorrû and saniLany eewers, eleotrlcal lines,

waLer and gas, and for Lhe cosLs of extendlng said ui,lllties froû thelr pnesenb

Lerminatton poinL oubside Lhe demlsed pnemlses to any buflding or bufldings

upon fhe demieed prenlees.

L2. Insunance. Insurance for IosE by flre and extended coverage

shall be kepL and matntalned on all buÍIdings and. lmprovenentE Iocated on Lhe

demised preoises by lhe Lessee io such amounL and wiLh euoh lnsurance conipany

on companles as ane approved by Lhe Mlchlgan Insuranoe Buneau. In bhe evenb of

loss by fine, ball., on wlndeLorm, Lhe proceeds fnom such fnsunance shall be

ueed by Lhe Leseee Lo repair or replace such loss, or lhe Lessee shall demolieh

the bull,dlng or lmprovenents so damaged and restor.e the prenises Lo a gracled

level and neat appearance.

Further, the Lessee shall pnocune, keep ancl nalntaln durlng the

Lerm of Lhis Lease, or any nenev¡al theneof, lnsurance pollcies provldlng publlo

lÍabtlity and properLy damage lnsunance of noL less than $I00,000.00 for

pnoperty danage and of not Less Lhan 9100,000.00/9300,000.00 for pub).ic

Ilabf).tly. Such policies shall coven loeees caueed Uy it¡e acbe and o¡¡lsslons

of the Lessee, tLe agenLs and employees, on by the operatlon of vehlcles or

obher equlpmenL owned on operated by the Lessee, lLs agenLe or eûployees. The

Cerflfiaate of Insurance of Lessee shelt name the Lessor as an additfonal

insured for required oovenage for publlo IiablJ.ity, and a CerLfficate of

Jnsurance shall be filed wfbh þhe Leesor upon the conúenÒeúenÈ of thls Leaee.

As Lo all lnsurance nequlrernenLs under thie clausä, the Lessee shatl glve the

Lesson ¡ufflcienL evfdence ln wnlLlng LhaL eaoh and evenyr suoh ooverage has

been lssued by an tn€urance co¡npany or companles as ane appnoved by the

Mlchlgan fneurance Bureau. The Lessee egn€ee Lo depend and hold the Lesson

hanoless from any clafm, eult, or processee of any naLune, includtng atùorney

t.
.v,
.r.
tÅ.

&.
'tl

-8-



!¡

fees and oosLsr whaLsoever, arfslng oub of lhle Leâse or any extenslon thereof.

Said agreemenb Lo defend and hol-d haroless shall be in effect even Lhough the

Leeeee hae obt,alried ühe varloue lneurance poriolee henEinabove sLated.

I3. Cgplignce w1!,[ Fedenal Aereemenüs. 'Thls lease shal]. be

subordlnabe to lhe provfslons of any exÍeging or future agreemen¿ betûeen the

Lessor and the United SbaLee reLative bo Lhe operabfon on uaintenance of the

AlnporL, Lhe execubion of whlch has bèen or may be requlred as a condibion

precedent bo the expendÍture of Federar funds fon the deveropmenu of lhe

Àirporl, provlded, however, ùhaL any righL, title, and lnterest of t,he Lessee

ln bhe deruised premlses shall noL be baken HlLhout Jusb oonpeosatlon Lherefor

being firsL made.

A. This Lease shal.r be non-excr.ustve and eubordinate to the

provlelone of any existj.ng or future agreement beLt¡een Lhe Lesso¡ and the

unlced s¿aLes, relative to bhe openaLion or naintenance of Lhe alrponL,

the execuLfon of r,¡hich has been or may be requlred as a condiiion
preoedsnt lo lhe expendiLure of Fedenar funds for the deveLopnent, of the

alrport

B. the Lessor reserves the rtght to further develop or iupnove the

Ianding anea of ihe alrporb as rt sees ftt regandregs of the desrres or
views of Lhe Lessee, and withou! inLerference or hindrance.

c. Th€ Lesson reservee rhe right [o take any actron 1¿ coûsfders

neceesary Lo protecL Lhe aenfal approaohee of [he ainporb agalnst
obstrucLion, Logether with bhe right to prevenb the Lessee froo erecting
or penetttlng to be enecLed any buildi.ng or olher stnucture on ,the alrport
whlch, tn bhe reasonabre oplnion of the Lessor, would rlnit the usefulnese

of Uhe alrpor¿ on conslibuLee a hazard to alrcnaft.
14. Rleht of U.Ê .

A. The Lessee, its agenLe, licensees, fnvfLees, sub-tenants and

ernproyees Lo Lessee sharr have the non:excluslve use of any noads or
servlce drfves on Tullp Clby AlrponL for purposes of fn6ness anct egress to
¿he demieed premlses.

t*
't

-9-



!¿'

B. The Leesee eharl pnovlde parking faciriLies upon the demreed

preraieee wibh lhe Leesee being regponeible for aII malnLenance, alt snow

removal, and repalr relating ü,o euch parking factltLles.

c, rn case lf sharr becone neceseany to construot eny fenoes for
the proLeollon of ùhe pubrfc uslng Lhe Tullp ctly AtrporL as a public

faciriLy, or sald consbruoLlon ls deemed neceseary þy bhe Leegor to

preserve subsbantlar unifgrmfty of appearance of arl bulrdinge at, Tullp

clty Alrport, or to provide prfvaoy lo the Leseee at, Lhe denised pnenfses,

or 1f FederaÌ aubhoriLies nequfned the consLruction thereof, such fence

ehalr be enecLed ar bhe Lesseers expense, and onry aflter appnovar and

coneenL is had from bhe Leesoi as to localion and type of fenctng. Upon

the giving of notice by Lhe Leeson to trie Lessee, in wriLrng, requesblng

thaL fenclng be enecLed on Lhe demised pnemlses or eunroundlng any portion

Lheneof, the Lessee ehall enecL suoh fencing ae soon as possibLe and

malnLaln the eame in good repair and condiLlon ab aII tlmee 1n accordance

wibh bhe requesl made by Lhe Lesson. rf the Lesson, pursuanl to Lhe terns

of !hls clause, requests the Leesee to consLruct fencing and eubsequenù

theref,o requesLe the same of a benant or lessee of land oontiguoue to the

demleed prerulses, the Lessop agrees to orden such laLüer tenant on Iessee

bo reioburse the Leeeee hereln I/2 ot the cost of euch porbion of fenclng

enecLed by Lhe Le€eee whlch is utlllzed by such IaLLer Lenant on leesee in

complylng wfLh said.request of the Lessor.

L5' condlLfons upon us,e of Lhe_gemiees. The Lessee shalr have

the rfght Þo erecL a bulrdrng and/or ocoupanr lclenLlfÍoation slgn upon the

exLerlor of the bulldings to be consbrucLed on the denleed prenfees on in.the
front yard area Lhereof. No other slgns or advertlstng matter shall be

palnted, posted or drsplayed upon any porLron of bhe demleed premrses,

lncluding upon the butlcllngs and strucbures placed thereon, wlthoui ihe s¡rtften
consent of bhe Lessor, whlch consent ehall nct be unneagonably withhel<1.

The Lessor hereby agreee that the Lessee may pr.ace a mortgage upon

any and aLl buildings bo be Iocated on the demfsed prenises for the purposes of
eecurfng a loan on loans, and Lhal the Lessee (or MonLgagor) sharr. nofffy ùhe

'Ir
È¡:li

fi

- 10-



:,û

Lessor ln l¡niLing of bhe name and addness of bhe úorLgagee and th€ terns ,of the

morlgage pnion to Lhe placemenL thereof. Any nobÍce of default ln Èhe Leros of

Lhe Lease served upon Lhe Lessee by the Leesor shall also be senved upon t,h€

monLgagee, and eaid morLgagee shall l¡ave a like oppontunlLy Lo cune such defeot

as the Leseee mey have.

16., Late RenUaI Paymen¿s. ff , dunlng the teno of Lhis

Agreemenl, bhe Lessee shall be late in makfng rental payoenbs as provlded

herein Lhg Lessee shall pay and Lhe Legsor shall necelve, a senvfce charge of

one and one half percent (L.5f) per monLh of fhê lat,e rental payment untiL said

amoun¿ fs pald. This shall be in addiLfon ùo and shall tn no r¡ray affect any

obhen rlghLe resenved bo Lhe Lessor or existlng tn the Lesson by vlrbue of the

Iaws of Lhe SLate of Miohigan.

L7. TermlnaIion, CancelIatlone, Forfgitqre. The Leseon and the

Lessee agree. thab bhis Lease shall tennlnaLe at the expinatfon of the tenn

heneln speclfled. Funther, bhaL upon the breach by the Leseee of any of fhe

Lerns and condlLione hereln, Lhe Leesor shal.l gÍve wrLLten notlce !o the Lessee

within thirty (30) days fnom Lhe dat,e of suoh breach to cure euoh breaoh and if
such breach ls nol curad þy the Lessee wlbhin thirby days of the dabe suoh

notlce ls received by the Lessee, this Lease rnay be deened forfelted by the

Leseee and cancerl-ed by the Lessor, upon the recelpt, by the Lessee of noLioe in

wriLing of such cancellabion fnom Lhe Leeeor. Lessee ehall pay reasonable

cosls and aLborneys fees lnourred by Lessor ln connectfôn wiùh the.üerufnatfon,

cancellatlon, and fonfelture of the Lease.

Ì8. Notlcè of Termlnatlon - Lessor. In additlon to the

provislons of this AgreenenL relaLing Lo termtnatlon as are set fonth ln
Paragraph 16 hereof,. the Lêssor uay ternfnate ai¡d oancer thls rease tf lt ts

unable Lo operaLe Turtp clby AlrponL and is requfned to relnburse the unlled

states of Arnenlca, the state of Michlgan, or euoh other fedenar or süate

enfiLies or agencles fon monlee recelved or acoepted for the aoqulslblon of
Tu]'fp clLy Afrpq¡t'. Notlce of LermfnatÍon shar.l be eent aL least rgo days

prfor Lo the effeotfve daLe of Lhe cancellaLion to Lessee, Upon explration of
the notiftcaLfon, Lhe renLar amount pafd during Lhe final year of lhe lease

I

-11-



shall be proraLed and Lhe balance relmbunsed 0o Lhe Lessee. Lessor shall fncur

no further rlabirÍty to Leeeee, and [his Agneement shart be nurl and vold.

Upon termfnaLlon pursuant bo thls paragraph, the Leseor grants to

Leseee Lhe right to purchase the demised prenlses, lncludlng a non-excluslvo

nlght of lngress and egress to the demtsed p¡'enises at the fain narket value as

deternlned by Lesson and Lessee. The purchase by Leseee fnon Lesson sha]I be

pernilbed onl.y if a1l of bhe following condltlons ane met:

A. Leseee shall not be ln default pursuant to any of Lhe terns,

condlLlons, and agreemenLs of thfe Leâse;

B. The rfght to purchase ls deternlned to be varrd and pernlrted

pursuant fo the rur.es and regul.aLions of Lhe Federar Âviation

AdmlnlsLrabion (FAA), Mlchlgan AeronauLlca Comnlesion (MAC), or any other

federal-, sLaLe, or local agency empowened to ad¡uinisLer and regula0e Tulip

Clby Ainport ¡

C. NoLlce musL be glven by Lessee to Lessor ab 1eaet 90 days

befone the terofnaLlon of the lease tern;

D, The punchase by Lessee from, Leseon ousb, ln. alì. respeots,

compry wfLh bhe rures aod regulatrons of the FAA, MAc, or any other

lederal, sLaLe, or rocal agency empowered to adninisber and negur.ate Tulrp
Clty Alnport.

19. 
'lne 

gf-.tþe Eseence. rt ls rurthep understood and agreed

LhaL LfEe ls of Lhe essence of this Lease.

20. Eqinenr Dg..r¡gfn. rf arr or êny por'fon of the de¡¡rsed

premlses sharl be Laken by âny governnenLal auLhorrty unden power of enlnent
domafn ¡

A. Arr damages awarded as compensatfon for the taklng or dlntnuÈlon

ln vaLue ro rhe buirdings or iup'ovemenLe on the demised pnenises

oonstructed by the Lessee sharr bel.ng ro and be rhe property of the

Leeeee and any morLgagee Lhereof. The Lessee assuf¡es fuJ.r responslbilrty
for taklng whaLever actron be dee'e necessary to proteoi hls inLenest rn
any proceeding for the conde¡onaLlon o1 any part of his leasehold eetate
herein.

il
'þ

'.¡J,'4
,)
*.

-12-



. B. If only a parL of Lhe denleed prenlees shall be Êo taken on

condemned, the Lessee sharr aL iLs expense proceed to make a oompret,e

archiLecLural uniL of Uhe renafnder of Lhe bufldfngs on Lhe denlsed

premlsee; and, there shall. be an abatement of Lhe rentaL thereafLer to be

paid hereunder, connespondlng wlth ühe pnoportlon which the value of the
ponllon of the demlsed prernises so taken rnay bear lo Lhe varue of Lhe

entfne denlsed prenises at lhe time of suoh takfng.

C. If more bhan ftfty_percenL (F0f) of the denlsed premlsee shall
be so Laken the Lessee may aL tts ôplron Ler¡ninaLe thte Lease and arr
obligaLions hereunder.

2I. QuieL Enjoyment. The Lessor covenants bhat, bhe Lessee, upon

paying Lhe aforementloned renLals and perfonmlng all the covenanLs on rLs part
Lo be penforned hereunder, shaJ.l and may peacefur.ry and quierry have, hord, and

enJoy t,he demfsed prenlses for the tenm hereof.

22- Assfgnment of Lessee..r4gerest. rL ie agreed t,ha! the Lessee

shall nol assign or transfer this Lease, lncludiog t,he buÍldings or
futprovemenLs bhereon (excepl fn conJuncLlon wibh the eale of aII of the
Lesseers asseLs locaLed on bhe demrsed premises), without rhe wrttLen consenL

and approval of lhe Leesor, whrch shar.r nor be unreasonabry wrthherd.

23. Memorandum of Lgase. The Lessor and the Lessee Shall
execute 

"..ro""nlI'of Lhre Lease for purposes of pubtic recond. The Lessee

shall bear all cosLs wfth respect bo prepaning and reconding eald menorandum.

24. Succeseors.qnd, Assigns. The covenante, condltions, and

agreements made and enLered into by the partfes hereLo, are heiedy decrared
blndlng upon the successons and assrgns of the Leseor and upon the herrs,
adminlsLraLore, execuLons, successors and/on assfgns of the Lessee.

25, Arbl LraLfon. A1r claims qn disputee arieing ouL of or
rerablng to Lhis Lease sharl be setlted by anbifrallon ln accordance wllh the
conø¡erclaf arbiLraLion rures of Lhe Amerr.can ÂrblLraLfon AssoclaLron then

applying. Nolice of demgnd for arbÍtraLion sharr be ffred fn Hrfbfng wfth the
other parLy t,o bhe agréemenL and wtLh Lhe American ArblbraLlon AssoclaLion, and
sharl be made wfbhin a neasonabre trme after Lhe claim or dispuLe has arteen.

ta;

ls.
.å
è:

- 13-



The awand rendered by the anbfLrators shall be flnal, and Judgrent ruay be

entered upon lL ln accordance wilh appllcabl-e law 1n any oourt, havlng

JurfsdiaLfon thereon.

Excep0 ae written by coneenL of bhe person on entlLy sought to be

Jofiled, no anblLratlon arlsing out of or relating to the Leaee eha]l lnclude,

by consorldaLlon, joinder, or in any oLher manner, any person or entfty not a

parLy to ùhe Lease, unless lt is shown ab the tfne Èhe denand fon arbltratlon
ls flled thab:

A. Such person or entl¿y is substanttally involved in a oomoon

quesLlon of faot or law;

B. The presence of such person or entrty ls nequrned lf coupJ.ele

relief le Lo be accorded in Lhe arbfLralton; and

c. The lnteresL or responslbfllty of suoh penson or entlty ln the

natter is noL lnsubsLantial.

Tbe âgreement of Lhe parLies bo arbitrate oi"fr. anat dfsputes shall
be specificarry enforceabre unden the pnevalrlng arbfb'atlon raw.

Pendlng frnat declsion of che arbrLrator or arbftrabors, the

pârties shal1 proceed diligentry wlbh the performance of bhelr obligatfons
under Lhls Leâse.

26. EnLire AgfeemenL. This AgneemenL constitutes Lhe entÍre
undersLanding beLween the partles, and ag of iLs effective date supencedes arr
prion lndependent agneemenLs beLween bhe parLLes coverLng the subJeot natter
bhereof. Any change on modifieatfon hereof nust be in wrftrng, srgned by both
parLiee.

27. Severabllily_. Ifl a provision hereof shal.l be finalJ.y
decrared vold or irregar by any courL or admfnf'sþrattve agency having

Jwisdicblon, the entlre rease eharr noL be void, but Lhe reøarnrng pnovrsrons

shaLl conLinue in effect as nearJ.y as possfble in accordance wfth bhe orrgrnal
lntenL of the panties.

28. Notlce. Any noLÍce glven by one parby to ühe o¿hen ln
oonneoblon wich thts Leâee sharr be ln r¡rltlng and sharl be senL by registened
úalI, return reoelpt requesLed, with pooíage prepâld to:

'!':í

'i(
.ü

.tn

.t

.14-



;g
:9

Clty of HoIland
ArTENTIoN! Cfty Managerre offloe
City HaII
HoIJ.and, MI 49423

Pnince CorporaLlon
ATTENTION: Edgar Prlnoe
One Prince Cen¿en
Holland, MI 49423

NoLlcee ehall be deemed bo have been recelved on the dat,e of the

recelpt as shonn on the re¿urn neceipt.

29, Headlngs. The headinge ueed on thls Lease ane fntended for

convenience o, ""J.noe only, and do not defÍne on riruf.t the scope or oeanlng

of any provtslon of thls Leaee.

30. Goverfi.lng Law. Thts Leâsô fs Lo be construed and govenned

fn accordance wlth the lalre of the StaLe of Mlchigan.

IN I.ùITNESS WHEBEoF', Lhe Lessor. and the Le€eee have slgned and

seaÌed bhls Lease the day and year flnsL above v¡rfLten.

LESSOR :

CITY OT' HOLLAND
IN TITE PRESENCE OF:

By
ip ?anls,

D. !J. S Clerk

LESSEE ¡

PRINCE COR TION

il
(

By

,l Edgar noe

Its Chalnman of the Board

(

- 15-

¿!n
...1

ù:

t.
E



fÃ
.È

Y/r

EXHIBIT A

A parr of rhe N. 1/'2 of the sw ll4¡ Bêc, I' T4N Rl5w, Cf¡y of Holland,

Allegan Co.; Mlch., deecrlbed as coralencJ.ng aÈ the W. ll4 cort eatd
gec. 8, thenee s Ol'-52r-00" E, ãlong the W. ltne eald eec. 8, 711.97

feet, thencê N. 88o-08r-00tr E, 697,3! feeÈ, tlrence N. 78o-59t-03rf Er

725,91 fee!, Ëlrence s. llo-00t-57tr E, 80.00 feetr to the pof.nc of .

beg.tnn{ng¡ thence contfnufng S. lto-00r-57" E, 372.34 feeE, thence

N, 7bo.-59f -03rr E, 200.00 feeË¡ thence N. llo-00r-57rr t{¡ 372,34 teet,
thence 8. 78o-59r-03rr l^1,.200.00 faer, to the polnt of begtqnfng.

ContalnLng 741468 SF OR l.7l ACRES



04687 4.t 647 60 # 13654637 _r

EXHIBIT D

\ryMAA Fueling Rules & Regulations

-11-



FUELING RULES & REGUTATIONS
West Michigan Regional Airport

Holland, Michigan

Adopted by West Michlgan Airport Authority
May 2009

And as amended on October B,20lO
And as amended on December 2,zOLs



Fueling Rules & Regulations

West Michlgan RegionalAírport Fueling Rules & Regulations

1. Fueling.

A. No person other than a fixed-base operator ("FBo'l may sell fuel at the Airport or engage ín fueling
operations at the Airport other than fueling (as described in subsection B of this section), in accordance wíth
these Fueling Rules and Regulations. Fuel co-operatives, defined as multiple independent owners of
multiple aircraft sharing Fueling Facilities, as defíned below, are not permitted to operate at the Airport. An
FBo may sell fuel to all aircraft operators desíring to purchase fuel in accordance wíth an FBo agreement
between the FBo and the west Michigan Airport Authority ("AUTHORtry").

B' A person who owns an aircraft which such person operates at the Airport may fuel that aircraft and other
vehicles such person owns operating solely within the Airport frorn Fueling Facilities such person owns and
operates at the AirporU provided such person has a valid Fueling Permit from the AUTHOR|TY and complies
wíth all laws, rules and regulations applying to fueling at the Airport adopted by the AUTHORITy or any
other governmental agency or authority.

Fuelins Permit.

A' Any person engaged in fueling at the Airport in accordance with Section l shall hold a valid Fueling permit
while engaged in such fueling and comply with these Fueling Rules and Regulations. A Fueling permit shall
expire ten (L0) years after the date it was issued, províded that the holder of an expired Fueling permit may
continue fueling in reliance upon the expired Fueling Permit for up to one hundred eighty (1-80) days after its
expiration date if such holder has filed an application for a new Fueling Permit with the AUTHORITy in
accordance with these Fueling Rules and Regulations.

B. Fuelíng Facílities shall ínclude but not be limited to fixed-location fuel storage tanks for fuel (whether for
aircraft or other vehícles operated within the Airport), pipes, pumps, and fuel-transport vehicles. Fixed-
location fuel tanks, pipes and pumps shall be located above-ground in a location approved as part of the
approval or modification of a Fueling Permít, which location shall have been leased from the AUTHORIW for
such purpose on terms and at a rental rate established from time to time by the AUTHORITy, provided that
underground storage tanks in existence before December 1998 may continue to be used provided they
meet applicable federal regulations.

c. For purposes of these Fueling Rules and Regulations, a person shall be deemed to own an aircraft andf or
Fueling Facilities if it leases the aircraft andf or Fueling Facilities from the title owner for financing purposes
but has substantíal control over and responsíbility for the aircraft and/or Fueling Facilities and the ti¡e
owner's interest is substantÍally that of lender or lessor.

D. All action of the "AUTHORITY" under these Rules shall be by the AUTHORITY unless otherwise indicated or
required by applícable law,

Applicatíon for Fueling Permit, Before constructing, installing, or bringing on the Airport any Fueling Facilities or
engaging in any fueling, a person desiring to engage in fueling must apply for, in writing, and obtain a Fueling
Permit from the AUTHORITY. The written application shall contain, at a minímum, the following information:

A. For fueling, the name and address of the aircraft owner(s) applying for the permit; the name and address of
the title owner(s) of the aircraft, if different; and whether the applícant owns or leases the aircraft to be self-
fueled;

2

2

3.



Fueling Rules & Regulations 3

B' A written authorizatíon for the Federal Aviation Administratíon and any governmental aviation or
aeronautics commission, administrator, agency, and department of any state ín which the applicant has
operated or lived to release information Ín their respective fíles relating to the applicant on such forms as is
required by such bodíes;

c' Proof of insurance coverage for contamination by an exístíng policy or insurance company binder for
coverage or letter of intent, effective not later than the date installation of the Fueling Facilities is to
commence (or if such ínsurance is not available on the market, such other means of financial assurance aswould be permitted by 42 USC 6991 to 6991i), which ínsurance or alternative financial assurance is
acceptable to the AUTHORITY, to guarantee adequate funds, in an amount determined by the AUTHoRtw,
not less than one Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for the proposed Fueling Facility, will be available to remove
the contemplated Fueling Facilities and/or remediate any release or spill of fuel released into the
environment, which insurance polícy shall provide for a mandatory notice to the AUTHoRITy at least thirty
(30)days before cancellation orterminatíon of coverage. The Authority will accept a 10 day notice ¡nstead
of 30 days for nonpayment of the premium if the permit holder agrees to the following:

The Authority willhave the right, but not the obligatíon, to pay the unpaid insurance premium if the permit-
Holder does not provide the Authority proof that it has paid the premium or obtained replacement
insurance coverage satisfying the requirement of the west Michígan Airport Authority Fueling Rules &
Regulations wlthin 48 hours after the Authority has notified the Permit-Holder of its receipt of the notice of
cancellation for nonpayment of the premium. such notice from the Authority to the permit-Holder may be
by mail, prívate courier, fax, email, telephone or in person, lf the Authority makes such payment, it will
notify the Permit-Holder and the Permit-Holder shall immediately reimburse the Authority the amount of
the premium.

D' Evidence of applicant's financial ability to pay for curing any other violations of these regulations or for
damages or injury resultíng from any release of contamination or other violation of these regulations in an
amount, excluding the insurance or financial assurance required by the preceding subsectioÀ, equal to thetotal deductíbles or self-insured retentíon limits of the applicant for insurance policies the applicant is
required to carry (including under the preceding subsection if the applícant uses inrrrrn." to satisfy that
requirement) to obtain and keep its Fueling permit;

E' Proof of liability insurance coverage, by means of an existíng policy or insurance company binder for
coverage or letter of íntent, effective not later than the date installation of the Fueling Facilities is to
commence, in an amount acceptable to the AUTHoRITY not less than Five Million Dollais (S5,ooo,0oo),
covering any injury to any person or to any property, whether owned by the AUTHORITY or any otner
person, related to or arising in connection with fueling, which insurance polícy shall provide for a mandatory
notice to the AUTHoRITY at least thirty (30) days before cancellation or termination of coverage. Th;
Authority will accept a 10 day notice instead of 30 days for nonpayment of the premium if the permit holder
agrees to the following:

The Authority will have the right, but not the obligation, to pay the unpaid insurance premium if the permít-
Holder does not provide the Authority proof that it has paid the premium or obtained replacement
insurance coverage satisfying the requirement of the west Michigan Airport Authority Fueling Rules &
Regulations within 48 hours after the Authority has notified the Permit-Holder of its receipt of the notíce of
cancellation for nonpayment of the premium. such notice from the Authority to the permit-Holder may be
by mail, private courier, fax, email, telephone or in person. lf the Authority makes such payment, it will
notify the Permit-Holder and the Permit-Holder shall immediately reimburse the Authority the amount of
the premium.



4.

Fueling Rules & Regulations 4

F' Preliminary plans and specifications prepared by an engineer licensed by the state of Michigan for all
improvements which the applicant contemplates on the Airport in connection with fueling, whictr-plans and
specifications rnay not be modified or deviated from after submittal to the AUTHoRITy without thl express
written consent of the AUTHORITY, and manufacturer specifications for all other Fueling Facilities wh¡ch ttre
applicant contemplates using on the Airport in connectíon with fueling, which facílities shall not be altered
or replaced unless the AUTHoRITY has expressly consented to such alteration or replacement;

G, A timeline of any improvements to be constructed or installed at the Airport;

H' A copy of any permit or approval that may be required from any governmental body other than the
Authority Board underthese Fueling Rules and Regulations;

l' A Spill Prevention Countermeasures and Control ("SPcc") Plan in accordance with the Federal Water
Pollutíon Prevention and control Act or equivalent state law, complying with applicable regulations and
acceptable to the United States Environmental Protection Agency and/or Michígan Department of
Environmental eua lity;

J' lf the applicant will install any ímprovement capable of being shared by others for which it would desire
possible reimbursement ("common lmprovement"), an agreement pursuant to section j.j. below for suchother users to reimburse the costs of such common lmprovement, a letter of credit from a financial
institution reasonably acceptable to the AUTHORITY for the full cost of such common lmprovement, and
evidence of builder's risk insurance in an amount of one Million Dollars (S1,ooo,ooo); if the applicant will
share any common lmprovement ¡nstalled by another person, an acceptance of the reimbursement
agreement with regard to such common lmprovement; provided, however, in no instance shall different
owners share Fueling Facilities;

K' Any other information the AUTHORrry may require or request;

L' A fee in an amount established from t¡me to time by the AUTHoRtry Aírport Advisory Board to be applied
toward the costs of AUTHoRITY staff reviewing the application. The applicant shall be responsible iàr all
costs incurred by the AUTHORIW in connection with reviewing and acting on the application, including, but
not limited to fegal and engineering consultants.

A holder of a Fueling Permit ("Permit Holder") shall notify the AUTHoRITy of any change in the foregoing
information and shall provide the AUTHORITY annually wíth a certificate of insurance from the permit Holder,s
insurer(s) for all insurance carried to comply with subsections c and E, which certificate shall meet the
requirements of Subsections c and/or E as applicable. Every two years, the AUTH9RITy will revíew the levels of
insurance required for Fueling Permits. Permit Holders will be obligated to meet revised insurance limits, except
a Permít Holder that has been granted an exception from the limits establ¡shed in this section will instead be
required to increase the approved insurance limit by the percentage increase applied to holders without such an
exception.

Review of Apolícation for Fuelínq Permit. The West Michigan Airport Authority will review all applications
submitted to the AUTHORITY and recommend approval or denial of all completed applications within ninety (90)
days after the completed applicatíon has been submitted. lf an application is incomplete, the Airport Advisory
Board will inform the applicant of the additional information needed. An applícation may be denied for one or
more of the following reasons:

A' The applicant does not meet qualifications, standards and requirements established by these Minimum



5

Fueling Rules & Regulations 5

Sta nd a rds;

B' The applicant's proposed operations or construction will endanger or pose a threat to the health, safety or
welfare of people or property using or located at or in the vicinity of the Airport or creates a safety hazard
on the Airport;

c. Granting the application will require the expenditure of funds, labor, or materials of the AUTHORITy or
result in a financial loss to the AUTHORIW;

D. The proposed location of the Fueling Facilities is not appropriate or adequate for security, safety or
environmenta I reasons;

E. The proposed facilities and/or layout thereof are not consistent with the Airport Layout plan;

F. The proposed fueling operations will result in a congestion of fueling vehicles ín the fuel tank area or in
other areas of the Airport or incompatibility with aircraft operations;

G' The proposed fueling operations would unduly interfere with the operations of an FBo;

H. For self-fueling, the applicant or other owner of the aircraft has provided false information or
misrepresented any material fact in the application or in supporting documents or has failed to make full
disclosure of information relevant to the application;

l. The applicant or other owner of the aircraft has a record of víolating the rules or regulations of this or any
other airport, the civil Air Regulations, or Federal Aviation Regulations;

J' The applicant or other owner of the aircraft has defaulted in the performance of any lease or other
agreement with the AUTHORITY or with any other aírport owner or authority;

K' The applícant or other owner of the aircraft has failed to provide any of the items required in the application
for Fueling Permít to the satisfaction of the AUTHORtTy;

L, The applicant or other owner of the aircraft has committed any felony or any other crime or violated any
local ordinance, rule, or regulation that adversely reflects on its willingness or abílity to comply with the
qualifications, standards, or requirements established by these Minimum Standards in connect¡on with
fueling;

M, Any other reason the AUTHORITY reasonably determines that the applicant's proposed fueling or Fueling
Facilities would be or are contrary to health, safety, or welfare of the AUTHOR¡Ty or people within the
AUTHORITY or in the vicinity of the Airport.

Should any of these items change after a Fueling Permit has been approved, the Permit Holder shall notifu the
AUTHORITY and the AUTHORITY may then revoke or condition the Fueling Permit in accordance with Section 9
of these Fueling Rules and Regulations.

structuralcontrols.

A' All Fueling Facilities must at all times meet all requirements imposed by any governmental agency havingjurisdiction over Fuelíng Facilitíes at the Airport or by any ínsurer providing insurance coverage to the
Airport or with providing insurance with regard to the partícular Fueling Facilities;



6.

Fueling Rules & Regulations 6

B. Fuel storage tanks shall be above ground in a fixed location, provided that a tank used to store fuel for
vehicles other than aircraft may be a vehicle-mounted tank of not more than 250 gallons, and provided that
underground storage tanks in existence before December 1998 may continue to be used provided they
meet applicable federal regulations;

c' Allaboveground storage tanks shall have sufficient secondary contaínment to prevent a spill, leak or other
release from reaching soil or water and comply in all respects with federal and state requirements applicable
to above-ground storage tanks. Any vehicle with a vehicle-mounted fuel storage tank shall Ue operåtlO onty
upon paved surfaces and shall otherwise be operated in compliance with the requirements of Section 6
below;

D. Vehicles used to transport fuel wíthin the Airport shall have a maximum capacity of 10,000 gallons of fuel,
shall have a radio capable of monitoring or communicating with the FBO at the Aiiport, and shall have safety
locks on sumps;

E. All fuel tanks shall use a bottom-fill system;

F' All fuel dispensing areas must be paved and improved with measures to prevent contamination of storm
water runoff;

G. Adequate grounding wires or other approved means of reducing static electricity acceptable to the MÌchigan
State Police Fire Marshal Division or the Michigan Department of Environmental euality, whichever Áasjurisdiction at a given time, shall be installed, inspected, and maintained;

H' A properly maintaíned and charged fire extinguisher appropriate for fuel fires and a supply of dry absorbent
material shall be kept in each fuel transport vehicle operated at the Airport;

l. Each Permit holder shall have sump buckets available in the ramp area and hangar area at all times;

l' Each Permit holder shall have and keep safety signage posted in the area of fuel dispensing as required by
government regulations;

K' Within ninety (90) days of completion of any new structure at the Airport, the permit holder controlling it
shall submit a "significant mater¡als list" to the storm water pollution prevention elan (s.w.e.eln.)
administrator;

Operational Controls.

A' No fuel ín Fueling Facilities shall be dispensed into any Fueling Facilities, aircraft or vehicle not owned by the
owner of the Fueling Facilities who holds a valid Permit for such fueling, except by an FBO;

B' Vehicles used to transport fuel from fixed fuel storage tanks to aircraft within the Airport ("Fueling Trucks,,)
shall be subject to approval by the AUTHORITY, shall comply with all applicable laws and regulation-s and any
reasonable requirements of the AUTHORITY's insurance carriers or carriers of insurance for the permit
Holder, and shall be properly maintained to prevent leaks. During operation Fueling Trucks shall comply
with all applicable laws and regulations and any reasonable requirements of the AUTHORITy,s insurance
carriers or carriers of ínsurance for the Permit Holder, including but not limited as to lÍghting, and shall have
a radío for Airport communications operating. Fueltng Trucks shall only be filled from fixed fuel storage
tanks within the Airport and shall only operate within the Airport;



Fueling Rules & Regulations 7

C. Over-the-road fueltransport vehicles ("Tankers") may only dispense fuelto fixed-location fuelstorage tanks,
shall not directly dispense to a Fueling Truck or to aírcraft, shall not be used to store fuel at the Airport, and
shallonly operate within those areas of the Airport reasonably necessary for dispensing fuelto fixed location
fuel storage tanks;

D. All Tankers shall have such containment systems as required by applicable law or regulation;

E, A Fueling Truck or Tanker approaching or crossing a runway or taxiway shall during such approach or
crossing have a radio for Aírport communications operating on the common Traffic Advisory Frequency
("crAF").

F. All Fueling Facilitíes shall be secured when not being used to prevent leaks, spíllage, and unauthorized use;

G. All Fueling Facilities shall be routinely inspected at least monthly, with a comprehensive inspection to be
performed at least every six (6) months, with written inspectíon reports kept on file for a minimum of three
years and provided to the AUTHoRITY upon request of the Chairperson, All Fueling Facilities shall be
maintained in good and workable order and operated in a manner that minimÌzes the risk of accidental or
intentional explosion, fire, or release of fuel or any other regulated substance to the environment, and
otherwise kept in compliance with all applicable governmental regulation, including conformance with the
SPCC Plan and regístration requirements;

H. lf a spill or release of fuel or any other regulated substance to the environment occurs at the Airport, the
Permit Holder for the Fueling Facilities from which the spill or release occurred shall immediately stop and
contain the spill or release, clean up the fuel or substance released, and notify the AUTHoRITy of the spill or
release and of the steps taken in response, The Permit Holder shall then proceed to remediate any
contaminated soil or water as promptly as reasonably possible. lf a theft of fuel occurs at the Airport, the
Permit Holder for the Fueling Facilities from whích the theft occurred shall notify the AUTHORtTy and law
enforcement officials immediately upon discovering the theft;

l. Other than for Fueling Facilities owned by an FBO, no substances other than fuel for aircraft owned by the
Permit Holder or for other vehicles owned by the Permit Holder and operated solely wíthin the Airport shall
be stored in Fueling Facilities at the Airport and all regulated substances shall be stored only in containers
approved for storage ofthat substance;

J. No smoking, flames, or sparks shall be permitted within ten (10) yards of any Fueling Facititíes during
fuelíng;

K' All personnel involved in fuel dispensing to fixed storage tanks, fuel transport vehicles or aircraft shall be
properly trained to perform their tasks while mínímízing the risk of harm to people, property and the
environment at the time they commence employment and at least annually thereafter;

L' oil water separators shall be inspected each six (6) months to assure they remain in good working order and
to determine if pumping is appropriate and repaired and/or pumped as appropriate, with written inspection
reports kept on file for a minimum of three years and provided to the AUTHORITY upon request of the
Chaírperson;

M. lf any hazardous or regulated substance is spilled or released into a secondary containment structure, the
Permit Holder shall immediately act to stop the spill or release, promptly test the substance in the
secondary containment structure for contamination and, if contaminated, dispose of it in accordance with

-l['-F-



7

Fueling Rules & Regulations B

applicable law;

N. S.W.P.P'P, maps wíll be reviewed and updated every six (6) months and all employees involved in fueling
shall have training for the s.w.p.p.p. within ninety (90) days of employment;

o' All Fuelíng Facilities and areas shall be maintaíned so as not to present an unsightly appearance or
unnecessary danger.

Exceotions from Specific Requirements.

A, An applicant for a Fueling Permít may submit a written request for one or more exceptions from the
provisions of these Fueling Rules and Regulations along with the application for a Fueling permit. The
request for an exception shall state the circumstances of the applicant that justify the requested exception.
Following receipt of a request for an exception from a provision of these Fueling Rules and Regulations, the
AUTHORITY Board may request further information from the applicant and may hold a public hearing on the
request to make findings of fact and, based on such findings, adopt a written recommendation to the
AUTHORITY that it approve, approve with modifications or conditions, or reject the requested exception.
The AUTHORITY, acting through its members, shall have the power to approve, approve with modifications
or conditions, or reject the requested exception from these Fueling Rules and Regulations. This section does
not authorize exceptions from any other applicable laws, including ordinances of the AUTHoRITy.

B' The requested exception may be granted if the AUTHORITY determines the following:

t. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applying to the
applicant's situation that do not apply generally to other Permit Holders and that such
circumstances have not been created by the applicant or a person or entity with which the
applicant is affiliated;

2' That the requested exception is necessary to enable to the applicant to obtain or retain a
Fueling PermiU provided, that the possibility of reduced cost shall not of itself be deemed
sufficient to warrant an exception;

3. That the exception would not be of significant detriment to the Airport, other users of the
Airport, or other properties in the vicinity and will not materially impair the intent and
purposes of the Fueling Rules and Regulations or the public health, safety and welfare; and

4. That the applicant's circumstances on which the request is based are not of so general or
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation
to address such circumstances.

C, ln determining whether and by what amount to reduce the amount of insurance required to be carried by
the holder of a Fueling Permit to ensure the coverage requíred reflects the levelof risk, consideration strall
be given to, but not límited to, the following: the fuel capacity of the tank; the type of Fueling Facilities; the
anticipated number of fueling operations; the type, size, and number of aircraft to be fueled; the location of
the fueltank relative to buildings, taxiways, runways; and any other factors that may affect the risk and
possible magnitude of injury or damage.

Flowage Fee' A flowage fee shall be charged for every gallon of fuel pumped at the Airport (a) by an FBO into
any aircraft or into any fuel storage tank not owned by an FBo or (b) by an outside fuel provider ínto any fuel

8



Fuellng Rules & Regulations g

storage tank. The purpose of the flowage fee is to pay for Airport maintenance and seruices. The AUTHORITY
shall establish the amount of the flowage fee from time to time at whatever level it determines appropriate.
The owner of each Fueling Facility shall report to the AUTHORIw the amount of fuel loaded into ¡ts Fueling
Facility when loaded and pay to the AUTHoRlrv the corresponding flowage fee.

Revocation,

A' The AUTHORITY may revoke a Fuelíng Permit by written notice to the Permit Holder for any of the following
reasons:

1. An attempted assignment of the permit without the prior written consent of the AUTHORITy;

2. Any material change of any information or fact set forth in an applícation for a Fueling Permit without
the prior written consent of the AUTHORtTy;

3' The holder of the Fueling Permit fails to notify the AUTHORITY in writing of any change to any fact set
forth in an application for its Fueling Permit, regardless whether such change is material;

4. The AUTHORITY determines that a Permít Holder has violated the terms of its Fueling permit or these
rules and regulations;

5, The AUTHORITY determines that any condition exists that would have permitted denial of the permit
Holder's application for a Fueling Permit had such condition existed or been known at the time the
permit was granted.

c.

lmmedíately upon receipt of any such notice of revocation, the Permit Holder shall cease fueling and within
ten (10) days of the date of any such notice of revocation, the Permit Holder, or its assign or successor, shall
decommission its Fueling Facilities by fully emptying and securing against access all fuel storage tanks
(whether in a fixed location or on a vehicle), draining all pipes, and locking all pumps.

The Permit Holde¡ or its assign or successor, shall have thirty (30) days from the notice of revocation to
submit an applícation for a new Fueling Permit, lf the new application is not submitted within the thirty (30)
days, or if following review, the AUTHORITY denies the new permit, the holder of the revoked permit, or its
assign or successor, shall remove the Fueling Facilities within ninety (90) days of the revocation or denial,
whichever is later, unless a court of competent jurisdiction enjoins requiring such removal pending a judicial
appeal.

10. Alternative Enforcement, lf the AUTHORITY determines any fueling system or facilities or condition related thereto
violates these rules and regulations or for any other reason poses an immediate risk to public health, safety, or
welfare, the AUTHORITY may cure the default or condition and recover all costs of such cure, plus interest at the
lower of the highest rate permitted by law ortwelve percent (12%1, from the Permit Holder or person without such
a permit who is responsible for the presence of the violation or threatening conditíon.

Ll'. lmprovements Pavback Asreements. The first person that installs a fueling system in a shared fuel tank area (,,Tank
Farm") will initially bear the cost of certain improvements other than Fueling Facilities that are capable of being
shared by others engaged in fueling, for example as an lllustratíon but not limitat¡on, a driveway from the adjoining
public road to the Tank Farm and an access road from the Tank Farm to a paved area within the Airport providing
access to the hangar area ("Common lmprovements"). The AUTHORITY shall have the authority to allow other
persons to use Common lmprovements in return for requiring such persons to enter into a reimbursement

9

B



Fueling Rules & Regulations 10

agreement acceptable to the AUTHORITY for each such person to reimburse the person that initially bore the capital
costs of a Common lmprovement. The AUTHORIW does not guarantee that any other person will use any Common
lmprovement. The person orlginally bearing the cost to construct a Common lmprovement shall províde the
AUTHORITY with documentation reasonably satisfactory to the AUTHORITY of the capital cost of each such Common
lmprovement. Subsequent appllcants for a Fueling Permit that relies upon using such a Common lmprovement shall
pay the person(s) who have previously borne all or part of the capital cost of a Common lmprovement (e.g.,
construction, replacement) to be shared an amount such that each person us¡ng such Capital lmprovement bears a

pro rata share of such costs. (e.g., the second user shall reimburse the original user the capital costs of the Common
lmprovemenU the third user shall reimburse both the first and second users so that each will have borne 1/3 of such
capital costs,) The reimbursement agreement shall also provide a means for maintenance, repair, and replacement
of shared Common lmprovements so that each user bears a pro rata share of such costs in the future.

Fuel¡ng Rules & Regulatlons - December 2, 2015





NON-DISTURBANCE AGREEMENT

This is an Agreement entered into this 16th day of December,2015, by and among E.C.
AVIATION SERVICES, INC., a Michigan corporation, of 600 N. Centennial, Zeeland,, MI
49464 (hereinafter referred to as "EC"), WINGSPAN, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability
company, of 190 River Ave., 3rd Floor, Holland, MI 49423 (hereinafter referred to as
"wingspan"), and WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY, of l5gl South
washington, Holland, Mr 49423 (hereafter referred to as the "Authority").

Background

"Parcel B Lease": The Authority, as lessor and successor in interest to the City
of Holland, and EC, as lessee and successor in interest to the Prince Corporation, are parties tá
that certain Land Lease, dated October 23, 1986 between the City of Holland u.rd prin""
Corporation, as evidenced by the Memorandum of Lease, dated October 24, 1986, and recorded
December 12, 1986 in Liber 1134 Pgs. 120-123 of the Allegan County Register of Deeds, for
certain premises on the grounds of the West Michigan Regional Airport in the City of Holland,
Allegan County, Michigan, more particularly described as:

"Parcel B"
A part of the N l/2 of the sw 1/4, sec. 8, T4N Rl5w, city of Holland, Allegan co.,
Mich., described as commencing at the V/ ll4 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 01o-52'-00" E
along the'W line said sec. 8, 711.97 feet, thence N 88'-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N
78"-59'-03" 8,375.90 feet, thence S 11'-00'-57" E,80.00 feet to the point of beginning,
thence continuing S 11"-00'-57" E, 269.34 feet, thence N 78.-59'-03" p ¡so.oo feet,
thence N I l'-00'-57" Vy' 269.34 feet, thence S 78'-59'-03" W 350.00 feet to the point of
beginning.
Property Address: 120 Geurink Blvd., Holland, Michigan 49423
PP# 03-02-08-300-908

"Parcel C Lease": The Authority, as lessor and successor in interest to the City
of Holland, and EC, as lessee and successor in interest to the Prince Corporation, are parties tã
that certain Land Lease, dated February 7, 7989 between the City of Holland and prince
Corporation, for certain premises on the grounds of the V/est Michigan Regional Airport in the
city of Holland, Allegan county, Michigan, more particularly described as:

"Parcel C"
A part of the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4, sec. 8, T4N Rl5W,City of Holland, Allegan Co.,
Mich., described as commencing at the W 714 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 0lo-5t'-00" E
alongthe W line said sec.8, 711.97 feet, thenceN 88o-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thenceN
78"-59'-03" 8,725.97 feet, thence S l1o-00'-57" 8,80.00 feet to the point of beginning,
thence continuing S 11"-00'-57" 8,372.34 feet, thence N 78'-59'-03" E 200.00 feei,
thence N l lo-00'-57" W 372.34 feet, thence S 78"-59'-03" W 200.00 feet to the point of
beginning.
Property Address: 120 Geurink Blvd., I-Iolland, Michigan 49423
PP# 03-02-08-300-028 (includes orher land)



Wingspan, as sublessee under the Parcel B Lease and Parcel C Lease, and Assignee,
entered into a Lease Assignment and Assumption agreement, dated December 76, 2015, to
assign and convey to EC, for valuable consideration, all leasehold interests held by Wingspan in
both Parcel B, under the Parcel B Lease, and Parcel C, under the Parcel C Lease (the Parcel B
Lease and the Parcel C Lease, collectively the "Airport Land Leases").

EC and 'Wingspan then entered into a Hangar Sublease, dated December 16, 2015 (the
"Wingspan Sublease"), for V/ingspan's use of hangar space within either Hangar B or Hangar
C, as the parties mutually agree under such Wingspan Sublease

V/ingspan wants to ensure that its rights to use the Hangar as set forth in the V/ingspan
Sublease are not disturbed or impairedby a potential default by EC under the Airport Land
Leases, and the parties therefore agree as follows:

1) Authorify Consent and Representations:
a) The Authority hereby consents to the Hangar Sublease, a copy of which is attached at

Exhibit B;
b) The Authority hereby represents and warrants as follows:

i) The Authority is the owner of the Property;
ii) The Land Lease is unmodified and is in full force and effect;
iii) The term of the Land Lease expires on _ (the "Term");
iv) EC is not in default under the Land Lease;
v) If EC commits an act of default under the Land Lease, in addition to the written

notice to be given to EC thereunder, the Authority shall give written notice of the
default to Wingspan.
(1) Wingspan shall then be given the opportunity to cure EC's breach, within the

thirty (30) day period provided for in paragraph 1l of the Land Lease. If
Wingspan cures the default, the Authority shall reinstate the Land Lease as if EC
itself cured the default;

vi) If the Term of the Land Lease terminates, for any reason, or expires, before the
expiration of the term of the Hangar Sublease, and the Land Lease is not extended or
renewed, the Hangar Sublease shall continue as a direct lease between the Authority,
as "lessor", and Wingspan, as "lessee", in accordance with the same terms and

conditions as if the Authority, as lessor, and V/ingspan, as lessee, had entered into a

direct lease as of the date of the termination of the Land Lease,for aterm equal to the
unexpired term of the Sublease.

c) From and after the termination of the Land Lease:
i) Wingspan shall attorn to the Authority, and the Authority shall accept such

attornment, subject to the terms of this Agreement;
ii) The Authority, as lessor, shall have the same remedies as Sublessor under the Hangar

Sublease stemming from any default by V/ingspan under the Hangar Sublease which
Sublessor would have had if the Land Lease has not been terminated or expired.

iii) Wingspan shall have the same remedies against the Authority for the breach the
Hangar Sublease that Wingspan would have had against EC if the Land Lease has not
been terminated, except that the Authority shall not be: (A) liable for any act or
omission of EC; (B) subject to any offsets or defenses which 'Wingspan might have

2



against EC; or (C) bound by any rent or additional rent which Wingspan might have
paid in advance to EC.

2) This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing signed by the parties
hereto.

3) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective successors and assigns.

4) The parties have signed duplicate counterparts of this Agreement on the date first set forth
above.

Balance of page intenlionally blønk, signøture pagefollows

-3-



\ilINGSPAN,L.L.C.

By: Allan Hoekstra
Its: Manager

WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY

By
Tim R. Klunder

Its: Chairperson

[Signature Page to Wingspan Cure AgreementJ

E.C. AVIATION SERVICES, INC.

KevinNash
Treasurer and Director

By
Its:

-4-



EXHIBIT A

Propertv Descríption

Parcel B
A part of the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4, sec. 8, T4N RlsV/, City of Holland, Allegan Co., Mich.,

described as commencing at the W 714 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 01o-52'-00" E along the W line

said sec. 8,7IL97 feet, thence N 88o-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N 78"-59'-03" E, 375.90

feet, thence S 11o-00'-57'8,80.00 feet to the point of beginning, thence continuing S 11o-00'-

57" 8,269.34 feet, thence N 78'-59'-03" E 350.00 feet, thence N 11"-00'-57" W 26934 feeL

thence S 78'-59'-03" W 350.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Property Address: 120 Geurink Blvd., Holland, Michigan 49423

PP# 03-02-08-300-908

Parcel C

A part of the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4, sec. 8, T4N R15V/, City of Holland, Allegan Co., Mich',
described as commencing at the W 714 cor., said sec. 8, thence S 01"-52'-00" E along the W line

said sec. 8,711.97 feet, thence N 88"-08'-00" E, 697.33 feet, thence N 78"-59'-03" E, 725'9I
feet, thence S 11'-00'-57u 8,80.00 feet to the point of beginning, thence continuing S 11o-00'-

57u 8,372.34 feet, thence N 78'-59'-03" E 200.00 feet, thence N l1o-00'-57" W 3'72.34 feet,

thence S 78'-59'-03" V/ 200.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Property Address: 120 Geurink Blvd., Holland, Michigan 49423

PP# 03-02-08-300-028 (includes other land)

The property address and parcel numbers listed are provided solely for informational pu{poses,

without warranty as to accuracy or completeness. If the information is inconsistent in any way

with the legal description listed above, the legal description listed above shall control.

J



046874. t 64760 # t 3598 t 80- I
j:edp/wingspan

EXHIBIT A

COPY OF SUBLEASE

6





RESOLUTION OF THE WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF

DOCUMENTS

E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. / \ilingspan, LLC

At a regular meeting of the V/est Michigan Airport Authority
("Authority"), held at

of Holland, Michigan
Michigan, on the 1ltl'day of

January, 2016 at amlpm.

PRESENT:

ABSENT

The following Resolution was offered by Director
Director

and supported by

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. ("ECAS") has purchased the assets of

Vy'ingspan, LLC ("Wingspan"), the successor in interest to Prince Corporation relating to

property located at 120 Geurink Boulevard, Holland, Michigan 49423 (PP# 03-02-08-300-908);

WHEREAS, the existing lease between the City of Holland and Prince Corporation dated

October 23,1986, in Section 22,which was assigned by the City to the Authority, did not require

the approval of the Authority where a seller undertakes a sale of its assets located on the demised

premises.

WHEREAS, counsel for the Authority has been provided with the purchase

documentation between ECAS and Wingspan and has determined that Section 22 of the Lease

has been met.



V/HEREAS, the Authority has requested that a lease amendment be approved which

would provide for various uniform terms in the Prince Corporation/Wingspan Lease and existing

leases between the Authority and ECAS.

V/HEREAS, the Authority has been requested to execute a non-disturbance agreement

relating to the leases between the Authority and ECAS and the sub-leases with Wingspan and

ECAS.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe Authority approves the following

documents:

1. The Amendment to Airport/Land Leases and the Non-Disturbance Agreement

between ECAS,'Wingspan, and the Authority.

2. That the Chairperson of the Authority, Tim R. Klunder, is authorized and directed

to sign the documents approved above and any ancillary documents in connection

with the above transaction subject to approval as to form by counsel for the Authority.

3. That any previous resolutions of the Authority which are in conflict with this

Resolution are hereby rescinded.

Ayes

Nays:

2



Resolution declared approved dated this 1lth day of January,20l6

\ryEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Its Clerk

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF OTTAWA

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Clerk of the West Michigan Airport Authority of
Holland, Michigan, do hereby certiff that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of
proceedings taken at a regular meeting of the West Michigan Airport Authority on the l lth day of
January,20l6, insofar as the same relates to the Resolution of the Airport Authority Authorizing
the Approval and Execution of Documents (E.C. Aviation Services, Inc./Wingspan, LLC), the
original of which is on file in my offrce. Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and
in full compliance with Act 267,Public Acts of 1976, as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affrxed my offrcial signature this 1lth day of
January,2016.

Clerk

)
)ss

)

3



RESOLUTION OF THE WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF

A FUELING PERMIT TO E.C. AVIATION SERVICES, INC.

Parcel No. 03-02-08-300-908
120 Geurink Boulevard, Holland, MI 49423

At a regular meeting of the West Michigan Airport Authority of Holland, Michigan, held

at Michigan, on the 1l rh day of January,2016 at

amlpm.

PRESENT

ABSENT:

The following Resolution was offered by Director
Director

and supported by

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, E.C. Aviation Services, Inc. ("ECAS") has applied to the V/est Michigan

Airport Authority ("Authority") for the issuance of a fueling permit ("Permit") for an existing

fueling tank to be located at 120 Geurink Boulevard, Holland, Michigan 49423 (Parcel No. 03-

02-08-3 00-908) ("Property");

WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the application pursuant to its Fueling Rules and

Regulations adopted May,2009, amended October 8,2010, and amended December 2,2015

("Regulations");

WHEREAS, based upon the report of staff for the Authority and legal review by its

counsel, the Authority determines that the terms and conditions of the Regulations have been met

and that the Permit should issue;



NOV/, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Authority authorizes the issuance of

the Permit subject to the following terms and conditions:

l. That all of the submitted material and narrative of ECAS is deemed to be true and

accurate based upon the representations ofthe applicant and has been relied upon by

the Authority for the issuance of the Permit. Any material modification of the

submitted material and narrative shall require further action by the Authority.

2. That the issuance of the Permit is subject to full compliance by ECAS relating to

the regulations of the Authority as presently existing or as may be further amended

(including but not limited to any required conditions which may be imposed by the

Federal Aeronautics Administration or the Michigan Aeronautics Commission).

3. That the issuance of the Permit is subject to full compliance with the insurance

and indemnity requirements of the Regulations which must be filed annually by

ECAS with the Authority. Failure to file or maintain the requisite insurance

certificates and the indemnity requirements of the Regulations will suspend the

Permit until compliance.

4. That any previous resolutions of the Authority which are in conflict with this

Resolution are hereby rescinded.

Ayes

Nays

2



Resolution declared approved dated this l lth day of January, 2016.

WEST MICHIGAN AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Its: Clerk

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF OTTAWA

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Clerk of the V/est Michigan Airport Authority of
Holland, Michigan, do hereby certifu that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of
proceedings taken at a regular meeting of the West Michigan Airport Authority on the 1ltl'day of
January, 2016, insofar as the same relate to the Resolution of the Airport Authority Authorizing
the Issuance of a Fueling Permit to E.C. Aviation Services Inc. (Parcel No. 03-02-08-300-908,
102 Geurink Boulevard, Holland, MI49423), the original of which is on file in my offrce. Public
notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with Act 267,Public Acts of
I976, as amended.

IN WITNESS V/HEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this 1lth day of
January,2016.

)
)ss

)

J



West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 510-2332         

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 

The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art  
global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

January 11, 2016 Item 7A. 

To:  West Michigan Airport Authority Board. 
From:  Greg Robinson, Airport Authority Manager. 
Subject: Donations to Airport Business Center Project. 

The Airport Authority has been receiving pledges and donations for the new Airport 
Business Center project.  The project is under construction and these donations will 
enable the inclusion of project items that were previously deleted from the contractor 
bid in order to construct a project within budget.  At the December 7, 2015 meeting, 
the Board accepted $247,440 in cash contributions and $75,000 in furniture. 

The Authority is extremely grateful for these contributions and for those who desire to 
be part of this community project.  Donations continue to be received weekly and 
another donations report is anticipated to be submitted to the Board in February 2016. 

The following pledges and donations have been received since the December 2015 
Board meeting: 

Companies 

Trans-Matic $2,000 

Individuals 

Raymond James Charitable Endowment  $500 
Fund/Michael & Susan Dozemand Family 
Bruce & Diane Wickmann 5,000 
Christopher & Mari Martin 1,000 
Timothy Klunder    100 
Dr. Ronald Deenik & Terrie Deenik    500 
Kenneth Beelen      50 
National Christian Foundation of West 
Michigan/Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth H. Dannenberg 1,000 

Total Donations/Pledges this report        $10,150 
Total Donations/Pledges  $257,590 + $75,000 in furniture 



West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 510-2332          

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 
 

The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art  
global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Authority Board accept these generous donations as 
presented and that an expression of gratitude be provided to those contributing. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 355-1310          F (616) 546-7056 

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 
 

 
The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art 

global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

DATE: January 11, 2016  

SUBJECT: WMAA Communications Committee Board Update 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  
                                                                               Page 1 of 2 

Tier 1  (most important)  

UPDATE WEBSITE ON A CONTINUAL BASIS 

• Please check the new WMRA website for news and updates. www.WestMichiganRegionalAirport.com 

SOCIAL NETWORKING 

• WMRA’s Facebook page is online listed as “West Michigan Regional Airport.” Please take a moment to visit and “Like”  
 the page, make a comment, and share with colleagues, friends and family.  

 The WMRA Facebook page has over 1,900 “Likes.”  

   Recent Facebook posts. 
 

                

 
 

• WMRA’s Twitter microblogging account is up and “Tweeting.” Please join in and add your “Tweets.”   

Tier 2  (important)  

PRESS RELEASES/NEWS ARTICLES 

• As needed.               

2015-2016 PARADES & EVENTS  

• Tulip Time Muziekparade:  Saturday, May 14, 2016 (sixth consecutive year)  

 The float received a Director’s Award for “Creativity” from the Tulip Time Board in 2013 and 2015. 

• Wings of Mercy CareAffaire:  Saturday, August 20, 2016 

 The 2015 Wings of Mercy CareAffaire video can be viewed at: HTTPS-//YOUTU.BE/RABDGG#11204E2 

http://www.westmichiganregionalairport.com/
https://youtu.be/rabDGGxQMBI


 
 

West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 355-1310          F (616) 546-7056 

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 
 

 
The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art 

global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

 

              Page 2 of 2 
  
• Holland’s Parade of Lights:  November 2016 

PRESENTATIONS/SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS 

• Please let a Communications Committee member know if a business or organization is interested in scheduling an 
 airport presentation or speaking engagement. 

TIER 3   (less important) 

NEW AIRPORT BUSINESS CENTER PROJECT 

• Thank you letters are going out to donors. 

• Photos of the project during the week of January 4. 

   

   

WMAA GROUND BREAKING CEREMONY 

• Held on September 21, 2015 the WMAA Ground Breaking Ceremony was a great success. A warm and sunny day, future 
pilots that began the ceremony with a “flourish,” fantastic speakers and good food all made for a meaningful and 
historical event. The event was well received and covered by radio and TV stations. 

 Holland TV produced an awesome video of the event. HTTPS://VIMEO.COM/139969719 

WMAA E-NEWS 

• The WMAA eNews will be sent out in March 2016. 
  

Please contact Karen if you have any questions or comments. 
         k.scholten@cityofholland.com     C  616.953.9633     H  616.399.8509 

https://vimeo.com/139969719


West Michigan Airport Authority 
270 South River Avenue, Holland, MI 49423 
P (616) 510-2332         

Comprising City of Zeeland, Park Township and City of Holland 

The West Michigan Airport Authority will provide the public with state-of-the-art  
global air access to strengthen the local economy and improve the area’s quality of life. 

January 11, 2016 Item 9. 

To: West Michigan Airport Authority Board. 
From: Greg Robinson, Authority Manager. 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Preparation. 

It is time again to begin preparation of the next fiscal year budget.  Following is the 
proposed schedule for preparation and approval of the Fiscal Year 2017 (July 1, 2016 
– June 30, 2017) budget:

1. February 8, 2016: Board considers FY17 action plan.
2. January/February 2016: Operations Committee reviews the preliminary

operating and capital budgets.
3. March 14, 2016: Authority Manager presents proposed budget and Board 

sets public hearing for April Board meeting.
4. April 11, 2016: Board holds public hearing and approves the budget if 

no changes are necessary as the result of the hearing.
5. April/May 2016: Millage rate submitted to local government members. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Authority Board approve the Fiscal Year 2017 budget 
schedule as presented in this report. 



West Michigan Airport Authority 

Fiscal Year 2016 (July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016) Action Plan 

Status Report 

January 11, 2016 

Mission Statement 

To provide the public with state-of-the-art global air access to strengthen the local economy 
and improve the area’s quality of life. 

Fiscal Year 2016 Action Plan 

1. New Airport Business Center:
a. Construct the Airport Business Center.  ( Begin August 2015)

Construction began on-time and is generally on schedule!  There is much more 
required of this project than “construction”.  Board members and staff have been 
working on fund-raising, re-design of certain elements, adding items back-into the 
project that were deleted due to budget constraints, 
technology/communications/security needs, weekly project meetings, furniture 
planning and new signs. 

b. Construct the new apron.  (Begin August 2015)

Construction began on-time and is generally on schedule. 

c. Move into the new Airport Business Center.  (April 2016)

It is expected that move-in to the new Airport Business Center will occur by 
September 2016. 

2. Remove the existing airport office building and, perhaps, a portion of this parking lot,
and conduct site restoration for this airport entrance.  (May 2016)

Due to the revised project schedule, it is anticipated that the demolition of the existing
office building and site restoration will begin in the fall 2016.  This will depend on the
FAA removing its weather equipment from this building and relocating it to the new
building.  Site restoration may occur in the spring 2017.

3. Evaluate the Authority staffing structure and revise as needed.  (February 2016)



The Operations Committee will be discussing this item as it reviews the proposed FY17 
budget. 

4. Provide a centralized location at the new Airport Business Center for all Airport 
Authority documents and reference materials.  (May 2016) 

This will be timed with the anticipated move-in date to the new Airport Business Center. 

5. Prepare a preliminary design, cost estimate and business plan for an additional public 
hangar building.  (January 2016) 

This item has not yet been addressed due to the amount of time required for the 
Business Center and Apron projects.  Both the airport consultant (Mead/Hunt), Airport 
Manager and Authority Manager will be able to devote more time to this once the 
current projects are completed. 

6. Prepare a crack sealing and paint marking program.  (June 2016) 

It is anticipated that this project will be completed during the summer 2016. 

7. Revise the airport Stormwater Management Plan upon completion of the Airport 
Business Center and Apron projects if necessary.  (June 2016) 

This item will be addressed, if necessary, after completion of the Business Center and 
Apron projects. 

8. Work with the Holland City Planning Commission on the preparation of an updated 
Master Plan for the area around the airport.  (June 2016) 

The Authority Manager is discussing this item with staff of the City Planning Commission 
and an update will be provided at the January Board meeting. 

9. Communications: 
a. Organize a ribbon cutting event for the new Airport Business Center. 

This event will not occur until the Business Center is completed in the fall 2016.  
However, a very successful ground breaking ceremony was held in September 
2015! 

b. Coordinate informational displays for the interior of the Airport Business Center. 

This item is underway. 

c. Participate in at least three community events. 



We have had difficulties with the Authority’s parade float this year, but 
anticipate that it will be in the May 2016 Tulip Time Saturday parade.  The 
Authority was active in supporting a successful fall 2015 Wings of Mercy event at 
the airport. 

d. Distribute information on airport activities through videos, website updates, 
periodic newsletters, media releases and community presentations. 

These activities are being accomplished by the Communications Committee and 
Coordinator Karen Scholten. 

e. Continue to be active in social media venues such as Facebook and Twitter. 

Ongoing and active. 

f. Provide updates to member units on activities of the Authority. 

Information on the Airport Business Center and Apron projects has been 
provided to governmental representatives on the Authority Board for 
presentation to member units. 

g. Interact with airport tenants and users on airport activities, needs and matters of 
interest. 

Some progress has been made on this item thanks to the efforts of Board 
member Matthysse.  Staff is anticipating a survey to tenants and users before 
the end of this fiscal year.  Further, tenants and users are on the email 
newsletter mailing list. 



WMAA Fund Balance as of 6/30/15 1,119,538.41$   

Operating Capital
Year to date Revenues 352,878.52        174,090.00        526,968.52$      
Year to date Expenses 172,345.07        876,385.77        1,048,730.84$   

Estimated Fund Balance as of 1/5/16 597,776.09$      

Budget YTD
Remaining Operating Revenues 516,400.00        352,878.52        163,521.48$      

Budget YTD
Remaining Operating Expenses 342,050.00        172,345.07        169,704.93$      

Ending Fund Balance as of 1/5/16 591,592.64$      

Expected Capital Expenses to be paid:
MDOT grant match wetland mitig. 688.00                
MeadHunt extra bldg. design cost 10,000.00           
MeadHunt extra apron / site design 740.00                
Change order for geotech stabilizing 20,000.00           
Committee project add-ons 30,000.00           
Technology / communic / security 25,000.00           
Landscaping / signage / irrigation 50,000.00           
Office demo & site restoration 50,000.00           186,428.00$      

Project Change Order #1 183,959.00$      

Ending Fund balance after expected capital expenses 221,205.64$      

FY15 Donations 25,500.00          
FY16 Donations 174,090.00        
Total Donations to Date 199,590.00        

Item 10



Fund Category   GOVERNMENTAL
Fund Type   GENERAL FUND

Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund
341390.A Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) Apron, Building & 

Sitework
25,500.00 .00 .00 25,500.00

341390.E Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) For Emergencies 25,000.00 .00 .00 25,000.00
341390.R Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) For Capital 

Acquisitions
142,421.00 .00 .00 142,421.00

342390 Fund Balance-Unassigned 735,027.05 .00 .00 735,027.05
345390.C Fund Balance Committed (By Resolution) For Capital 

Projects
.00 .00 .00 .00

345390.E Fund Balance Committed (By Resolution) For 
Emergencies

.00 .00 .00 .00

Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund Totals $927,948.05 $0.00 $0.00 $927,948.05 $191,590.36 $526,968.52 $1,048,730.84 $597,776.09

Fund Type   GENERAL FUND Totals $927,948.05 $0.00 $0.00 $927,948.05 $191,590.36 $526,968.52 $1,048,730.84 $597,776.09

Fund Category   GOVERNMENTAL Totals $927,948.05 $0.00 $0.00 $927,948.05 $191,590.36 $526,968.52 $1,048,730.84 $597,776.09

Grand Totals $927,948.05 $0.00 $0.00 $927,948.05 $191,590.36 $526,968.52 $1,048,730.84 $597,776.09

Page 1 of 1Run by Michelle Sabala on 01/05/2016 14:26:34 PM

Fund Equity Changes Report
Through 01/05/16

Detail Listing
Exclude Rollup Account

Prior Year Fund Estimate
Account Account Description YTD Credits YTD Debits Current Balance Equity Adjustment YTD Revenues YTD Expenses Fund Balance

Beginning
Balance



Prior Year
Account Account Description Balance Forward YTD Debits YTD Credits Ending Balance YTD Balance
Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund

CURRENT ASSETS
110001.675 Cash Due from Cash/Inv Pool 1,119,881.97 559,678.82 1,068,204.79 611,356.00 1,113,260.51
113040.0 Accounts Receivable General 31,328.31 166,676.15 192,808.50 5,195.96 10,749.97
114026.2009 Taxes Receivable 2009 .36 .00 .00 .36 20.95
114026.2010 Taxes Receivable 2010 62.40 .00 .08 62.32 62.40
114026.2011 Taxes Receivable 2011 68.81 .00 .40 68.41 72.56
114026.2012 Taxes Receivable 2012 40.27 .00 .42 39.85 42.75
114026.2013 Taxes Receivable 2013 44.12 .00 1.72 42.40 48.64
114026.2014 Taxes Receivable 2014 75.79 .00 311.83 (236.04) .00
114027.2012 IFT Taxes Receivable 2012 40.65 .00 .00 40.65 40.65
114031 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (328.36) .00 .00 (328.36) (308.15)
119073.2 Due from Local Govt Units Due from Park 

Township
.00 11,999.33 11,999.33 .00 47,262.94

119073.3 Due from Local Govt Units Due from Zeeland City .00 63,298.91 63,298.91 .00 32.70
119078.1 Due from State of Michigan Due from State-

Aeronautics
(8,284.75) .00 10,180.71 (18,465.46) (1,398.13)

CURRENT ASSETS Totals $1,142,929.57 $801,653.21 $1,346,806.69 $597,776.09 $1,169,887.79
CURRENT LIABILITIES

210202.0 Accounts Payable General (17,882.52) 1,034,667.27 1,016,784.75 .00 (6,310.11)
211202 Contracts Payable (600.00) 600.00 .00 .00 .00
212257.0 Accrued Wages Payable General (495.00) 495.00 .00 .00 .00
212262.1 Accrued Fringes Payable FICA-Social 

Security/Medicare
(37.87) 37.87 .00 .00 .00

21B339.0 Deferred Revenue General (4,375.77) 4,375.77 .00 .00 .00
CURRENT LIABILITIES Totals ($23,391.16) $1,040,175.91 $1,016,784.75 $0.00 ($6,310.11)

FUND BALANCE
341390.A Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) Apron, 

Building & Sitework
(25,500.00) .00 .00 (25,500.00) .00

341390.E Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) For 
Emergencies

(25,000.00) .00 .00 (25,000.00) (25,000.00)

341390.R Fund Balance - Assigned (By Action) For Capital 
Acquisitions

(142,421.00) .00 .00 (142,421.00) (142,421.00)

342390 Fund Balance-Unassigned (735,027.05) .00 .00 (735,027.05) (760,527.05)
FUND BALANCE Totals ($927,948.05) $0.00 $0.00 ($927,948.05) ($927,948.05)

P/Y Fund Equity Adjustment (191,590.36) .00 .00 (191,590.36) .00
Fund Revenues .00 26,008.56 552,977.08 (526,968.52) (377,919.88)
Fund Expenses .00 1,871,928.08 823,197.24 1,048,730.84 142,290.25

Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund Totals $0.00 $3,739,765.76 $3,739,765.76 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Totals $0.00 $3,739,765.76 $3,739,765.76 $0.00 $0.00

Page 1 of 2Run by Michelle Sabala on 01/05/2016 14:25:51 PM

Trial Balance Listing
Through 01/05/16

Detail Balance Sheet Listing
Exclude Rollup Account



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund

REVENUE
Department   000 - General Revenues

420502.24 Federal Grant FAA Capital .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 170,671.63
430502.24 State Grant MDOT State Capital .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 592,082.86
440573 State-Reim Local PPT Tax Loss .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 1,907.37 (1,907.37) +++ .00
450582.C Contributions from Other Govts From City of Holland 100,000.00 .00 100,000.00 .00 .00 101,667.40 (1,667.40) 102 98,499.40
450582.P Contributions from Other Govts From Park Township 102,000.00 .00 102,000.00 .00 .00 11,999.33 90,000.67 12 92,488.04
450582.Z Contributions from Other Govts From City of Zeeland 52,700.00 .00 52,700.00 .00 .00 63,298.91 (10,598.91) 120 52,020.01
460621.9 Fees-Agreements Emergency Services Fee .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 176.04 (176.04) +++ 177.55
460654.1 Franchise Fees FBO Franchise Fees 22,200.00 .00 22,200.00 .00 .00 10,900.02 11,299.98 49 21,800.04
460654.5 Franchise Fees Fuel Flowage Fee 65,000.00 .00 65,000.00 .00 .00 26,912.57 38,087.43 41 65,032.69
460654.7 Franchise Fees Landing Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 14,659.61 (14,659.61) +++ 23,465.27
480665.0 Investment Income General 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00 .00 2,777.55 222.45 93 7,691.23
480665.X Investment Income Market Adjustment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ (167.28)
480669.24 Rental Hangar Land Lease 85,000.00 .00 85,000.00 .00 .00 82,604.34 2,395.66 97 91,609.10
480669.25 Rental Agricultural Land Lease 11,500.00 .00 11,500.00 .00 .00 11,575.38 (75.38) 101 11,200.38
480669.26 Rental T-Hangars 52,000.00 .00 52,000.00 .00 .00 24,400.00 27,600.00 47 54,580.00
490685.1 Recoveries Insurance 23,000.00 .00 23,000.00 .00 .00 .00 23,000.00 0 .00
490692.0 Miscellaneous General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 100.00

Department   000 - General Revenues Totals $516,400.00 $0.00 $516,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $352,878.52 $163,521.48 68% $1,281,250.92
REVENUE TOTALS $516,400.00 $0.00 $516,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $352,878.52 $163,521.48 68% $1,281,250.92

EXPENSE
Department   540 - Airport Operations

710701.0 Payroll-Regular General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 2,064.51 (2,064.51) +++ 3,424.90
710701.3 Payroll-Regular Allocated 16,700.00 .00 16,700.00 .00 .00 .00 16,700.00 0 .00
710707.0 Payroll-Temporary Help General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 11,215.58 (11,215.58) +++ 26,195.62
710707.8 Payroll-Temporary Help Allocated 27,300.00 .00 27,300.00 .00 .00 .00 27,300.00 0 .00
711702.0 Payroll-Vacation/PTO General 280.00 .00 280.00 .00 .00 99.53 180.47 36 262.15
711703 Payroll-Holidays 200.00 .00 200.00 .00 .00 65.57 134.43 33 137.72
711716.1 Insurance Health 9,700.00 .00 9,700.00 .00 .00 431.85 9,268.15 4 11,332.73
711716.2 Insurance Dental 30.00 .00 30.00 .00 .00 12.24 17.76 41 28.04
711717 Insurance-Life & AD&D 10.00 .00 10.00 .00 .00 2.92 7.08 29 5.37
711718.1 Retirement Contribution MERS 320.00 .00 320.00 .00 .00 165.16 154.84 52 269.82
711720 Insurance-Income Protection 25.00 .00 25.00 .00 .00 12.08 12.92 48 21.47
711725 Compensated Absences Adjustment .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 653.52
712715 Employer FICA/Medicare Contribution 2,470.00 .00 2,470.00 .00 .00 1,009.80 1,460.20 41 2,253.06
712723 Unemployment Comp Insurance 40.00 .00 40.00 .00 .00 10.70 29.30 27 36.39
712724 Workers Comp Insurance 25.00 .00 25.00 .00 .00 12.29 12.71 49 19.80
721730.0 Postage General 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 .00 87.01 12.99 87 51.17
721740.0 Operating Supplies General 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 82.50 417.50 16 300.41

Run by Michelle Sabala on 01/05/2016 02:23:55 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 01/05/16

Exclude Rollup Account



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total
Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund

EXPENSE
Department   540 - Airport Operations

721740.CAP Operating Supplies Controlled Items-Capital Type .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 681.14
721905.0 Photocopies/In-House Printing General 50.00 .00 50.00 .00 .00 1.22 48.78 2 9.97
721931.0 Bldg & Grnds Maint General 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00 .00 560.00 14,440.00 4 11,390.00
721933.0 Equipment Maintenance General 18,000.00 .00 18,000.00 .00 .00 4,000.00 14,000.00 22 20,883.67
722801.9010 Contr-Printing/Promo Advertising/Promotional 30,000.00 .00 30,000.00 .00 1,200.00 5,387.13 23,412.87 22 7,170.91
722804.0 Contractual-Legal General 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00 .00 5,222.01 (222.01) 104 20,583.55
722805.1 Contractual-Finance Independent Audit 6,300.00 .00 6,300.00 .00 .00 7,200.00 (900.00) 114 5,500.00
722805.4 Contractual-Finance Financial Service Fees .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 136.79 (136.79) +++ 265.83
722807.5 Contractual-Architect/Engineer Engineering 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00 0 .00
722808.MOW Contr-Bldgs&Grnds Mowing 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 .00 .00 16,219.25 8,780.75 65 25,149.00
722808.MTCE Contr-Bldgs&Grnds Maintenance-General Repairs 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 .00 .00 4,060.75 15,939.25 20 20,812.57
722808.SNOW Contr-Bldgs&Grnds Snowplowing 60,000.00 .00 60,000.00 .00 .00 651.00 59,349.00 1 58,435.75
722809.61 Contractual-Misc Contract-Management Services 32,000.00 .00 32,000.00 2,349.17 .00 16,444.15 15,555.85 51 27,280.00
722809.62 Contractual-Misc Airport Manager-Tulip City Air 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00 .00 2,044.18 1,955.82 51 4,729.39
723850.0 Communications Telephone 500.00 .00 500.00 .00 .00 133.66 366.34 27 313.62
723860.0 Travel, Conf, Seminars General 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 1,500.00 0 682.69
723910.0 Commercial Insurance Premiums General 21,000.00 .00 21,000.00 .00 .00 18,914.00 2,086.00 90 19,647.00
723920.GATE Public Utilities Fence Gates 550.00 .00 550.00 .00 .00 224.26 325.74 41 434.59
723920.LAND Public Utilities Landing Lights & System 3,800.00 .00 3,800.00 .00 .00 1,551.53 2,248.47 41 4,855.49
723920.PLOT Public Utilities Parking Lot Lights 950.00 .00 950.00 .00 .00 413.04 536.96 43 780.36
723920.RUNW Public Utilities Runway Lights 5,200.00 .00 5,200.00 .00 .00 2,545.38 2,654.62 49 4,985.19
723920.THAN Public Utilities T-Hangars 3,200.00 .00 3,200.00 .00 .00 1,341.57 1,858.43 42 3,509.88
723942.0 Building Rental/Lease General 7,400.00 .00 7,400.00 .00 .00 550.00 6,850.00 7 1,100.00
723955.0 Misc. General 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00 .00 1,272.06 2,227.94 36 3,333.16
723961.0 Dues & Subscriptions General 400.00 .00 400.00 .00 .00 295.00 105.00 74 365.00
723962.0 Assessments & Taxes General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 67,844.63 (67,844.63) +++ .00
723963.2 Write-Offs Uncoll Property Taxes .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 50.42
723964.2 Refunds Property Tax Prior Years .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 61.72 (61.72) +++ 14.85
730971.0 Land General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 509,712.73
730974.0 Land Improvements General 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00 0 11,296.15
730975.0 Buildings & Structures General .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 +++ 306,195.48
770956.0 Contingency General 184,350.00 .00 184,350.00 .00 .00 .00 184,350.00 0 .00

Department   540 - Airport Operations Totals $516,400.00 $0.00 $516,400.00 $2,349.17 $1,200.00 $172,345.07 $342,854.93 34% $1,115,160.56
EXPENSE TOTALS $516,400.00 $0.00 $516,400.00 $2,349.17 $1,200.00 $172,345.07 $342,854.93 34% $1,115,160.56

Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 516,400.00 .00 516,400.00 .00 .00 352,878.52 163,521.48 68 1,281,250.92
EXPENSE TOTALS 516,400.00 .00 516,400.00 2,349.17 1,200.00 172,345.07 342,854.93 34 1,115,160.56

Run by Michelle Sabala on 01/05/2016 02:23:55 PM Page 2 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 01/05/16

Exclude Rollup Account



Adopted Budget Amended Current Month YTD YTD Budget - YTD % used/
Account Account Description Budget Amendments Budget Transactions Encumbrances Transactions Transactions Rec'd Prior Year Total

Fund   Z01 - WMAA (Airport) General Fund Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,349.17) ($1,200.00) $180,533.45 ($179,333.45) $166,090.36

Grand Totals
REVENUE TOTALS 516,400.00 .00 516,400.00 .00 .00 352,878.52 163,521.48 68 1,281,250.92
EXPENSE TOTALS 516,400.00 .00 516,400.00 2,349.17 1,200.00 172,345.07 342,854.93 34 1,115,160.56

Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,349.17) ($1,200.00) $180,533.45 ($179,333.45) $166,090.36

Run by Michelle Sabala on 01/05/2016 02:23:55 PM Page 3 of 3

Budget Performance Report
Fiscal Year to Date 01/05/16

Exclude Rollup Account











Item 12.



CONFERENCE INFORMATION 
 

This is the 25th year the Michigan Airport Conference has been 
co-sponsored by the Michigan Association of Airport Executives 
(MAAE) and the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) Office of Aeronautics. It is designed to provide airport 
sponsors, managers, consultants, and others interested in airport 
management practices the opportunity to meet in an open forum 
to share information and ideas. The conference also provides a 
versatile medium to inform attendees regarding changes and 
opportunities available to airport communities. Vendors have the 
opportunity to display new equipment, products and processes, 
while consultants can interact with attendees and explain their 
particular areas of interest. 
 

AGENDA AND SPEAKERS 
 
On Wednesday morning, we will receive an update on what is 
new from MDOT leadership, as well as the latest news and 
developments from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
Detroit Airports District Office. Following a break with the 
exhibitors, Sam Heiter, program manager, FAA Safety Team, will 
be speaking on an important topic regarding what to do when a 
crash happens at your airport. Concurrently, the consultants will 
hold a roundtable forum. 
 
Our luncheon speaker will be Bob Hoffman, public relations 
manager of the Wharton Center. Bob is a graduate of Michigan 
State University. He also is the co-host of Fox 47’s Morning 
Blend. Bob developed a community-based Pass it Forward 
initiative called ePIFanynow.org, which created a revolution of 
positive experiences through kindness.   
 
The afternoon sessions will include topics of Aero PM, 
disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) requirements, and e-
invoicing, followed by a presentation of the National Museum of 
Aviation and Technology at Historic Will Run. Additionally, 
MAAE will continue to hold the very popular and informative Air 
Carrier and General Aviation Roundtable sessions. 
 
Thursday’s sessions will begin with a session regarding the 
Airport Cooperative Research Program (ACRP), including ACRP 
140 Best Practices for Airport Cybersecurity, and ACRP 77 
Developing General Aviation Airport Business Plans, followed 
by a session all about pavements.  The grand finale of our 
conference will be our most honored tradition of recognizing the 
Airport Sponsor and Consultant of the Year, followed by the 
“Passport” prize drawing. Closing the conference in this way is 
important because it celebrates our successes and encourages us 
to continue the pursuit of excellence. We truly hope to see you 
this year and remind you that this is your conference, and its 
success depends on your participation!  
 
The grand finale of our conference will be our most honored 
tradition of recognizing the Airport Sponsor and Consultant of the 
Year, followed by the “Passport” prize drawing. Closing the 
conference in this way is important because it celebrates our 
successes and encourages us to continue the pursuit of excellence.  
We truly hope to see you this year and remind you that this is 
your conference, and its success depends on your participation! 
 

DOOR PRIZES AND SPONSORSHIPS 
 
Door prizes have proven to be a good advertising medium. If you have items you 
would like to donate, we would certainly appreciate your participation. Your 
company will receive appropriate recognition for donating the prize. 
 

EXHIBITORS 
 
The conference display area offers your company an excellent 
opportunity to promote and exhibit your products and/or services to a 
large, diverse group of individuals involved in varied aspects of 
aviation. Time with exhibitors is scheduled to encourage attendees to 
visit the exhibit area. The “Legislative Reception with Exhibitors” has 
proven to be a positive tool in providing vendors an additional 
opportunity to meet and mingle with conference attendees. 
 

EXHIBIT INFORMATION 
 

All continental breakfasts, breaks, luncheons, and the reception will be 
held in the exhibit area. 
 

Location:  Big Ten Room 
Set-up:  Tuesday, Feb. 16: 5-10 p.m. 
Show:  Wednesday, Feb. 17: 7:30 a.m. - 6:30 p.m. 
   Thursday, Feb. 18: 8 a.m. - noon 
Take down:  Thursday, Feb. 18: 1:30 p.m.  

 
Each booth will be provided with pipe and drape, a skirted table, and 
two chairs. Also included are all conference sessions and materials, 
meals, and breaks for one person. Accompanying individuals will be 
charged an additional fee. 

 
EXHIBIT BOOTH ASSIGNMENT 

 
Please reference the exhibit booth layout design shown below and select 
your top three location preferences on the registration form. Booths will 
be reserved based on availability and when payment is received.   
 

EXHIBIT BOOTH REGISTRATION FEE 
 

Exhibitor Registration:      $500 
Accompanying Individual(s):     $125 

         Non-member                                                    $600 
 
Vendor registration deadline is Feb. 1, 2016. Refund requests for 
cancellations will not be honored after this date.   

 

 
Make the most of your company’s investment by participating as a conference sponsor. Sponsors provide an invaluable service to MAAE by 
supporting the learning and networking opportunities of the association. As a sponsor, your company will receive special recognition in 
addition to the appreciation we normally bestow. 

Available Sponsorships 
Platinum - $2,000 
Gold - $1,500 
Silver - $1,000 
Bronze - $500 

To sponsor an event and/or donate door prizes, please contact the conference committee 
members listed below: 

Matt Barresi: 989-732-4218 or mbarresi@otsegocountymi.gov 
Shawn Jezak: 517-977-1172 or maae@michairports.org 

mailto:maae@michairports.org


2016 Michigan Airport Conference 
Feb. 17 and 18, 2016 

Kellogg Hotel and Conference Center  
East Lansing, Michigan 

VENDOR REGISTRATION FORM 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Last Name       First Name (to appear on name tag)    

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Representing Agency/Company     Type of Business 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City      State    Zip Code 
 
Phone:                                                                               E-mail Address: _____________________________________ 

 
Please tell us: For future mailings, do you prefer mail or e-mail? _________________________ 

 
(Please submit one registration form for each person attending) 

The registration fee includes an 8-foot by 10-foot booth with pipe and drape, a skirted table, two chairs, all conference 
sessions and materials, meals, and breaks for one person. For special arrangements, please contact the hotel directly at 
517-432-4000. There is no reduced rate for one-day attendance. Deadline for vendor registration is Feb. 1, 2016. 

Cost                  Amount Paid 
 

Booth              $500.00/ea. ______________  
 
     Additional attendee(s) (limit 2)  $125.00/ea. ______________ 
 
    Non-member booth   $600.00/ea. ______________ 
 
    Sponsorship (see next page for details)   ______________ 
 

        Total: ______________  
Electricity needed in booth: ______   
 
Booth number preference:  1st choice           2nd choice               3rd choice _____ 
 

PLEASE MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO M.A.A.E. – No refunds after Feb. 1, 2016. 
 
Send registration form and payment to:   MAAE 
 6126 Trumbull St. 

Lansing, MI 48911 
Phone: 517-977-1172      
Email: maae@michairports.org  
 

 
To assist in meals and seating arrangements, please complete the following: 
WEDNESDAY       THURSDAY 
Continental Breakfast ___ Yes ___ No    Continental Breakfast ___ Yes   ___ No 
Lunch ___ Yes ___ No       Awards Lunch  ___ Yes   ___ No  
Reception ___ Yes ___ No    Vegetarian Lunches___ 
 
ROOM RESERVATIONS: The Kellogg Hotel and Convention Center (800-875-5090) has reserved a block of rooms at a group rate of $106 
standard single/double or $120 deluxe single/double (plus applicable taxes). To qualify for this rate, you must mention you are attending the 
Michigan Airport Conference. The hotel will guarantee this rate through Jan. 17, 2016. For online reservations: www.kelloggcenter.com. 

 
See reverse side for more vendor information

mailto:maae@michairports.org


 

 
 

Professional Development Financial Assistance 
Delegate Application 

 
 
Instructions: You must be employed by an airport or a board member in the state of Michigan at the 
time the assistance is made. FAA Part 139 airport employees are not eligible. The intent of this 
assistance is to encourage increased attendance by our colleagues working at the very small and rural 
airports in Michigan so that they have the ability to obtain knowledge gained from the many training 
programs, roundtable sessions, and other networking opportunities. You do not need to be a member of 
the Michigan Association of Airport Executives (MAAE) to receive this assistance.   
 
The funding for this program is being provided by the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) Office of Aeronautics by way of a training grant to the MAAE. Hotel and travel costs are at 
your own expense.  
 
Your conference registration cost will be covered by this application when approved. 
 
For questions, please contact Shawn Jezak at 517- 977-1172 or by e-mail at maae@michairports.org. 
 
Applications must accompany conference registration in lieu of registration fee. 
 
Conference Date: Feb. 17 and 18, 2016 
 
Conference Location: Kellogg Hotel and Conference Center - East Lansing, Michigan 
 

 

Name: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Airport: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ___________________________ E-mail: __________________________________________ 

Street Address: _____________________________________________________________________ 

City: _______________________________ Zip Code: _____________________________________ 

 

mailto:maae@michairports.org


2016 Michigan Airport Conference 
Feb. 17 and 18, 2016 

Kellogg Hotel and Conference Center 
East Lansing, Michigan  

 
GENERAL REGISTRATION FORM 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Last Name       First Name (to appear on name tag)   
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________
Representing Agency/Company     Type of Business 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City      State    Zip Code 
 
Phone:                                                                    E-mail Address: ___________________________________________ 

 
Please tell us: For future mailings, do you prefer mail or e-mail? __________________________ 

 
REGISTRATION FEES AND INFORMATION 

There is no reduced rate for partial attendance. 
 Cost AMOUNT PAID 

Early Bird Registration 
Full conference registration (cost includes reception) ……………………………….  $200.00 
 
If postmarked AFTER Feb. 1, 2016, or On-Site Registration 
Full conference registration (cost includes reception)……………………………….. $225.00  

 
Reception only…………………………………………………………….…………  $  50.00 
(No sessions or meals.) 
 
Non-members 
Full conference registration (cost includes reception)…………………………………$250.00     _______________ 

 
Total: 

 
PLEASE MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO MAAE – No refunds after Feb. 1, 2016. 

       
Send registration form and payment to:   MAAE 
 6126 Trumbull St. 

Lansing, MI  48911 
Phone: 517-977-1172      
E-mail: maae@michairports.org  

 
To assist in meals and seating arrangements, please complete the following: 
 
WEDNESDAY       THURSDAY 
Continental Breakfast ___ Yes ___ No    Continental Breakfast ___ Yes   ___ No 
Lunch ___ Yes ___ No       Awards Lunch  ___ Yes   ___ No  
Reception ___ Yes ___ No     
      Vegetarian Lunches___ 
 
ROOM RESERVATIONS: The Kellogg Hotel and Convention Center (800-875-5090) has reserved a block of rooms at a group rate of $106 for 
standard single/double or $120 deluxe single/double (plus applicable taxes). To qualify for this rate, you must mention you are attending the 
Michigan Airport Conference. The hotel will guarantee this rate through Jan. 17, 2016. For online reservations: www.kelloggcenter.com. 

 
See Reverse Side for Professional Development Financial Assistance Information

mailto:maae@michairports.org


 

 

CONFERENCE LOCATION 
 
The Michigan Airport Conference is being held at the Kellogg Hotel and Convention Center, 
located on the campus of Michigan State University at 219 South Harrison Road in East Lansing, 
Michigan. For reservations, please call: 800-875-5090. A block of rooms has been reserved at a 
group rate of $106 standard single/double and $120 deluxe single/double (plus applicable taxes). 
These rates are guaranteed through Jan. 17, 2016. Be sure to mention you are attending the 
Michigan Airport Conference when making your reservations. Online room reservations are 
available at www.kelloggcenter.com. 

 
Directions to Kellogg Hotel and Convention Center: 

 
 

 
MICHIGAN AIRPORT CONFERENCE 

Feb. 17 - 18, 2016 
 

KELLOGG HOTEL and CONFERENCE CENTER 
219 South Harrison Road 
East Lansing, Michigan 

800-875-5090 
www.kelloggcenter.com 



To sponsor an event and/or donate door prizes, please contact the conference committee 
members listed below: 

 
Matt Barresi: 989-732-4218 or mbarresi@otsegocountymi.gov 

Shawn Jezak: 517-977-1172 or maae@michairports.org 

 
CONFERENCE INFORMATION                                                                 

 
This is the 25th year the Michigan Airport Conference has been co-sponsored by the Michigan Association of Airport Executives (MAAE) and the Michigan 
Department of Transportation (MDOT) Office of Aeronautics. It is designed to provide airport sponsors, managers, consultants, and others interested in airport 
management practices the opportunity to meet in an open forum to share information and ideas. The conference also provides a versatile medium to inform 
attendees regarding changes and opportunities available to airport communities. Vendors have the opportunity to display new equipment, products and 
processes, while consultants can interact with attendees and explain their particular areas of interest. 

 
AGENDA AND SPEAKERS 

 
On Wednesday morning, we will receive an update on what is new from MDOT leadership, as well as the latest news and developments from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) Detroit Airports District Office. Following a break with the exhibitors, Sam Heiter, program manager, FAA Safety Team, will be 
speaking on an important topic regarding what to do when a crash happens at your airport. Concurrently, the consultants will hold a roundtable forum. 
 
Our luncheon speaker will be Bob Hoffman, public relations manager of the Wharton Center. Bob is a graduate of Michigan State University. He was an anchor 
on a CBS station for 10 years before being recruited to the Wharton Center. He also is the co-host of Fox 47’s Morning Blend. Bob developed a community-
based Pass it Forward initiative called ePIFanynow.org, which created a revolution of positive experiences through kindness.   
 
The afternoon sessions will include topics of Aero PM, disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) requirements, and e-invoicing, followed by a presentation of 
the National Museum of Aviation and Technology at Historic Will Run. Additionally, MAAE will continue to hold the very popular and informative Air Carrier 
and General Aviation Roundtable sessions. 
 
Thursday’s sessions will begin with a session regarding the Airport Cooperative Research Program (ACRP), which includes ACRP 140 Best Practices for 
Airport Cybersecurity, and ACRP 77 Developing General Aviation Airport Business Plans, followed by a session all about pavements. The grand finale of our 
conference will be our most honored tradition of recognizing the Airport Sponsor and Consultant of the Year, followed by the “Passport” prize drawing. Closing 
the conference in this way is important because it celebrates our successes and encourages us to continue the pursuit of excellence. We truly hope to see you this 
year and remind you that this is your conference, and its success depends on your participation! 

 
AGENDA 

Wednesday, Feb. 17, 2016 
7:30 a.m. Continental Breakfast with Exhibitors 
8:30 a.m. Welcome to Lansing and Overview 
8:45 a.m. Session MDOT - Office of Aeronautics Update 
9:15 a.m. Session Federal Aviation Administration Update 
9:45 a.m. Break with Exhibitors 
10:15 a.m. Session Crash at Your Airport - Now What? 
10:15 a.m. Session Consultant’s Roundtable Forum 
  
11:45 a.m. Luncheon - Keynote Speaker Bob Hoffman 
1:30 p.m. Session Aero PM User Group  
2:00 p.m. Session E-invoicing  
2:30 p.m. Session DBE Requirements for Local Lettings 
3:00 p.m. Break with Exhibitors 
3:30 p.m. Session National Museum of Aviation and Technology at Historic Willow Run 
4:00 p.m. Session Small General Aviation - Roundtable 
 Air Carrier and Large GA - Roundtable 

 
5:30 p.m. Legislative Reception with Exhibitors 
 

Thursday, Feb. 18, 2016 
8:00 a.m. Continental Breakfast with Exhibitors 
8:15 a.m. MAAE General Membership Meeting 
9:00 a.m. Session Airport Cooperative Research Program (ACRP)  
10:00 a.m. Break with Exhibitors 
10:45 a.m. Session All About Pavements 
11:45 a.m. Awards Luncheon 
 

  
DOOR PRIZES AND SPONSORSHIPS 
Door prizes have proven to be a good advertising medium. If you have items you would like to donate, we would certainly appreciate your participation. Your 
company will receive appropriate recognition for donating the prize. 
 
Make the most of your company’s investment by participating as a conference sponsor. Sponsors provide an invaluable service to MAAE by supporting the 
learning and networking opportunities of the association. As a sponsor, your company will receive special recognition in addition to the appreciation we 
normally bestow. 

 

Available Sponsorships 
Platinum - $2,000 
Gold - $1,500 
Silver - $1,000 
Bronze - $500 

mailto:maae@michairports.org

	Agenda
	2.  Minutes
	3. & 4. Election of Officders for 2016
	Organizational Structure
	2016 Meeting Schedule

	5.  FBO Report
	6.  Hangar Sale/Purchase at WMRA
	7A.  Donations to Airport Business Center Project
	8.  Communications Committee Board Update
	9.  FY 2017 Budget Preparation
	Status Report - FY2016 Action Plan

	10.  Monthly Budget and Investment Report
	12.  Michigan Airport Conference 2016

	Last Name: 
	First Name to appear on name tag: 
	Representing AgencyCompany: 
	Type of Business: 
	Mailing Address: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip Code: 
	Phone: 
	Email Address: 
	Please tell us For future mailings do you prefer mail or email: 
	50000ea: 
	12500ea: 
	60000ea 1: 
	60000ea 2: 
	Total: 0
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Name: 
	Airport: 
	Phone_2: 
	Email: 
	Street Address: 
	City_2: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	Last Name_2: 
	First Name to appear on name tag_2: 
	Representing AgencyCompany_2: 
	Type of Business_2: 
	Mailing Address_2: 
	City_3: 
	State_2: 
	Zip Code_3: 
	Phone_3: 
	Email Address_2: 
	Please tell us For future mailings do you prefer mail or email_2: 
	20000: 
	22500: 
	5000: 
	25000: 
	Total_2: 0
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box22: Off


